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A. Industry structure and developments 

GLOBAL ECONOMIC REVIEW – POCKETS OF OPPORTUNITIES IN CHALLENGING TIMES 

Global economic growth remained fairly robust at 3.6% in CY2018, as against 3.8% recorded inCY2017. The growth 
moderaƟon by 2 bps was primarily on account of weaker performance in the European Union (EU) and China. On the other 
end, economic growth sustenance for CY2018 was driven by an upsurge in spending due to tax cuts by the United States, 
the world’s largest economy, which grew by 2.9%, equalling its decade-high growth achieved in 2015. 

Global trade weakened towards the endof 2018 partly due to the impact of higher energy prices on account of sancƟons 
imposed on Iran, and also partly due to the tariff increases in the United States and China. As the trade dispute between 
the two giant economies of the US and China further escalated in the beginning of 2019, global growth is esƟmated to have 
slowed down as the effects on the disrupƟon in supply chains begins to become evident. In fact, the recent inversion of the 
yield curve (interest rate on 10-year US government bonds currently lower than on short-term bonds) in the United States, 
driven in no small measure by the trade dispute, has raised fears of the naƟon falling into recession late in 2019 or in 2020. 

Even as this context plays-out, China is in the process of implemenƟng a sƟmulus package, which is expected to shore-up 
the its economy in the face of moderaƟng economic growth in the region. 

It is clear that a US recession would cast a pall of gloom on the global economy in terms of impacƟng a direct demand 
channel. However, recent commentary suggests a cooling-off of relaƟons between the world’s two largest economies. This 
bodes well for global economic growth in the near term.

INDIAN ECONOMIC OVERVIEW – AMONG THE LAST LARGE GLOBAL FRONTIER MARKETS

India is widely considered to be the next fronƟer of opportunity, considering a populaƟon of over 1.3 billion people, 
median age of below 30 years and economic growth rates that are among the fastest in the world. In this context, India’s 
consumpƟon potenƟal is undoubtable. 

The recent Gavekal report menƟons an interest consumpƟon categorisaƟon of the populaƟon according to their economic 
profiles. It states that there are 71 million households in the emerging consumer bucket, 33 million aspiring consumers 
and about 18 million affluent consumers. Though these are certainly humongous populaƟon pools, they total only 120 
million households, less than half the total who are economically-engaged. The report also forecasts that over the coming 
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decade, the number of households in the emerging consumer bucket will double to 140 million, the aspiraƟon consumer 
pool will expand three Ɵmes its size to over 100 million and the affluent consumers will quadruple to 72 million. In effect, 
the number of households involved in the modern consumer economy will surge from 120 million to over 310 million. 

With such a backdrop, the Indian economy, measured by its GDP (Gross DomesƟc Product), remained the fastest growing 
major economy in the world in CY2018. In FY2018-19, the esƟmated growth rate is 6.8%, driven by strong private 
consumpƟon growth of over 8%. 

Quarterly GDP growth breakup, 2018-19 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4P
8% 7% 6.6% 5.8%

Source: CSO  

During the year under review, the economy conƟnued to witness an increase 
in investments, with GCF (Gross Fixed Capital FormaƟon) growth at a six-
yearhigh of 10%. Furthermore, personal consumpƟon trends remained strong, 
with personal credit recording a respectable 18% growth YoY, reflecƟve of the 
strength of India’s consumpƟon cycle. 

Outlook 

The economic outlook for 2019-20 (current year) appears to be challenging, 
with most major insƟtuƟons pegging the full fiscal year GDP growth at under 
6%. The key contribuƟng factors include the tail effects of two of the most 
significant reforms – financial reform in terms of demoneƟsaƟon and taxaƟon 
reform in terms of the introducƟon of the Goods and Services Tax (GST), and 

the collapse of a major NBFC that ensued a liquidity squeeze and consequent risk-aversion in both lending and borrowing, 
impacƟng credit oŏake. These were compounded by external issues, including the US-China trade dispute and the looming 
uncertainty around the terms of the United Kingdom’s exit from the EU (“Brexit”). 

The start of the FY 2019-20 was shaky, with month-on-month personal and commercial vehicle sales declining to mulƟ-
year lows. Furthermore, GST collecƟons, a key indicator of economic acƟvity, also remained relaƟvely muted in the first 
few months of the fiscal.

It is expected that the Indian government will come out with structural policies targeƫng the impacted sectors with a view 
to sƟmulate economic growth. In fact, certain announcements, including the recent roll-back of excess surcharge on FPIs 
(foreign porƞolio investors) bode well, especially for the capital markets. 

INDIA’S ENERGY SECTOR – AT THE CUSP OF TRANSFORMATION 

To meet the electricity needs of 1.3 billion people in India represents an unparalleled opportunity unavailable anywhere else 
in the world. However, catering to this unprecedented opportunity requires the development of an efficient, coordinated, 
economical and robust electricity system essenƟal for providing uninterrupted and quality power for all. 

ElectrificaƟon is being extended wider and deeper in the country through the support of such government schemes as 
the DDUGJY (Deendayal Upadhyaya Gram JyoƟ Yojana) and IPDS (Integrated Power Development Scheme). Furthermore, 
robust government iniƟaƟves like ‘24x7 Power to All’ households and Ujwal Discoms Assurance Yojana (UDAY)has further 
enhanced viability of distribuƟon companies, enabling the last-mile delivery of economic and uninterrupted power. 

It is noteworthy that India’s energy sector is undergoing steady transformaƟon, as renewables emerge to take up a larger 
share of the country’s energy sector.This has been primarily driven by the equalisaƟon in installaƟon costs and, in some 
cases, even lower O&M (operaƟons and maintenance) costs of renewable energy sources. 
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The faster growth of renewables is also boosted by government policies, which seek to increase renewable capacity 
further, in line with rising polluƟon menace and worsening air quality in most ciƟes, coupled with the need to increasingly 
harness clean and green fuels. For instance, the government approved the NaƟonal Policy on Biofuels-2018, whichhas 
such anƟcipated outcomes as a cleaner environment, public health benefits, employment generaƟon and boost to 
infrastructural investments, especially in rural areas. 

As on March 31, 2019, India’s total installed capacity stood at 3,56,100 MW. Thermal sources conƟnued to have a dominant 
share at around 63%, followed by renewables (including large hydropower) at about 35%. Due to various challenges, the 
total capacity addiƟon target for FY 2018-19 was achieved only to the extent of 73%. About 5,921 MW capacity was 
installed during the year, against the set target of 8,106 MW. 

Country-wise power consumpƟon ranking –India possesses significant headroom for power consumpƟon growth 

Per capita power consumpƟon, 2016 (KWh)

USA Germany Russia China World average Brazil India 
12,071 6,602 7,481 4,475 2,674 2,516 1,122 

Analysis of difference in power consumpƟon: USA vs India: ~11x | China vs India: ~4x | World average vs India: 2.3x 

India’s renewable energy sector 

Rising polluƟon levels and global warming has made climate change a very real threat and one of the most significant 
issues facing the 21st century. Reversing the effects of climate change has been a central narraƟve of the incumbent Indian 
poliƟcal leadership, even as the country has endorsed the Paris Agreement on Climate Change. Thrust on renewable 
energy, especially solar, policy iniƟaƟves to promote electric vehicles (EVs),and enforcing the implementaƟon of BSVI 
vehicular emission standards by 1 April 2020 are some of the most visible iniƟaƟves of the government to fight against 
polluƟon and climate change. 

Furthermore, as part of the NaƟonally Determined ContribuƟons (NDC), India is steadfast to reduce the emissions intensity 
of its GDP by up to 35% by 2030, from the 2005-level. In this context, renewables are widely seen as key to achieve this 
ambiƟon. 

In a major thrust to the non-convenƟonal energy sector, the Indian government has envisaged as much as 175 GW of 
energy from renewable sources by 2022 in a bid to provide clean and affordable energy to all. Notably, the target has been 
extended to 227 GW. Clearly, the drive towards clean energy is framed in response to strong economic growth rates that 
has raised the demand for energy, and to achieve neutralisaƟon in carbon emissions as much as possible with a view to 
achieve sustainable growth. 

The importance of renewable energy in India’s total energy basket canbe gauged from the fact that out of the 113 GW 
capacity installed over the past five years (FY14 to FY19), a majority of it was based on clean energy. It is no surprise then 
that renewable energy installaƟons have expanded three-fold to over 78GW capacity as on March 31, 2019, compared 
with 25 GW as on March 31, 2012, consƟtuƟng approximately 22% of total current generaƟon capacity. Following the 
announcement to classify large hydropower projects as renewable energy sources by the government in March 2019, 
renewable energyconsƟtutes 34.7% of total current generaƟon capacity. 

In India, the case for solar power is robust, considering the fact that one of the major growth drivers comprises the fact 
that the country has achieved grid parity in solar bids (APPC or average power purchase cost basis), which has consistently 
declined from Rs. 3.30 / KWh as on February 2017, to Rs. 2.48 / KWh by March 2019. 

Management Discussion & Analysis
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CERC APPC* –Solar bids achieve grid parity in India 

Feb-17 Oct-17 Dec-17 Apr-18 Sept-18 Feb-19
3.30 3.15 2.44 2.47 2.44 2.48

Source: MNRE 

Share of renewables in power generaƟon –A low share indicates substanƟal headroom for long-term growth 

Energy source Percentage share 
Thermal 78%
Renewable, including hydropower 19%
Nuclear 3% 

Projected capacity addiƟon in the run-up to 175 GW – AcceleraƟng YoY capacity increase 

Year Capacity 
FY19 28 GW
FY20 42.8 GW
FY21 65.5 GW
FY22 100 GW

Source: CEA projecƟons 

India’s solar energy sector 

Among the various renewable energy resources, solar energy’s potenƟal is the 
highest in India. In most parts of the country, clear sunny weather is experienced 
250 to 300 days a year. The annual radiaƟon varies from 1,600 to 2,200 kWh/
m2, which is comparable with radiaƟon received in the tropical and sub-tropical 
regions. The equivalent energy potenƟal is about 6,000 million GWh of energy per 
year (Ministry of New and Renewable Energy). Furthermore, solar energy, offers 
significant advantage of permiƫng decentralised distribuƟon of energy, thereby 
empowering people at the grassroots level and reaching energy to energy-starved 
and power-deficient regions.

With the objecƟve to establish India as a global leader in solar energy, and by 
creaƟng the policy framework conducive for enabling the effecƟve and speedy 
diffusion of solar power across the country, the government launched the NaƟonal 
Solar Mission. Moreover, the NaƟonal Tariff Policy was amended in January 2011 
to prescribe solar-specific RPOs(Renewable Energy Purchase ObligaƟons) to be 
increased from a minimum of 0.25% in 2012 to 3% by 2022. Central and state 
electricity boards have issued numerous regulaƟons, including solar RPOs, REC 

framework, tariffs, grid connecƟvity plans, etc., for promoƟng solar energy. Also, many states have come up with up their 
own policy on solar as well.

Management Discussion & Analysis
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Solar energy in India – Wide difference between potenƟal and reality 

PotenƟal 750 GW 
Installed capacity (March 2019) 26 GW 

Analysis of difference in potenƟal generaƟon and installed capacity 726 GW

In view of the ongoing efforts of central and state governments and various agencies for promoƟng solar energy, the 
Ministry of New and Renewable Energy (MNRE) has undertaken an exercise to track and analyse issues in the fulfillment 
of solar power purchase obligaƟons and implementaƟon of Solar REC framework in India. This would go a long way to help 
various stakeholders to understand the challenges and opportuniƟes in the development of solar power, thereby boosƟng 
the confidence of players, while inviƟng increased investments into the sector. 

Factors promoƟng solar energy in India 

Improvements in technology and efficiency, leading to decline in module prices 

- AugmentaƟon in plant design and equipment, leading to more robust generaƟon and declining tariffs 

- Lower costs encouraging increase in tender sizes and larger solar parks, providing higher scale economies  

- Serious players have entered the market and helped reduce the intensity of both capital and working capital costs 

- Growing state support in making land available for larger parks and also offering other incenƟves; special thrust also 
on rooŌop solar power 

- Improving evacuaƟon infrastructure, enhancing the confidence of players and providing robust support 

- Protected viability even in the face of declining tariffs, indicaƟng maturity of the sector  

- Non-inflaƟonary tariff character provides incremental benefit over PPA lifecycle, while also ensuring the protecƟon 
of consumer interest 

RooŌop solar is yet another exciƟng fronƟer of opportunity. The share of rooŌop solar is esƟmated at just about 14-15% 
of the cumulaƟve solar installaƟon in India. As per government data, total rooŌop solar installaƟons in the country is 
esƟmated at about 1,700 MW.The government has provided cumulaƟve financial assistance/incenƟves to the tune of Rs 
169.73 crore for fiscal 2017-18 and Rs 446.77 crore in fiscal 2018-19 under the Grid-Connected RooŌop Solar programme. 
Moreover, the government has set a target of installaƟon of 40,000 MW of rooŌop solar projects by the year 2022 in the 
country. 

India is also gearing up to add 500 GW of renewable energy to its electricity grid by 2030in a bid to reduce the impact 
of Greenhouse Gases (GHGs) in its ciƟes. SupporƟng this mission is Websol, a frontline solar energy enterprise that is 
commiƩed to provide clean and green solar energy for all. 

Solar potenƟal in India vis-a-vis the  world –The case for solar in India, a country that stands tall in solar irradiaƟon 
(kWh/m2) 

India Germany China USA 
(California) 

MENA* Mexico Australia 

2,100 1,300 1,600 2,050 2,300 2,150 2,100

*Middle East & North Africa

Source: CEA, solargis.com 
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B. OpportuniƟes and threats 

Supported by its robust consumer pool, India is expected to remain as one of the fastest-growing emerging market 
economies in the world generaƟngconsistent growth rates. With key reforms, including the implementaƟon of GST, 
adopƟon of inflaƟon targeƟng measures, new bankruptcy code (IBC), financial inclusion, liberalisaƟon of foreign direct 
investment(FDI) and measures to curb black money will help India in improving its producƟvity dynamics and in the 
achievement of sustainable growth. Enhanced spending on infrastructure, including power, quicker project implementaƟon 
and conƟnuaƟon of structural reforms are expected to provide further impetus to growth. 

On the renewable energy front, the Government of India has released its roadmap to achieve 175 GW capacity in renewable 
energy by 2022, which includes 100 GW of solar power and 60 GW of wind power. The government is also preparing a ‘rent 
a roof’ policy for supporƟng its target of generaƟng 40 GWof power through solar rooŌop projects by 2022. Further, the 
NaƟonal Solar Mission has been launched to harness solar energy’s full potenƟal, as part of meeƟng the country’s energy 
security. India has huge potenƟal to become the leader in this area. Solar parks and solar plants are being established to 
ensure that solar energy reaches even the remotest corners of the country. In effect, the solar power sector is bound to 
play a major role in the years to come, as the country looks to meet its growing energy needs. 

Furthermore, strategic policy intervenƟons and the government’s thrust to raise renewables- based power generaƟon 
capacity target to 227 GW by 2022 from the iniƟal target of 175 GW bolsters India’s posiƟon as a world leaderin renewables. 
It is also perƟnent to note that the establishment and mass adopƟon of a low-costand low-emission technology for power 
generaƟon is not only crucial for fulfilling socio-economic development objecƟves, but also criƟcal for India to deliver on 
its commitments under the Paris Accord. 

India made three primary commitments as part of the Intended NaƟonally Determined ContribuƟon (INDC) to be achieved 
by 2030. These comprise: 

 Lowering greenhouse gas emission intensity of its GDP by 33-35%

 Ensuring 40% of power generaƟon capacity to be based on non-fossil fuels

 CreaƟon of an addiƟonal ‘carbon sink’ of 2.5-3 billion tonnes of CO2 equivalent by increasing the green cover

Recent government report suggests that India is on track to meet two of the three targets, i.e. target for emission-intensity 
of the economy and share of non-fossil fuel-based power capacity, much ahead of 2030. 

ParƟcularly in solar, recent esƟmates have suggested that India’s solar potenƟal is 10,000+ GW, almost five Ɵmes more 
than the potenƟal of wind power. To effecƟvely capitalise on this opportunity, the central and state governments are 
increasingly looking beyond current programmes and policies to holisƟcally engage with all consƟtuents of the ecosystem. 

India’s solar energy ambiƟons – Roadmap to 2020

2019 26 W

25% CAGR 

100 W2022(P)

Management Discussion & Analysis
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As India pushes forward to achieve its solar ambiƟons to 100 GW, it is esƟmated that a mammoth USD 100 billion would 
be invested in the renewable energy sector.

C. Outlook 

India is taking several steps to frucƟfy its dream of a clean energy future, evident in the fact that the largest renewable 
capacity expansion programme in the world is being taken up by India. 

Some of the key government iniƟaƟves to drive the renewable energy sector include: 

 Solar Park Scheme

MNRE has come up with a scheme to set up a number of solar parks across several states, each with a capacity of almost 
500 MW. The scheme proposes to offer financial support by the government to establish solar parks to facilitate the 
creaƟon of infrastructure required for seƫng up new solar power projects in terms of allocaƟon of land, transmission, 
access to roads, availability of water, etc. 

 VGF (Viability Gap Funding) Scheme

VGF support will be provided for seƫng up of grid-connected solar PV projects of a minimum 2,000 MW capacity by solar 
power developers on build-own-operate basis.

 Government Yojana Solar Energy Subsidy Scheme

Under this Scheme, financial assistance and capital subsidy will be provided to the applicant to the extent of 50%, 75% and 
90% of the basis cost of the solar energy plant. The Government Yojana enƟtles a person to a subsidy if he has solar panels 
installed on the rooŌop. The subsidy is decided as per the capacity of the solar power plant. A benefit is that people will 
be able to cut down on their electricity bills.

 UDAY Scheme

UDAY or Ujjwal Discoms Assurance Yojna was launched in November 2015 as a revival package for electricity distribuƟon 
companies with the idea to find permanent solar power soluƟons. 

 RooŌop Scheme

Under the rooŌop scheme executed by SECI (Solar Energy CorporaƟon of India), 200 MW of projects has been allocated, out 
of which 45 MW of capacity have been commissioned. AddiƟon to this, special schemes including 73 MW for warehouses 
and 50 MW for the CPWD (Central Public Works Department) have been launched. 

D. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 

Websol strives to strengthen its internal control systems and processes for enabling the smooth and efficient conduct of 
business and also to comply with all relevant laws and regulaƟons. Furthermore, we believe in responsible decentralisaƟon 
and a comprehensive framework for delegaƟon of power exists for ensuring smooth decision-making. Well-structured 
guidelines for preparaƟon of accounts are followed for uniform compliance. Furthermore, all key funcƟonal areas are 
governed by respecƟve operaƟng manuals. In order to ensure that all systemic checks and balances are in place and all 
internal control systems are in order, regular internal audits are conducted by experienced firms of accountants in close 
co-ordinaƟon with the company’s Internal Audit Department. 

E. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

Lacklustre demand and heightened price erosion on account of increased product dumping by China comprised the main 
challenges that had an adverse impact on our financial performance. The company’s revenue from operaƟons declined []% 
to Rs. 68.56 crore in 2018-19, from Rs. 183.27 crore in 2017-18. Other income grew by []% to Rs. 17.29 crore during the 
year. Lower revenues and higher fixed costsdepressed EBIDTA to a negaƟve Rs. 7.29 crore, from Rs. 26.79 crore reported 
in the previous year. This impacted profitability, with the company slipping to a net loss of Rs. 28.90 crore in 2018-19, from 
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a net profit of Rs. 1.83 crore in the previous year. Aiding by posiƟve government policies, the company is taking a number 
of measures with a view to restore profitability in the near-term.

F. FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

The equity share capital of the Company stood at Rs. 29.03 crore as on 31st March, 2019 (2,90,27,067 equity share of Rs. 
10 each) compared to Rs. 26.68 crore as on 31st March, 2018 (2,66,75,733 equity share of Rs. 10 each). During the year, the 
Company issued 23,51,334 shares on account of conversion of FCCB loan.

Other Equity

Other equity of the Company decreased by 22.99% from Rs. 73.94 crore as on 31st March, 2018 to Rs. 56.94 crore as on 31st 
March, 2019. This was mainly on account of loss incurred during the year.

Debt Profile

Total long-term borrowings and deferred income stood at Rs. 60.99 crore as on 31st March, 2019, compared to Rs. 60.66 
crore as on 31st March, 2018. During the year under review, the Company repaid Rs. 2.03 crore and availed fresh loan of 
Rs. 0.09 crore from its related parƟes.

Debtors’ Turnover

Debtors’ turnover raƟo stood at 51 days during 2018-19 as compared to 43 days during 2017-18.

Inventory Turnover

Inventory turnover raƟo for 2018-19 stood at 198 days as compared to 149 days during 2017-18. Increase in the inventory 
turnover raƟo was mainly on account of large inventory in the form of modules which was not liŌed by the customer. Also, 
raw material stock was kept for producƟon of a big order.

Interest Coverage RaƟo

Interest coverage raƟo declined from 1.56 Ɵmes during 2017-18 to (3.73) Ɵmes during 2018-19. This was on account of 
loss incurred by the Company during 2018-19.

Current RaƟo

Current raƟo declined from 0.51 in 2017-18 to 0.44 in 2018-19.

Debt-equity raƟo

Debt-equity raƟo increased from 0.25 Ɵmes to 0.26 Ɵmes during 2018-19.

OperaƟng Profit Margin

OperaƟng profit margin declined from 7.29% during 2017-18 to (33.23%) during 2018-19. This was on account of loss 
incurred by the Company during 2018-19.

Net Profit Margin

Net profit margin declined from 2.61% during 2017-18 to (42.22%) during 2018-19. This was on account of loss incurred 
by the Company during 2018-19.

Return on Net Worth

Return on net worth declined from 4.75% during 2017-18 to (33.67%) during 2018-19. This was on account of loss incurred 
by the Company during 2018-19.

Management Discussion & Analysis



9

Notice
Management Discussion
Directors' Report & Annexures

STATUTORY REPORTS

G. RISK MANAGEMENT 

As a company that is exposed to several risks, both internal and external, Websol possesses an integrated risk management 
framework that enables impact miƟgaƟon. A descripƟon of the key risks facing the business is provided below.

ECONOMIC RISKS

The solar sector is linked with the broader economy in two ways: One, in terms of meeƟng the demand for energy and two, 
with respect to investments. A slowing economy has a negaƟve impact on the solar energy sector. 

While this is true, the long-term prospects of the Indian solar energy industry are bright, considering the government’s 
thrust to achieve 100 GW of solar capacity by 2022. Moreover, solar parks are viable despite declining tariffs, which 
indicates technological maturity. Plus, a number of countries around the world have raƟfied to the Paris Accord and hence 
are looking at solar as the preferred choice to meet their obligaƟons. 

GLOBAL RISKS

By virtue of large-scale solar cell capaciƟes, China has emerged as a key exporter of solar panels and other products. India 
has also suffered because of product pricing erosion on account of dumping by China. 

However, the implementaƟon of a Safeguard Duty by the government is a substanƟal posiƟve to counter this threat. It is 
expected that the government will embrace more policy-level measures with a view to protect the interests of domesƟc 
companies who have made substanƟal investments in manufacturing capaciƟes.

SUBSTITUTION RISKS

The threat of subsƟtuƟon is virtually non-existent. The manufacturing of solar cells and panels represents a matured 
technology, and there is no subsƟtuƟon of these products. It is noteworthy that the escalaƟng impact of climate change, 
is bringing forth an urgency in the implementaƟon of larger renewable capaciƟes to meet the twin objecƟves of meeƟng 
rising energy demand, while doing so sustainably and with minimal threat to the environment.

PPA RISKS

Though there are risks in the PPA (power purchase agreement) lifecycle, companies generally establish long-term purchase 
contracts that assure oŏake. Further, as a hygiene pracƟce, players are moving ahead only aŌer funding has been secured. 
This goes a significant way in protecƟng the supply chain, thereby supporƟng the investment plans of upstream solar 
manufacturing companies.

HUMAN RESOURCE RISKS

People are central to the success of the business, especially the O&M parts of the contract, to ensure buyer and end-user 
saƟsfacƟon. At Websol, we have a team of highly trained and professional people who take our business ahead. Moreover, 
we provide our people with extensive training that also builds loyalty, while enabling us to develop products and services 
of the highest grade. The company also engages in providing employee benefits that go far beyond statutory obligaƟons. 
This, along with other iniƟaƟves, has helped forge employee loyalty, a criƟcal advantage in retaining the talent pool.

Management Discussion & Analysis
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FINANCIAL RISKS

A number of companies in India are being referred to the IBC, primarily because of heightened indebtedness making 
operaƟons unviable. 

In this scenario, Websol is a well-capitalised company with a net worth of Rs. [] crore as on end 2018-19 an cash and bank 
balances of Rs. [] crore. Moreover, the company’s debt management strategy was anchored on ensuring re/prepayment, 
with the result that interest expenses came down to Rs. 6.11 crore in 2018-19, from Rs. 8.56 crore reported in the previous 
year. Further, overall debt on the books declined by []% to Rs. [] crore as on 31 March 2019. 

Key to read risk intensity

02 HIGH

01 MEDIUM

01 LOW

H. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The budget allocated for corporate social responsibility (CSR) acƟviƟes for the fiscal year 2018-19 stood at Rs. [] crore, 
aligned with the statutory requirements. The company organised its CSR acƟviƟes under various key areas, relevant to the 
needs of the society. The acƟviƟes were entrusted to various implemenƟng agencies.

Forward-looking statement 

This report contains forward-looking statements, idenƟfied by words like ‘plans’, ‘expects’, ‘will’, ‘anƟcipates’, ‘believes’, 
‘intends’, ‘projects’, ‘esƟmates’ and so on. All statements that address expectaƟonsor projecƟons about the future, including 
market posiƟon and financial results, are forward-looking statements. Since these are based on certain assumpƟons and 
expectaƟons of future events.The company cannot guarantee that these are accurate or will be realised. The company’s 
actual results, performance or achievements could therefore differ from those projected in any forward-looking statements. 
The company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify, update or revise any such statements on the basis of 
subsequent developments, informaƟon or events. 

Management Discussion & Analysis
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors hereby submits the twenty ninth annual report of the business and operaƟons of your Company along with 
the audited financial statements, for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019
FINANCIAL RESULTS                                                                                                    Rs in Lakh
ParƟculars  Year

2018-19
Year

2017-18
Revenue from operaƟons 6,855.84 18,327.25
Other Income 1,728.65 1,099.23
Total Revenue 8,484.49 19,426.48
Profit / (Loss) before interest, depreciaƟon, taxes and excepƟonal items (728.69) 2,678.61
Less: Interest 611.43 855.89
Less: DepreciaƟon 1,549.35 1,424.39
Profit / (Loss) before excepƟonal Items (2,889.47) 479.27
Less: ExcepƟonal Items & Income tax & other Provisions 5.08 -
Profit / (Loss) aŌer Tax (2,894.55) 478.31

OPERATIONS
During the year under review, your Company could not uƟlize its full capacity because of overall industry scenario and lack 
of demand. Also there was huge pressure from China on pricing end. AŌer implementaƟon of Safeguard Duty and other 
posiƟve measures taken by the GOI we expect that your company will perform in FY 2019-20. We are hopeful that support 
from GOI will be conƟnuing to green energy.
Your Company reported total revenue of Rs. 6,855.84 Lakh against Rs. 18,327.25 Lakh during the last financial year. The 
Company incurred a loss of Rs. 2,894.55 Lakh aŌer providing Rs. 1,549.35 Lakh towards depreciaƟon and Rs 611.43 Lakh 
towards interest during the current financial year as compared to a profit of Rs 478.31    Lakh in the last financial year.

DIVIDEND
Your directors have not recommended any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2019, in view of the restricƟons under 
SecƟon 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) as amended by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2015, becoming 
effecƟve from 13th August, 2015, by virtue of which no Company can declare dividend unless carried over previous losses 
and depreciaƟon not provided in previous year or years, are set off against profit of the Company for the current year.

DIRECTORS 

a) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

 In according with the provisions of SecƟon 152 of the Act read with ArƟcle 91 of the ArƟcle of AssociaƟon of the 
Company, S L Agarwal, Managing Director will reƟre by rotaƟon at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offer himself 
for re-elecƟon. The Board has recommended their re-elecƟon.

 Mr. Ritesh Ojha was appointed by Board on 14.11.2018 as Independent director in the Company, his appointment will 
be raƟfied by shareholders in the ensuing AGM.

 Mr. Dharmendra Sethia who has been appointed on 14.08.2014 as Independent Director in the Company for five years 
has offered himself for reappointment.

b) No. of MeeƟngs of the Board: 

 Five meeƟngs of the Board were held during the year ended 31st March, 2019.   

c) DeclaraƟon by Independent Directors: 

 All Independent directors have given declaraƟons that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under 
SecƟon 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per respecƟve regulaƟon of SEBI LisƟng RegulaƟon (LODR) 2015. 
The declaraƟon is received in the first meeƟng of Board of Directors for the year.
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d) Separate MeeƟng of Independent Director:

 Details of the separate meeƟng of Independent Directors held in terms of Schedule IV of the Act and RegulaƟon 25(3) 
of the LisƟng RegulaƟons are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s G. P. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN 302082E) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of your company in 
the last Annual General MeeƟng held on 29th September, 2018 for a term of five consecuƟve years. The requirement to 
place the maƩer relaƟng to appointment of Auditors for raƟficaƟon by members at every Annual General MeeƟng is done 
away by Companies Amendment Act, 2017 vide noƟficaƟon dated May 7, 2018 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
New Delhi.

There is no qualificaƟon, reservaƟon, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their report. 

ClarificaƟon/explanaƟon on remarks in Independent Auditors’ Report 

a. In the comments of Auditors under para “EMPHASIS OF MATTER “regarding confirmaƟon of accounts, the directors’ 
states that all the balance confirmaƟon leƩers have been sent to respecƟve vendors and customers, confirmaƟons 
from all have not been received.

b. In Annexure B Point No. 1(b) of the Auditors’ Report regarding physical verificaƟon of fixed asset, your Directors 
have to state that the physical verificaƟon of fixed assets is in progress and will be completed very soon. However, 
management would review the same.

c. As regards delay in payment of undisputed statutory dues menƟoned in annexure B point no. 7(a) to the Auditors’ 
Report, it is submiƩed that it was due to the conƟnuous adverse financial condiƟon and no banking facility currently 
available to the Company. However, we hereby submit that all the statutory dues relaƟng to the financial year 2018-
19 have since been paid. Since the cash inflows of the Company are becoming beƩer, the Company is endeavoring to 
deposit all its statutory dues within the due dates.

COST AUDIT

Cost Audit is not applicable to the Company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
Your Board appointed M/s. AL & Associates, PracƟcing Company Secretaries, to conduct secreƟal audit of the Company for 
the financial year ended 31st March, 2019. The report of the M/s. AL & Associates is provided in the “Annexure A” forming 
part of this report, pursuant to SecƟon 204 of the Act.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits as envisaged in SecƟon 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 
during the year under review.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Pursuant to the provisions of SecƟon 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are Mr. S L Agarwal, 
Managing Director, Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala, Chief Financial Officer and Mrs. Sweta Biyani, Company Secretary (Resigned 
on 29th March, 2019). Details pertaining to their remuneraƟon have been provided in the Extract of Annual Return annexed 
hereto and forming part of this Report.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

Pursuant to various requirements under the Act and the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Board of Directors has consƟtuted various 
commiƩees such as Audit CommiƩee, NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee, 
Corporate Social Responsibility CommiƩee and Share Transfer CommiƩee. The details of composiƟon, terms of reference, 
etc., pertaining to these commiƩees are menƟoned in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

All recommendaƟons made by the Audit CommiƩee during the year were accepted by the Board.
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WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY:

The Company has in place a Whistleblower Policy to deal with unethical behavior, vicƟmizaƟon, fraud and other grievances 
or concerns, if any. The aforemenƟoned whistleblower policy is available on the Company’s website at the following web-
link: hƩps://www.webelsolar.com/investor-corner/corporate-governance. 

POLICY ON SELECTION AND REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

Based on the recommendaƟon of the NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee, the Policy on SelecƟon & RemuneraƟon 
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees was revised and adopted by the Board of Directors at their 
meeƟng held on 21.08.2017. The said policy was made applicable w.e.f 01.10.2017.

BOARD EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and RegulaƟon 17 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Board has carried out the evaluaƟon 
of its own performance and that of its CommiƩees as well as evaluaƟon of performance of the individual directors. The 
manner in which the evaluaƟon has been carried out has been explained in the Corporate Governance Report aƩached 
to this Report. 

LISTING OF SECURITIES IN STOCK EXCHANGES

The shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

Outstanding FCCBs of the Company are listed on Singapore Stock Exchange in whole sale market.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING
In terms of the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading) RegulaƟons, 1992 your Company 
has adopted the Code of Conduct for PrevenƟon of Insider Trading, approved by Board of Directors, inter alia, prohibits 
trading in securiƟes of the Company by Directors and employees on the basis of unpublished price sensiƟve informaƟon 
in relaƟon to the Company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO
InformaƟon in accordance with the provisions of SecƟon 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding conservaƟon of energy, technology absorpƟon, foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo are given in the “Annexure B”, which forms part of this report.
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:
The policy on risk assessment and minimizaƟon procedures as laid down by the Board are periodically reviewed by the 
Audit CommiƩee and the Board. The policy facilitates in idenƟficaƟon of risks at appropriate Ɵme and ensures necessary 
steps to be taken to miƟgate the risks. Brief details of risks and concerns are given in the Management Discussion and 
Analysis Report.
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return in form MGT – 9 is given in “Annexure C” to the Report. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS:

There are no material changes and commitments affecƟng the financial posiƟon of the Company between the end of the 
financial year i.e. 31st March, 2019 and the date of this Report.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS:

There are no significant/ material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunals which would impact the going 
concern status of the Company and its future operaƟons.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements. During the year, 
such controls were reviewed and no reportable material weakness was observed

ANNUAL CSR REPORT

The Company has formed CSR CommiƩee at the end of the financial year 2016-17. Since there was loss in the profit and 
loss account company could not spend any amount for CSR acƟviƟes.
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MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The informaƟon required pursuant to SecƟon 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of managerial personnel and employees of the Company is aƩached 
herewith in “Annexure D”.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In line with the requirements of Companies Act,2013 and LisƟng RegulaƟons, your company has formulated a Policy 
on Related Party TransacƟons which is also available on the Company’s website at hƩps://www.webelsolar.com/
investorscorner/corpoarte-governance. The policy intends to ensure that proper reporƟng, approval and disclosure 
processes are in place for all the transacƟon between the Company and Related ParƟes.

All related party TransacƟons are in place before the Audit CommiƩee for review and approval. All related party transacƟons 
that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of the business. 
There are no materially significant related party transacƟons made by the Company with promoters, key managerial 
personnel or other designated persons which may have potenƟal conflict with interest of the Company at large. Necessary 
disclosure regarding transacƟons with related parƟes has been made in the Notes to the Audited Accounts.

All related party transacƟons entered during the year were in ordinary course of the business and at arm’s length basis. No 
material related party transacƟons, i.e. transacƟons exceeding 10% of the annual consolidated turnover as per the latest 
audited financial statement, were entered during the year by our company. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party 
transacƟons as required under secƟon 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act,2013, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GURANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

The Company has not given any Loan, Guarantee or made any investments or provided any security   in violaƟon of secƟon 
186 of Companies Act, 2013.

STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY

Green energy in India is a growing industry and GOI is giving full support to the Industry. Your company expects to uƟlize 
its full capacity in the financial Year 2019-2020. There is no loan from banks on the balance sheet of the company except 
one loan from ARC.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Maintaining high standards of Corporate Governance has been fundamental to the business of the company since its 
incepƟon. A separate report on Corporate Governance along with a cerƟficate from the Auditors of the Company regarding 
Compliance of CondiƟons of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated under LisƟng RegulaƟons is annexed in Annexure E, 
which forms part of this report. A cerƟficate of CFO of the company in terms of LisƟng RegulaƟons, inter alia, confirming 
the correctness of financial statements and cash flow statements, adequacy of internal control measures is also annexed. 
The extract of annual return in Form MGT-9 as required under secƟon 92(3) of the Companies Act and Rule 12 of the 
companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules,2014 is appended as an Annexure to this Annual Report.
SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE

As Your Company has in place a formal policy for prevenƟon of sexual harassment of its employees at workplace. During 
the year, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon 
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
We, the Directors of the Company, hereby confirm that, pursuant to provisions of secƟon 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, in respect of financial year under review:

i) In the preparaƟon of the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, the applicable accounƟng 
standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

ii) We have selected such accounƟng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and esƟmates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year as at 31st March, 2019 and of the Profits of the Company for that period;
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iii) We have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng, and detecƟng 
fraud and other irregulariƟes; and

iv) We have prepared the annual accounts on a “going concern” basis.

v) We have laid down internal financial controls for the Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate 
and operaƟng effecƟvely.

vi) We have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and such systems 
were adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
The directors place on record their deep appreciaƟon to employees at all levels for their hard work, dedicaƟon and 
commitment towards their duty leading to cordial industrial relaƟons.
The board places on record its appreciaƟon for the support and co-operaƟon the company has been receiving from its 
suppliers, distributors, retailers, business partners and others associated with it as its trading partners. The company looks 
upon them as partners in its progress and has shared with them the rewards of the growth.
The Board of Directors take this opportunity to place on record its deep sense of graƟtude for the conƟnued support, 
assistance and co-operaƟon received from the all the shareholder, Customers, Vendors, Government AuthoriƟes and 
Banks.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,
For WEBSOL ENERGY SYSTEM LIMITED

 Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 29th August 2019 S. L. Agarwal D. Sethia
Place : Kolkata (Managing Director) Independent Director
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Annexure - A
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2019

[Pursuant to secƟon 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon 
Personnel) Rules, 2014]

 
The Members, 
WEBSOL ENERGY SYSTEM LIMITED
Plot No. 849, Block P 48 Pramatha Choudhary Sarani
2nd Floor New Alipore , Kolkata

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
pracƟces by Websol Energy System Limited (hereinaŌer called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluaƟng the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verificaƟon of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company 
and also the informaƟon provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representaƟves during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 
2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporƟng made hereinaŌer: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Websol Energy System 
Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of: 

(i)  The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under; 

(ii)  The SecuriƟes Contracts (RegulaƟon) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

(iii)  The Depositories Act, 1996 and the RegulaƟons and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulaƟons made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v)  The following RegulaƟons and Guidelines prescribed under the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):- 

 (a) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (SubstanƟal AcquisiƟon of Shares and Takeovers) RegulaƟons, 2011; 

 (b) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (ProhibiƟon of Insider Trading)  RegulaƟons, 1992; 

 (c) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2009; 

 (d) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock OpƟon Scheme and   Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 
1999;  

 (e) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Issue and LisƟng of Debt SecuriƟes)   RegulaƟons, 2008;      

 (f) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) RegulaƟons, 1993 regarding the 
Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 (g) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (DelisƟng of Equity Shares) RegulaƟons, 2009; and

 (h) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of SecuriƟes) RegulaƟons, 1998; 

 (i) The SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟon and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.

(vi) We further report that aŌer considering the compliance system prevailing in the Company, and aŌer carrying out test checks of the 
relevant records and documents maintained by the Company, it has complied with the following laws that are applicable specifically 
to the Company : 

  (a) InformaƟon Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made there under,

 (b) Special Economic Zone Act, 2005 and rules made there under
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 (c) PolluƟon PrevenƟon Act

 (d) Clean Water Act

 (e) Clean Air Act

 (f) Noise Control Act

 (g) NaƟonal Renewable Energy Act, 2015 etc 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 (i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The InsƟtute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect to Board MeeƟngs & General MeeƟngs. 

 (ii)  The LisƟng Agreement entered into by the Company with NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Limited as well as with BSE Ltd.

 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, RegulaƟons, Guidelines, Standards, 
etc. menƟoned above expect to the extent as menƟoned below:

1. The NominaƟon & RemuneraƟon CommiƩee was not properly consƟtuted, the Company appointed an Non ExecuƟve Independent 
Director on 14th November, 2018 thereby meeƟng the requirement of the Act.

2. The Company has not paid the lisƟng fees to the BSE Ltd for the F.Y 2018-19. 

 We further report that:

  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly consƟtuted with proper balance of ExecuƟve Directors, Non-ExecuƟve Directors and 
Independent Directors. The changes in the composiƟon of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review 
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 Adequate noƟce is given to all directors to schedule the Board MeeƟngs which were sent at least seven days in advance, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informaƟon and clarificaƟons 
on the agenda items before the meeƟng and for meaningful parƟcipaƟon at the meeƟng. 

 Majority decisions is carried through at the MeeƟngs of the Board and CommiƩees and the dissenƟng members’ views, if any,  are 
captured and recorded as part of the minutes of respecƟve meeƟngs. 

 We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operaƟons of 
the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons and guidelines. 

 We further report that during the audit period the Company has issued 47,02,667 equity shares in lieu of conversion of FCCB’s 
and no other specific event has happened and / or  no other acƟon has been taken by the Company having a major bearing on the 
company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulaƟons, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above. 

Place: Kolkata                               For AL & Associates
Date: 26th  August, 2019         (PracƟcing Company Secretaries)
         
           Sd/-
 PriƟ LakhoƟa
         ACS No.21970
         CP No.  12790

Note: This report is to be read with our leƩer of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part 
of this report.
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Annexure A
(to the Secretarial Audit Report of Websol Energy System Limited for the FYE March 31,2019)

To,
The Members
M/s Websol Energy System Limited
Plot No. 849, Block P 48 Pramatha Choudhary Sarani
2nd Floor New Alipore , Kolkata

Our report of even date is to be read along with this leƩer.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit pracƟces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verificaƟon was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and pracƟces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3.  We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representaƟon about the compliance of laws, rules and regulaƟons and 
happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulaƟons, standards is the responsibility of 
management. Our examinaƟon was limited to the verificaƟon of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effecƟveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Kolkata                               For AL & Associates
Date: 26th  August, 2019         (PracƟcing Company Secretaries)
         
           Sd/-
 PriƟ LakhoƟa
         ACS No.21970
         CP No.  12790
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“ANNEXURE – B” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
InformaƟon under SecƟon 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2019.

A.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
 The business unit conƟnued their efforts to improve energy usage efficiencies and increase the share of renewable 

energy. The Company has taken adequate steps to ensure comparaƟvely low energy consumpƟon, following steps 
were taken:

 a) Time to Ɵme replacement of old machinery with new machines having more efficient and cost effecƟve features.

 b) InstallaƟon of Solar Power Project is being done at plant.

 c) ConƟnuous use of CFL & LED lights is being encouraged.

B.  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

1. Research and Development (R & D)

 No specific expenditure is made under the head R & D, constant development efforts are made to increase the 
efficiency and for cost reducƟon.

2. Technology AbsorpƟon, AdopƟon & InnovaƟon

 The Company has fully absorbed the technology to manufacture Solar Photovoltaic Cells and   Modules.

3. InformaƟon regarding Imported Technology 

(a) Technology Imported The technology to manufacture Solar Photovoltaic Cells and 
Modules has been imported from Helios Technology, Italy.

(b) Year of Import 1994-1995.
(c) Has technology been fully absorbed Yes, fully absorbed.
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken 
place, reasons therefore and future plan of acƟon.

Not Applicable.

C.  FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO   (Rs. In Lakh)

 ParƟculars For the year 
2018-19

For the year 
2017-18

(a) Foreign Exchange earnings of the Company 9.51 783.28
(b) Foreign Exchange Outgo

(i) C. I. F. value of import of Raw Materials, Components, Spare 
parts and Capital Goods

(ii) Others

6467.82

0.00

14990.68

1.88
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ANNEXURE – “C” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
for the year ended 31.03.2019

Pursuant to  SecƟon 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company 
(Management & AdministraƟon ) Rules,  2014.

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

i. CIN L29307WB1990PLC048350
ii. RegistraƟon Date 02-08-1990
iii. Name of the Company Websol Energy System Limited
iv. Category/Sub-category of the 

Company
Electrial Products

v. Address of the Registered office
 & contact details

 Plot No. 849, Block P, 48 Pramatha Chaudhary Sarani 2nd Floor 
New Alipore, Kolkata - 700053

vi. Whether listed company YES
vii. Name, Address & contact details of 

the Registrar  & Transfer Agent, if any.
M/s. R&D Infotech Pvt. Ltd registered office at 7A, Beltala Road, 1st 
Floor Kolkata -700 026, Phone: +91 – 33 – 2419-2641/42 Fax : +91 – 
33 – 2476-1657 Email :  rd.infotech@vsnl.net.

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

SI.
No.

Name and DescripƟon of 
main products / services

NIC Code of the 
Product /service

% to total turnover 
of the company

1. Solar Photovoltaic & Cells and Modules 85414011 100

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

 There are no Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year
[As on 31-March-2018]

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
[As on 31-March-2019]

% 
Change
during

the year    
Demat Physical Total % of total 

shares 
Demat Physical Total % of total 

shares 
A. Promoters

(1) Indian
a) Individual/ HUF 19,29,748.00     -   19,29,748.00 7.23%     20,83,248.00  -      20,83,248.00 7.18% -0.06%
b) Central Govt   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
c) State Govt(s)   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
d) Bodies Corp. 55,19,674.00     -   55,19,674.00 20.69%     54,19,674.00  -      54,19,674.00 18.67% -2.02%
e) Banks / FI   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
f) Any other   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A)

74,49,422.00     -   74,49,422.00 27.93%     75,02,922.00  -      75,02,922.00 25.85% -2.08%
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B. Public Shareholding
1. InsƟtuƟons
a) Mutual Funds   -    7,600.00    7,600.00 0.03%  -   6,200.00  6,200.00 0.02% -0.01%
b) Banks / FI    1,32,735.00     -     1,32,735.00 0.50% 26,307.00  -       26,307.00 0.09% -0.41%
c) Central Govt   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
d) State Govt(s)   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
e) Venture Capital Funds   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
f) Insurance Companies   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
g) FIIs    3,19,898.00     -     3,19,898.00 1.20%     19,96,923.00  -      19,96,923.00 6.88% 5.68%
h) Foreign Venture 
Capital Funds

  -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%

i) Others (specify)   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(1):-    4,52,633.00  7,600.00   4,60,233.00 1.73%     20,23,230.00 6,200.00    20,29,430.00 6.99% 5.27%
2. Non-InsƟtuƟons
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian 69,08,516.00     -   69,08,516.00 25.90%     34,38,897.00  -      34,38,897.00 11.85% -14.05%
ii) Overseas   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
b) Individuals
i) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
upto Rs. 1 lakh

99,84,529.00 3,47,812.00  1,03,32,341.00 38.73%  1,03,06,209.00  -       1,03,06,209.00 35.51% -3.23%

ii) Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

15,25,221.00     -   15,25,221.00 5.72%     57,49,609.00  -      57,49,609.00 19.81% 14.09%

c) Director RelaƟon   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
c) Others (specify)
Non Resident Indians   -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%
Overseas Corporate 
Bodies

  -       -    -   0.00%  -    -       -   0.00% 0.00%

Foreign NaƟonals -     -       -   0.00%     -       -     -   0.00% 0.00%
Clearing Members -     -       -   0.00%     -   -     -   0.00% 0.00%
Trusts -     -       -   0.00%     -          -     -   0.00% 0.00%
Foreign Bodies - D R -     -       -   0.00%     -           -     -   0.00% 0.00%
Sub-total (B)(2):-  1,84,18,266.00 3,47,812.00 1,87,66,078.00 70.35% 1,94,94,715.00     -       1,94,94,715.00 67.16% -3.19%
Total Public 
Shareholding (B)=(B)
(1)+ (B)(2)

1,88,70,899.00 3,55,412.00 1,92,26,311.00 72.07% 2,15,17,945.00 6,200.00     2,15,24,145.00 74.15% 2.08%

C. Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

 -  -  - 0.00%  -  -  - 0.00% 0.00%

Grand Total (A+B+C) 2,63,20,321.00 3,55,412.00 2,66,75,733.00 100.00% 2,90,20,867.00 6,200.00 2,90,27,067.00 100.00% 0.00%

ii)  Shareholding of Promoters 

Sl. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the 
end of the year

% 
change 
in share 
holding 
during 

the year

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

%of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 SOHAN LAL AGARWAL 18,73,108.00 7.02% 0.00% 20,69,208.00 7.13% 0.00% 0.11%
2 RAJ KUMARI AGARWAL  20.00 0.00% 0.00%  20.00 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
3 CHIRANJI LALL AGARWAL  14,020.00 0.06% 0.00%  14,020.00 0.05% 0.00% -0.01%
4 S L INDUSTRIES PVT LTD 55,19,674.00 20.69% 20.62% 54,19,674.00 18.67% 71.96% -2.02%
5 INDERMANI DEVI AGARWAL  42,600.00 0.16% 0.00%  -   0.00% 0.00% -0.16%

Total 74,49,422.00 27.93% 20.62% 75,02,922.00 25.85% 71.96% -2.08%
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* NegaƟve change in shareholding is for the reason of equity shares to FCCB holders. There were no sale of shares by the promoters 
of the Company except for Mrs. Indermani Devi Agarwal who has giŌed her shares to her son, Mr. S L Agarwal. Mr. S L Agarwal has 
bought 1,91,000 (including 42,600 equity shares received as giŌ) equity shares of the Company during the year.

(iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Specify, if there is no change)

 During the Year, Mr. S L Agarwal (Promoter) has acquired 1,91,100 Equity Shares of the Company on various dates as menƟoned in 
the below table:

Date No. of shares
07.05.2018*                42,600 
20.07.2018                10,000 
20.08.2018                50,000 
21.09.2018                28,500 
16.10.2018                10,000 
26.11.2018                10,000 
27.11.2018                  9,960 
28.11.2018                10,040 
15.01.2019                25,000 

Total            1,96,100 

 * Received as giŌ from her mother, Mrs. Indermani Devi Agarwal.

(iv)  Shareholding PaƩern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year, i.e. 

01.04.2018

Shareholding at the end of the 
year, i.e. 31.03.2019

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
1 INDIA MAX INVESTMENT FUND LIMITED

Date Reason
At the beginning of the year             -   0.00%

18-Apr-18 BUY 23,51,334.00 8.10%   23,51,334.00 8.10%
29-Jun-18 SELL     (3,341.00) -0.01%   23,47,993.00 8.09%
13-Jul-18 SELL   (73,183.00) -0.25% 22,74,810.00 7.84%

10-Aug-18 SELL (1,55,330.00) -0.54%   21,19,480.00 7.30%
24-Aug-18 SELL (1,50,000.00) -0.52% 19,69,480.00 6.78%
9-Nov-18 SELL (19,126.00) -0.07%   19,50,354.00 6.72%

16-Nov-18 SELL (59,393.00) -0.20% 18,90,961.00 6.51%
23-Nov-18 SELL (6,473.00) -0.02% 18,84,488.00 6.49%
30-Nov-18 SELL (60,730.00) -0.21% 18,23,758.00 6.28%
29-Mar-19 SELL (1,46,733.00) -0.51% 16,77,025.00 5.78%

Closing Balance:  16,77,025.00 5.78%
2 RADISON TIEUP PRIVATE LIMITED

Date Reason
At the beginning of the year 6,19,865.00 2.14%

15-Mar-19 SELL (15,000.00) -0.05% 6,04,865.00 2.09%

Closing Balance:      6,04,865.00 2.09%
3 GOLDMAN SACHS INVESTMENTS

Date Reason
At the beginning of the year 3,19,848.00 1.10% 3,19,848.00 1.10%
Closing Balance:  3,19,848.00 1.10%
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Sl. 
No.

Name of the Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year, i.e. 

01.04.2018

Shareholding at the end of the 
year, i.e. 31.03.2019

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
4 BINITA H DOSHI

Date Reason
At the beginning of the year               -   0.00%

11-Jan-19 BUY   75,737.00 0.26% 75,737.00 0.26%
18-Jan-19 BUY 11,763.00 0.04% 87,500.00 0.30%
8-Feb-19 BUY 2,09,317.00 0.72% 2,96,817.00 1.02%

15-Feb-19 BUY     25.00 0.00% 2,96,842.00 1.02%
Closing Balance:  2,96,842.00 1.02%

5 NISHU FINLEASE PRIVATE LIMITED
Date Reason

At the beginning of the year -   0.00%
28-Mar-19 BUY 2,80,000.00 0.96% 2,80,000.00 0.96%

Closing Balance:  2,80,000.00 0.96%
6 THE INDIAMAN FUND (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

Date Reason
At the beginning of the year 2,01,250.00 0.69% 2,01,250.00 0.69%
Closing Balance:  2,01,250.00 0.69%

7 P  JANARDHANAN
Date Reason

At the beginning of the year               -   0.00%
29-Jun-18 BUY 57,444.00 0.20% 57,444.00 0.20%
3-Aug-18 BUY 24,431.00 0.08% 81,875.00 0.28%
19-Oct-18 SELL (3,000.00) -0.01% 78,875.00 0.27%
26-Oct-18 BUY 5,997.00 0.02% 84,872.00 0.29%
2-Nov-18 BUY 3,000.00 0.01% 87,872.00 0.30%

16-Nov-18 BUY 7,000.00 0.02% 94,872.00 0.33%
7-Dec-18 BUY 65,128.00 0.22% 1,60,000.00 0.55%
25-Jan-19 BUY 7,000.00 0.02% 1,67,000.00 0.58%
1-Feb-19 BUY 10,000.00 0.03% 1,77,000.00 0.61%
8-Feb-19 SELL (10,000.00) -0.03% 1,67,000.00 0.58%

15-Feb-19 BUY 3,000.00 0.01% 1,70,000.00 0.59%
22-Feb-19 BUY 4,000.00 0.01% 1,74,000.00 0.60%
1-Mar-19 BUY 6,000.00 0.02%    1,80,000.00 0.62%
8-Mar-19 SELL     (9,000.00) -0.03% 1,71,000.00 0.59%

15-Mar-19 SELL (10,000.00) -0.03%     1,61,000.00 0.55%
22-Mar-19 BUY      11,000.00 0.04% 1,72,000.00 0.59%
29-Mar-19 BUY 11,000.00 0.04% 1,83,000.00 0.63%

Closing Balance:  1,83,000.00 0.63%
8 BMA WEALTH CREATORS LTD

Date Reason
At the beginning of the year -   0.00%

5-Oct-18 BUY 43,088.00 0.15% 43,088.00 0.15%
26-Oct-18 BUY    643.00 0.00% 43,731.00 0.15%
9-Nov-18 SELL (637.00) 0.00% 43,094.00 0.15%

16-Nov-18 SELL  (8,700.00) -0.03% 34,394.00 0.12%
30-Nov-18 BUY   1,84,400.00 0.64% 2,18,794.00 0.75%
7-Dec-18 SELL    (21,000.00) -0.07% 1,97,794.00 0.68%

21-Dec-18 SELL  (1,043.00) 0.00% 1,96,751.00 0.68%
1-Feb-19 SELL    (31,620.00) -0.11% 1,65,131.00 0.57%
8-Mar-19 SELL    (50.00) 0.00% 1,65,081.00 0.57%

22-Mar-19 SELL (260.00) 0.00% 1,64,821.00 0.57%
Closing Balance:  1,64,821.00 0.57%
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Sl. 
No.

Name of the Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year, i.e. 

01.04.2018

Shareholding at the end of the 
year, i.e. 31.03.2019

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
9 EDELWEISS CUSTODIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Date Reason
At the beginning of the year 1,34,492.00 0.46%

6-Apr-18 BUY  4,534.00 0.02% 1,39,026.00 0.48%
13-Apr-18 BUY  6,121.00 0.02% 1,45,147.00 0.50%
20-Apr-18 BUY     22,149.00 0.08% 1,67,296.00 0.58%
27-Apr-18 BUY 938.00 0.00% 1,68,234.00 0.58%
4-May-18 SELL     (6,730.00) -0.02% 1,61,504.00 0.56%

11-May-18 BUY     46,781.00 0.16% 2,08,285.00 0.72%
18-May-18 SELL     (5,582.00) -0.02% 2,02,703.00 0.70%
25-May-18 SELL  (70,637.00) -0.24% 1,32,066.00 0.45%
1-Jun-18 SELL  (1.00) 0.00% 1,32,065.00 0.45%
8-Jun-18 SELL  (19,556.00) -0.07% 1,12,509.00 0.39%

15-Jun-18 BUY  1,083.00 0.00% 1,13,592.00 0.39%
22-Jun-18 BUY 607.00 0.00% 1,14,199.00 0.39%
29-Jun-18 SELL   (809.00) 0.00% 1,13,390.00 0.39%
6-Jul-18 BUY  6,742.00 0.02% 1,20,132.00 0.41%

13-Jul-18 BUY  33.00 0.00% 1,20,165.00 0.41%
20-Jul-18 BUY  282.00 0.00% 1,20,447.00 0.41%
27-Jul-18 BUY 4,325.00 0.01% 1,24,772.00 0.43%
3-Aug-18 SELL  (213.00) 0.00% 1,24,559.00 0.43%

10-Aug-18 SELL (7,621.00) -0.03% 1,16,938.00 0.40%
17-Aug-18 SELL (1,002.00) 0.00% 1,15,936.00 0.40%
24-Aug-18 SELL (2,632.00) -0.01% 1,13,304.00 0.39%
31-Aug-18 BUY 59,947.00 0.21% 1,73,251.00 0.60%
7-Sep-18 SELL (1,49,534.00) -0.52%  23,717.00 0.08%

14-Sep-18 SELL (17,401.00) -0.06%   6,316.00 0.02%
21-Sep-18 BUY   2,100.00 0.01%   8,416.00 0.03%
28-Sep-18 BUY 6,806.00 0.02% 15,222.00 0.05%
5-Sep-18 SELL (5,521.00) -0.02%           9,701.00 0.03%
12-Oct-18 BUY 1,198.00 0.00% 10,899.00 0.04%
19-Oct-18 BUY 60.00 0.00% 10,959.00 0.04%
26-Oct-18 BUY   1,24,319.00 0.43% 1,35,278.00 0.47%
2-Nov-18 SELL    (65.00) 0.00% 1,35,213.00 0.47%
9-Nov-18 SELL  (1,500.00) -0.01% 1,33,713.00 0.46%

16-Nov-18 BUY    7,305.00 0.03% 1,41,018.00 0.49%
23-Nov-18 SELL    (36,927.00) -0.13% 1,04,091.00 0.36%
30-Nov-18 SELL  (2,000.00) -0.01% 1,02,091.00 0.35%
7-Dec-18 SELL (983.00) 0.00% 1,01,108.00 0.35%

14-Dec-18 BUY    1,000.00 0.00% 1,02,108.00 0.35%
18-Jan-19 SELL (250.00) 0.00% 1,01,858.00 0.35%
1-Feb-19 SELL  (8,700.00) -0.03% 93,158.00 0.32%
8-Feb-19 SELL  (2,585.00) -0.01% 90,573.00 0.31%

15-Feb-19 BUY   1,19,664.00 0.41% 2,10,237.00 0.72%
22-Feb-19 SELL  (1,054.00) 0.00% 2,09,183.00 0.72%
8-Mar-19 BUY    300.00 0.00% 2,09,483.00 0.72%

15-Mar-19 SELL    (52,531.00) -0.18% 1,56,952.00 0.54%
22-Mar-19 BUY    1,400.00 0.00% 1,58,352.00 0.55%
29-Mar-19 SELL  (2,784.00) -0.01% 1,55,568.00 0.54%

Closing Balance:  1,55,568.00 0.54%
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Sl. 
No.

Name of the Shareholders Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year, i.e. 

01.04.2018

Shareholding at the end of the 
year, i.e. 31.03.2019

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
10 BMA WEALTH CREATORS LTD

Date Reason
At the beginning of the year  15,600.00 0.05%

11-Jan-19 BUY 20.00 0.00% 15,620.00 0.05%
8-Feb-19 BUY   1,41,922.00 0.49% 1,57,542.00 0.54%

15-Feb-19 BUY   7,891.00 0.03% 1,65,433.00 0.57%
22-Feb-19 BUY 10,895.00 0.04% 1,76,328.00 0.61%
29-Mar-19 SELL   (24,211.00) -0.08% 1,52,117.00 0.52%

Closing Balance:      1,52,117.00 0.52%
(v)  Shareholding of Directors and KMP

SI.
No.

For each of Top 10 shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year, i.e. 01.04.2018

Shareholding at the end of the 
year, i.e. 31.03.2019

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 

Company
SOHAN LAL AGARWAL (MANAGING DIRECTOR)
At The Beginning Of The Year  18,73,108.00 6.45%
Bought During The Year*  1,96,100.00 0.68%  20,69,208.00 7.13%
Sold During The Year  -   0.00%  20,69,208.00 7.13%
At the End of The Year  20,69,208.00 7.13%

V. INDEBTEDNESS

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
 excluding deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

Indebtness at the beginning of the financial 
year
i)   Principal Amount  4,918.12  2,503.59    -  7,421.71 
ii)  Interest due but not paid  17.66  59.16    -  76.82 
iii) Interest accrued but not due    -    -    -    - 
Total (i+ ii + iii)  4,935.78  2,562.75    -  7,498.53 
Change in Indebtedness during the financial 
year 
AddiƟon    -  947.82    -  947.82 
ReducƟon (1,409.65) (10.57)    - (1,420.22) 
Net Change (1,409.65)  937.25    - (472.40) 
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i)   Principal Amount  3,489.98  3,381.65    -  6,871.63 
ii)  Interest due but not paid    36.15    118.35    -  154.50   
iii) Interest accrued but not due    -    -    -    - 
Total (i + ii + iii)  3,526.13  3,500.00  7,026.13 
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VI.    REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL                                  

 A.  RemuneraƟon to Managing Director, Whole-Ɵme Directors and/or Manager 

Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount

1 Gross salary Mr. S L Agarwal (MD) Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala (WTD)
(a) Salary as per provisions contained 
in secƟon 17(1) of the Income Tax, 
1961

                                                        
79.83 

                                                      
13.77 

                                                     
93.60 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 
Income tax Act, 1961

                                                               
-   

                                                             
-   

                                                               
-   

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under 
secƟon 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961

                                                               
-   

                                                             
-   

                                                               
-   

2 Stock opƟon                              -                                             -                               -   
3 Sweat Equity                                 -                                                 -                              -   
4 Commission as % of profit                            -                                      -                              -   
5 Others (specify)

Bonus, LTA, Medical .04 .04 .08
Total (A)                      79.87                                13.81               93.68 

 B.  Remuneration to Directors other than MD/Manager/WTD:

Sl.
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Name of Diector

Mr. D. Sethia Mr. P.Kaushik Mr. R. Ojha*

1. Independent Directors

(a) Fee for aƩending board commiƩee meeƟngs  1.62  1.62  0.40 

(b) Commission  -    -    -   

(c ) Others, please specify  -    -    -   
Total (1)  1.62  1.62  0.40 

2. Other Non ExecuƟve Directors  NIL  NIL  NIL 
(a) Fee for aƩending board commiƩee meeƟngs

(b) Commission
(c ) Others, please specify.
Total (2)  -    -    -   
Total (B)=(1+2)  1.62  1.62  0.40 
Total Managerial RemuneraƟon
Overall Cieling as per the Act.

 * Appointed w.e.f. 14.11.2018
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars of RemuneraƟon Key Managerial Personnel Total

CFO Company 
Secretary

1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in secƟon 17(1) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

 -    2.04  2.04 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961

 -    -    -   

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under secƟon 17(3) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

 -    -    -   

2 Stock OpƟon  -    -    -   
3 Sweat Equity  -    -    -   
4 Commission as % of profit  -    -    -   
5 Others, please specify

Bonus, LTA, Medical, etc.  -    0.15  0.15 
Total (C)  -    2.19  2.19 

* Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala who is whole Ɵme director of the company is also given addiƟonal responsibility of CFO of the company.
 During the year, Mrs. Sweta Biyani (Company Secretary) resigned from her post on 29.03.2019.

VII.  PENTALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

 There were no penalties/punishment/compounding of off ences for the breach of any sections of Companies Act against the Company or its 
Directors or other offi cers in default, if any, during the year.
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ANNEXURE – “D” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The informaƟon required under SecƟon 197 of the Act read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

a. The raƟo of the remuneraƟon of each director to the median remuneraƟon of the employees of the Company for the financial 
year:

ExecuƟve Director RaƟo to Median RemuneraƟon
Mr. S L AGARWAL 54.63
Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala 11.42
Independent Director
Mr. Dharmendra Sethia 0.98
Mr. Prateek Kaushik 0.98
Mr. Ritesh Ojha (Joined from 14.11.2018) 0.24

b. The percentage increase in remuneraƟon of each Director, Chief ExecuƟve Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary in 
the Financial Year:

Directors, Chief ExecuƟve Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary

% increase in remuneraƟon in the Financial year

Mr.  S L Agarwal NIL
Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala NIL
Mrs. Sweta Biyani                                                                      NIL

c. The percentage increase in the median remuneraƟon of employees in the Financial year: NIL

d. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:    265

e. The explanaƟon on the relaƟonship between average increase in remuneraƟon and Company performance:

 On an average employees received an annual increase of NIL because of the weak financial performance during the financial year 
2018-19. Individual increase varied from 5 to 15%. Increase is always trend with industry norms and individual employee’s appraisal 
is based on organizaƟonal performance apart from individual performance.

f. Comparison of the remuneraƟon of the key managerial personnel against the performance of the Company:

Aggregate remuneraƟon of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in F Y 2018-19 (Rs in lakh) 111.31
Revenue (Rs. in lakh) 6855.84
RemuneraƟon of KMPs (as % of revenue) 1.62
Profit before Tax (PBT) (Rs. in lakh) (2894.55)
RemuneraƟon of KMP (as % of PBT) NA

g. VariaƟons in the market capitalizaƟon of the Company, price earnings raƟo as at the closing date of the current financial year and 
previous financial year: Please refer separate sheet. – No Sheet aƩached

          ParƟculars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 % change
Market CapitalizaƟon (Rs. Crores) 125.24 235.41 -5.26%
Price Earnings RaƟo (4.49) 83.25 81.16%

h. Public offer:

 No Public offer during the Financial Year 2018-19

i. Average percenƟle increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial 
year and its comparison with the percenƟle increase in the managerial remuneraƟon and jusƟficaƟon thereof and point out if 
there are any excepƟonal circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneraƟon: 
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j. Comparison of each remuneraƟon of the key managerial personnel against the performance of the Company:

ParƟculars Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala Mrs. Sweta Biyani
RemuneraƟon in F.Y. 2018-19 (Rs. in lakh) 18.86 2.19
Revenue (Rs. in lakh) 6855.84 6855.84
RemuneraƟon as % of revenue 0.28 0.03
Profit before Tax (PBT) (Rs. in lakh) (2894.55) (2894.55)
RemuneraƟon  (as % of  PBT) NA NA

k. The key parameters for any variable component of remuneraƟon availed by the directors:  NA

l. The raƟo of the remuneraƟon of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive remuneraƟon 
in excess of the highest paid director during the year: NA

m. AffirmaƟon that the remuneraƟon is as per the remuneraƟon policy of the Company:

The Company affirms remuneraƟon is as per the remuneraƟon policy of the Company.
Statement of ParƟculars of Employees as required under SecƟon 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and (3) of 
the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended)

Name DesignaƟon, 
Nature of DuƟes

RemuneraƟon 
(Rs.)

QualificaƟon 
and experience 

(years)

Age (years) Date of 
commencement of 

employment

Last employer, 
designaƟon

Employed throughout the financial year 2018-19
Mr. S L Agarwal Managing 

Director
90,25,906 B.COM(HONS) 73 12-02-1982 -

Employed for part of the financial year 2018-19 (If any employee was not employed for full year, then details of that employees 
should be disclosed here if his / her remuneraƟon was more than Rs. 5 lakhs per month)

N.A
Notes:

1. RemuneraƟon includes salary, company’s contribuƟons to provident and other funds, bonus, allowances and monetary value of 
perquisites.

2. Except the appointment of directors, all appointments are non-contractual and terminable by noƟce on either side.

3. No employee is a relaƟve of any director of the Company.

4. None of the employees are covered under Rule 5(2)(ii) and (iii) of the Companies (Appointment and RemuneraƟon of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (as amended).k. Comparison of each remuneraƟon of the key managerial personnel against the performance 
of the Company.
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ANNEXURE “E” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY
  Websol’s principles of Corporate Governance are based Ɵmely, adequate and accurate informaƟon regarding its financial 

performance as well as leadership and governance of the company. At our company it is imperaƟve that our company’s affairs are 
managed in a fair and transparent manner. To ensure this the company has framed guidelines which ensures that the board will 
have the necessary authority and processes to review and evaluate the company’s operaƟons. Further these guidelines allow the 
board to make decisions that are independent of the management.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
 The Board of Directors of the Company has opƟmum combinaƟon of ExecuƟve & Non-ExecuƟve Directors and women Director. The 

Board MeeƟngs are usually held at the registered office of the Company. As on date the Board of Directors consists of five Directors. 
During the year ended 31st March 2019, 05 (Five) Board meeƟngs were held on 11.06.2018,14.08.2018, 31.08.2018, 14.11.2018, 
and 11.02.2019. AƩendance of each Director at the Board MeeƟng and Annual General MeeƟng and Number of other Directorship 
and Chairmanship / Membership of CommiƩee of each Director in various Companies are as follows:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the 
Director

Category AƩendance 
ParƟculars

No. of other 
directorship(s)1

No. of other Board 
CommiƩee Membership / 

Chairmanship2

Shareholding 
in the 

Company
Board Last 

AGM
CommiƩee 

Membership
CommiƩee 

Chairmanship
1. Mr. S.L. Agarwal ExecuƟve – Managing 

Director – Promoter
5 Yes - 1 - 7.13%

2. Mrs. Sima 
Jhunjhunwala

ExecuƟve – Whole Time 
Director & CFO

5 Yes - 2 1 NIL

3. Mr. D. Sethia Non-ExecuƟve Independent 
Director

5 Yes - 2 2 NIL

4. Mr. P. Kaushik Non-ExecuƟve Independent 
Director

5 No - 2 - NIL

5. Mr. R. Ojha Non-ExecuƟve Independent 
Director

2 No - 2 - NIL

1 The other Directorships held by Directors as menƟoned above, does not include Alternate Directorships and Directorships in foreign 
Companies, Companies registered under SecƟon 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Private Limited Companies.
2 Memberships / Chairmanships of only the Audit CommiƩees and Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievance CommiƩees in all Public Limited 
Companies have been considered.
None of the directors are related to each other as per the provisions of the Act.
The Company has held at least one Board MeeƟng in every three months and the maximum Ɵme gap between any two meeƟngs was 
not more than four months as sƟpulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) RegulaƟons, 2015 (as amended).
Code of Conduct:
The Company has framed Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior Management of the Company as per the provisions of LODR 
RegulaƟons. The Code of Conduct is displayed on the website of the Company, i.e. www.webelsolar.com. The Directors and Senior 
Management have affirmed compliance of the said Code of Conduct as on 31stMarch, 2019. A declaraƟon signed by the CFO in this 
regard is annexed at the end of this Report.
Independent Directors MeeƟng:
The Independent Directors met 3 (Three) Ɵmes during the year, i.e. on 11.06.2018, 31.08.2018 and 11.02.2019 without the presence 
of Non Independent Directors and members of the Management. At this meeƟngs, the Independent Directors inter alia evaluated the 
performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole, evaluated the performance of the Chairperson 
of the Board and discussed aspects relaƟng to the quality, quanƟty and Ɵmeliness of the flow of informaƟon between the Company, the 
Management and the Board.
Board Independence:
The Non-ExecuƟve Independent Directors fulfill the condiƟons of independence as laid down under SecƟon 149 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rules made hereunder and meet the criteria laid down by SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 
2015.
The appointment of the Independent Director is considered by the RemuneraƟon CommiƩee aŌer taking into account skill, experience 
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and standing in their respecƟve field or profession. The Board thereaŌer considers the CommiƩee’s decision and takes suitable acƟon.
Every Independent director at the first meeƟng of the Board held every year provides a declaraƟon regarding his independence which 
is then taken into record by the Company.
3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:
 The terms of reference of the Audit CommiƩee are as per the guidelines set out in the LisƟng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges 

read with SecƟon 117 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 Presently, the CommiƩee Comprises of four members - one ExecuƟve Director i.e. Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala and three Non-ExecuƟve 

Directors viz. Mr. D. Sethia, Mr. P. Kaushik and Mr. R. Ojha (w.e.f. 14.11.2018). All the members of the Audit CommiƩee are financially 
literate and one member is accounƟng related/ financial management experƟse. The Company Secretary of the Company acted as 
the Secretary to the Audit CommiƩee and Mr. D. Sethia acted as chairperson to the Audit CommiƩee.

 The Audit CommiƩee is entrusted with review of quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, review 
of observaƟons of auditors and to ensure compliance of internal control systems, authority for invesƟgaƟon and access to full 
informaƟon and external professional advice for discharge of the funcƟons delegated to the CommiƩee by the Board. The role of 
Audit CommiƩee, inter alia, includes:

 a) Review of the Company’s financial reporƟng process, the financial statements and financial/risk management policies;
 b) Reviewing changes if any in accounƟng policies and pracƟces and reasons for the same;
 c) Review of observaƟons of auditors;
 d) Review of the adequacy of the internal control systems;
 e) Discussions with the management and the external auditors, the audit plan for the financial year and joint post-audit review 

of the same.
During the year under review 05 (five) Audit CommiƩee meeƟngs were held on11.06.2018, 14.08.2018, 31.08.2018, 14.11.2018 and 
11.02.2019.
The details of the aƩendance of the members are as follows:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Member Category No. of MeeƟngs 
AƩended

1. Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala Whole Time Director and CFO 5
2. Mr. D. Sethia Chairman and Independent Directors 5
3. Mr. P. Kaushik Independent Director 5
4. Mr. R. Ojha Independent Director 2

The Chairman of the Audit CommiƩee was present at the last Annual General MeeƟng of the Company.
4. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
 Presently, the CommiƩee Comprises of three members - Non-ExecuƟve Directors viz. Mr. D. Sethia, Mr. P. Kaushik and Mr. R. Ojha 

(w.e.f. 14.11.2018). The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the CommiƩee and Mr. D. Sethia acted as 
chairperson to the CommiƩee.

 Following are the terms of reference of such CommiƩee:
 a) To idenƟfy persons, who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance 

with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board their appointment and/ or removal.
 b) To carry out evaluaƟon of every Director’s performance
 c) To formulate the criteria for determining qualificaƟons, posiƟve aƩributes and independence of a Director, and recommend to 

the Board a policy, relaƟng to the remuneraƟon for the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.
 d) To formulate the criteria for evaluaƟon of Independent Directors and the Board.
 e) To devise a policy on Board diversity.
 f) To review and approve/recommend remuneraƟon for the Whole-Time Director designated as Chairman & Managing Director 

of the Company.
 g) To perform such funcƟons as detailed in the NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee in accordance with Schedule IV relaƟng 

to Code for Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013.
 h) To discharge such other funcƟons as may be delegated to the CommiƩee by the Board from Ɵme to Ɵme.
During the year under review, 02 (Two) NominaƟon and RemuneraƟon CommiƩee meeƟngs were held on 11.06.2018 and 11.02.2019. 
All the members of the CommiƩee were present on the said meeƟng dates.
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Performance EvaluaƟon of Independent Directors:
A. Performance EvaluaƟon Parameters:
 i) Statutory DuƟes: Perform the duƟes specified in SecƟons 149, 166 and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013
 ii) Business ContribuƟon:
  a) Strive to ParƟcipate in all the Board and General MeeƟngs of the Company and the meeƟngs of the CommiƩees (where 

Member); and parƟcularly to have acƟve parƟcipaƟon in the following maƩers:
   1) Approval of financial statements (half yearly and annual)
   2) Approval of related party transacƟons, if any
  b) AcƟvely deliberate on and ensure adequate deliberaƟons are held with respect to the following maƩers:
   1) Business Strategy, Business Performance and Business Risk
   2) Related Party TransacƟons: Pay sufficient aƩenƟon and ensure that adequate deliberaƟons are held before approving 

related party transacƟon and assure them that the same are in the interest of the Company.
   3) Resource Management
  c) SaƟsfy them on the integrity of financial informaƟon and that financial controls and the system of risk management are 

robust and defensible
  d) Ascertain and ensure that company has an adequate and funcƟonal vigil mechanism and to ensure that the interest of a 

person who uses such mechanism is not prejudicially affected on account of such use.
 iii) Management’s Performance Monitoring and Feedback:
  a) AcƟvely monitor the performance of the Management on both tacƟcal and strategic plans
  b) Provide prompt feedback to Management on its performance vis-à-vis the Business Plan and provide guidance on course 

correcƟon
  c) ScruƟnize the performance of management in meeƟng the agreed goals and objecƟves and monitor the reporƟng of 

performance.
 iv) CommiƩee Management:
  a) AcƟvely parƟcipate in the CommiƩee that the Independent Director is responsible for
  b) The Chairperson of the CommiƩee would be accountable for the performance of the respecƟve CommiƩee. The Chairman 

of the CommiƩee will sign and submit the minutes of the MeeƟng of the CommiƩee promptly to the Board
  c) Arrive at threshold for closure of the repeat Audit observaƟons, if any and ensure meeƟng the Ɵmelines given for the 

closure of the Audit observaƟons
  d) Safeguard the interest of all the stakeholders, parƟcularly the minority shareholders. Also make efforts to balance the 

conflicƟng interest of the stakeholders.
 v) Disclosures, DocumentaƟon and ReporƟng Ensure that all the documents and disclosures that directors are required to provide 

to the Company under Companies Act, 2013 and under any other law applicable, if any and are reported within the Ɵmelines 
as per prescribed formats.

 vi) Financial and OperaƟonal Controls Familiarize themselves with the system of the Internal Financial Controls followed by the 
Company as menƟoned in the LisƟng agreement and SecƟon 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and saƟsfy themselves that such 
Internal Financial Controls are adequate and operaƟng effecƟvely.

 vii) Appointment, Removal, RemuneraƟon and EvaluaƟon of ExecuƟve Directors:
  a) Determine the levels of the remuneraƟon of ExecuƟve Directors, key managerial personnel and senior management.
  b) Have a prime role in appoinƟng and where necessary recommend removal of execuƟve directors, key managerial personnel 

and senior management and to see that the hiring as well as the removal is in line with the business requirement and as 
per the Policy adopted by the Company

  c) ObjecƟvely evaluate the performance of ExecuƟve Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel in view of Policy and or 
the Performance Appraisal parameters adopted by the Company for the ExecuƟve Directors and the Key Managerial 
Personnel

 viii) Integrity and maintenance of confidenƟality & independence of behavior and judgement
  a) He should uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity.
  b) He must have applied highest standard of confidenƟality and should not have disclosed to any person or company any 

confidenƟal informaƟon concerning the company and any group companies with which he comes into contact by virtue 
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of posiƟon of director.
  c) He should have refrained from any acƟon that would lead to loss of his independence and where circumstances arise 

which makes him lose his independence, he must have immediately informed the board
B. Performance EvaluaƟon Matrix for Independent Directors:
 i) Statutory duƟes and Business ContribuƟon AƩending all meeƟngs scheduled 100% AƩendance Sheet
  a) AcƟvely deliberate on the business strategy, business performance, risk, resource management Notable contribuƟons to 

be evaluated by Board Minutes of MeeƟng
  b) All the independent director should hold separate meeƟngs At least one meeƟng should be held in a year. Minutes of the 

meeƟng.
 ii) Management’s Performance Monitoring and Feedback
  a) AcƟvely monitor performance of the Management on both tacƟcal and strategic plans No major deviaƟons from TacƟcal 

and Strategic Plans Minutes of MeeƟng
  b) Provide prompt feedback to management on their performance vis-à-vis the plan and provide guidance on course 

correcƟon No major deviaƟons from TacƟcal and Strategic plans not flagged earlier Minutes of MeeƟng
 iii) CommiƩee Management
  a) AcƟvely parƟcipate in the commiƩee that you are responsible for
   a) 100% AƩendance
   b) Level of contribuƟon
  b) AƩendance Sheet
  c) Minutes of MeeƟng
  d) CommiƩee Chairman accountable for performance of the commiƩee No material deviaƟon from performance targets and 

deadlines CommiƩee Minutes
  e) Arrive at threshold for closure of repeat observaƟons and ensure meeƟng Ɵmelines Declare the threshold formally by 3rd 

repeat observaƟon and adhere to the deadline CommiƩee Minutes
 iv) Disclosures, DocumentaƟon and ReporƟng
  a) Ensure that all the disclosure required as per norms have been made and reported within the Ɵmelines as per prescribed 

No major observaƟons Audit Report formats
  b) Oversee documentaƟon No major observaƟons Audit Report
 v) Financial and OperaƟonal Controls
  a) AcƟvely saƟsfy themselves on integrity of financial data, financial controls and risk management frameworks
  b) 100% correct financial statements
  c) No major financial risk exposure due to oversight Minutes of MeeƟng
 vi) Appointment, Removal, RemuneraƟon and EvaluaƟon of ExecuƟve Directors
  a) Determine appropriate levels of remuneraƟon of ExecuƟve Directors 100% adherence to the norms Audit Report Minutes 

of N&R CommiƩee,
  b) Oversee the hiring of ExecuƟve Directors and Key Management Personnel in line with business requirement and as per 

governance norms ParƟcipate candidate interviews as far as possible Candidate evaluaƟon sheet
  c) ObjecƟvely evaluate performance of ExecuƟve Directors and some Key Management Personnel in view of set parameters 

Timely and periodic formal performance feedback Performance EvaluaƟon Sheet
 vii) Integrity and maintenance of confidenƟality & independence of behavior and judgement
  a) Uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity.
  b) Applied highest standard of confidenƟality.
  c) Refrained from any acƟon that would lead to loss of his independence and where circumstances arise which makes him 

lose his independence, he must have immediately informed the board. 100 % adherence to the performance criteria. As 
adopted by the Board of the Directors of the Company or person(s) authorized by the Board for the same.

C. EvaluaƟon Mechanism:
 i) The performance evaluaƟon of independent directors shall be done by the enƟre Board of Directors, excluding the director 

being evaluated.
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 ii) On the basis of the report of performance evaluaƟon, it shall be determined whether to extend or conƟnue the term of 
appointment of the independent director.

5. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:
 The remuneraƟon to the Managing Director and Whole-Time Director(s) are decided on the basis of following criteria:
 a) Industry trend;
 b) RemuneraƟon package in other comparable corporates;
 c) Job responsibiliƟes; and
 d) Company’s performance and individual’s key performance areas.
  a) ExecuƟve Directors: The Company follows the policy to fix the remuneraƟon of Managing and Whole Time Director(s) on 

the basis of their qualificaƟon, experience and past performance. The Agreement(s) with the WholeƟme Director(s) are 
contractual in nature. The Agreement(s) may be terminated at any Ɵme by either party giving noƟce in wriƟng without 
any cause. The details of remuneraƟon paid to the ExecuƟve director during financial year 2018 - 19 are given below:

(Rs. In Lakh)
Sl. 

No.
Name of the ExecuƟve 

Director
DesignaƟon Consolidated 

Salary
Perquisites 

& Other 
Benefits

Company’s ContribuƟon 
towards Provident Fund 

& Gratuity

Total

1. Mr. S.L. Agarwal Managing Director & CEO 79.82 5.65 4.79 90.26
2. Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala Whole Time Director & CFO 16.12 1.79 0.95 18.86

  b) Non-ExecuƟve Directors:The Non-ExecuƟve Directors are not paid any remuneraƟon except siƫng fees for aƩending the 
meeƟngs of the Board of Directors and CommiƩee thereof. The siƫng fees paid / payable to the Non-ExecuƟve directors is 
within the limits prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. The Company does not have any material pecuniary relaƟonship 
and transacƟon with its Non-ExecuƟve Directors. The details of siƫng fees paid / payable and shares held by the Non-
ExecuƟve Directors during financial year 2018 - 19 are given below:

     (Rs. In Lakh)
Sl. No. Name of the Non-ExecuƟve Director Siƫng Fees Shareholding in the Company

1. Mr. D. Sethia 1.62 NIL
2. Mr. P. Kaushik 1.62 NIL
3. Mr. R. Ojha 0.40 NIL

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP / GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:
 Presently, the CommiƩee Comprises of three members -  Non-ExecuƟve Director viz. Mr. D. Sethia (Head of the CommiƩee), Mr. P. 

Kaushik and Mr. R. Ojha (w.e.f. 14.11.2018). The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the CommiƩee.
 The funcƟons of the CommiƩee include:
 a) Providing guidance for overall improvement in the quality of services to investors
 b) Address the shareholders’ and investors’ complaints and ensuring expediƟous resoluƟon of the same
 c) DisseminaƟon of factually correct informaƟon to investors and the public at large
 d) Any other maƩers(s) arising out of and incidental to these funcƟons and such other acts assigned by the Board
 During the year under review 03 (three) Stakeholders RelaƟonship CommiƩee meeƟngs were held on 11.06.2018, 31.08.2018 

and 11.02.2019. All the members of the CommiƩee were present on the said meeƟng dates.
 Officer: Ms. Sweta Biyani Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (resigned on 29th March, 2019). Address for correspondence- 

Websol Energy System Limited 48, Pramatha Choudhry Sarani, Plot No.849 Block- P 2nd Floor, New Alipore Kolkata – 700 053 
Telephone No.: +91-33-2400 0419 Fax No.: +91-33-2400 0375 Email: investors@webelsolar.com.

 During the year under review, no Investors complaints / queries were received and no complaints / queries were pending as on 
31.03.2019.

7. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE:
 Presently the commiƩee comprises of three directors viz; Mr. D. Sethia, Mrs. Sima Jhunjhunwala and Mr. P. Kaushik. Mr. D. Sethia 

acts as chairperson of the commiƩee.
 The role of CSR CommiƩee includes formulaƟng and recommending to the Board the CSR Policy and acƟviƟes to be undertaken 

by the company, recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR acƟviƟes of the Company, reviewing the 
performance of the Company in the area of CSR.

 During the financial year ended 31stMarch,2019, the commiƩee met twice on 11.06.2018 and 11.02.2019. All the members of the 
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CommiƩee were present on the said meeƟng dates.
8. SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE:
 Presently, the CommiƩee Comprises of four members - one ExecuƟve Director i.e. Mr. S.L. Agarwal and three Non-ExecuƟve 

Directors viz. Mr. D. Sethia, Mr. P. Kaushik and Mr. R. Ojha (w.e.f. 14.11.2018). The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the 
Secretary to the CommiƩee and Mr. D. Sethia acts as the chairperson to the CommiƩee.

 The funcƟons of the CommiƩee include:
 a) Approval of transfer/transmission of securiƟes of the Company
 b) Overseeing the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company 
 c) Redressal of shareholders’ complaints relaƟng to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual reports and non-receipt of declared 

dividend, among others
 d) Disposal of old staƟoneries of dividend warrants, among others
 e) Issue of duplicate share cerƟficates 
 f) DematerializaƟon / RematerialisaƟon of shares
 g) Any other maƩer(s) arising out of and incidental to these funcƟons and such other acts assigned by the Board
 During the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, the commiƩee met twice on 11.06.2018 and 11.02.2019. All the members of the 

CommiƩee were present on the said meeƟng dates.
9. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:
 a) The details of last three Annual General MeeƟngs of the Company are as under:

Financial Year Ended Date Time Venue
31.03.2016 30.09.2016 10:00 AM Webel Bhavan,Block EP & GP, Sector V,Salt Lake Electronics Complex,Kolkata – 700 091
31.03.2017 23.09.2017 10:00 AM Rabindra Tirth, DG-17, Major Arterial Road (East-West), AcƟon Area 1D, Newtown, 

Kolkata - 700156, West Bengal
31.03.2018 29.09.2018 10:00 AM Rabindra Tirth, DG-17, Major Arterial Road (East-West), AcƟon Area 1D, Newtown, 

Kolkata - 700156, West Bengal
 b) No special resoluƟon was passed in the previous three annual general meeƟngs.
 c) No Special ResoluƟon was passed during the financial year 2018-19 through Postal Ballot under SecƟon 108 and 110 and other 

applicable provisions of the Act read together with Rules 20 and 22 of the Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 
2014 (as amended).

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
 In compliance with the LisƟng RegulaƟons the quarterly / annual results are furnished to the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed 

Ɵme and also published in the Newspapers viz. Business Standard / HT Mint and Arthik Lipi in Bengali (local) language. The results 
are also posted on the website of the Company www.webelsolar.com. The Annual Report is circulated to members and is displayed 
on the Company’s website.

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:
 a) Annual General MeeƟng

Day, Date and Time Monday, September 30, 2019 at 09:30 AM
Venue Nazrul Tirtha, Biswa Bangla Sarani, Beside DLF Building, AF Block - (Newtown), AcƟon Area-1A, Newtown, 

Kolkata, West Bengal – 700156
Book Closure Dates

 b) Financial Year
  The financial year of the Company is from 1st April to 31st March every year.
 c) Financial Year Calendar for 2019-20 (TentaƟve)

First Quarter Results 14th August, 2019
Second Quarter Results 14th November, 2019
Third Quarter Results 14th February, 2020
Fourth Quarter Results and Annual Results 29th May, 2020
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 d) Details of LisƟng ofEquity Shares and Stock Code

Name of Stock Exchange NaƟonal Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) BSE Ltd. (BSE)
Address of Stock Exchange ExchangePlaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra(E),Mumbai-400051 Floor -25,PJ Towers,Dalal 

Street,Mumbai-400001
Stock Code WEBELSOLAR 517498
LisƟng Fees Paid Paid

 e) Market Price Data

NSE Months BSE
High Low High Low
94.00 69.40 April, 2018 94.15 70.00
74.90 50.40 May, 2018 74.60 50.20
61.35 46.25 June, 2018 61.00 45.05
51.95 36.05 July, 2018 51.70 36.40
53.90 41.15 August, 2018 53.60 40.00
44.25 34.20 September, 2018 44.75 34.10
41.70 29.65 October, 2018 41.90 30.00
37.70 24.70 November, 2018 37.40 24.55
29.55 23.80 December, 2018 29.70 23.95
29.25 21.50 January, 2019 29.65 21.15
29.25 23.00 February, 2019 29.40 23.20
34.80 25.25 March, 2019 36.80 25.20

 f) Stock Performance in comparison to broad based indices
  The Company’s closing share prices at the BSE Ltd. (BSE) are given hereunder :
  On April, 2018  : 92.35
  On March, 2019  : 24.40
  Change    : (73.58) %
  Indices (S&P BSE Sensex) on Closing Basis :
  On April, 2018  : 33255.36
  On March, 2019  : 38672.91
  Change    : 16.29%
 g) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
  The Company’s registrar and share transfer agent is M/s. R&D Infotech Pvt. Ltd. having its registered office at 7A, Beltala Road, 

1st Floor, Kolkata – 700 026, Phone: +91 – 33 – 2419 – 2641/42 Fax: +91 – 33 – 2476 – 1657 Email: rd.infotech@vsnl.net.
 h) Share Transfer System
  Pursuant to the amendment in the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) 

RegulaƟons,2015 and subsequent noƟficaƟon(s) issued by SEBI, except in case of transmission or transposiƟon of securiƟes, 
requests for effecƟng transfer of securiƟes shall not be processed unless the securiƟes are held in the dematerialized form with 
a depository. In this regard, SEBIhas issued a Press Release clarifying that the said amendment does not prohibit an investor 
from holding shares in physical form and canhold shares in physical form even aŌer 1st April, 2019. However, any investor 
who is desirous of transferring shares (which are held in physicalform) aŌer 1st April, 2019 can do so only aŌer the shares are 
dematerialized. Further, the transfer deed(s) once lodged prior to the deadlineof 1st April, 2019 and returned due to deficiency 
in the document may be re-lodged for transfer even aŌer the deadline.

  All valid share transfer requests lodged prior to 1st April, 2019 and demat requests are processed and put into effect within a 
maximum period of 15 days from the date of receipt.

 i) DistribuƟon of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2019

Shareholding Range No. of Holders % of Total Holders No. of Shares Held % of Total Shares
Upto 500 20,077 80.61 30,61,377 10.55

501 – 1000 2,332 9.36 19,04,730 6.56
1001 – 2000 1,201 4.82 18,59,472 6.41
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Shareholding Range No. of Holders % of Total Holders No. of Shares Held % of Total Shares
2001 – 3000 444 1.78 11,49,030 3.96
3001 – 4000 182 0.73 6,61,793 2.28
4001 – 5000 185 0.75 8,88,051 3.06

5001 – 10000 255 1.03 19,16,120 6.60
10001 – 50000 187 0.75 35,86,030 12.35

50001 – 100000 30 0.12 21,03,768 7.25
100001 and above 13 0.05 1,18,96,696 40.98

Total: 24,906 100.00 2,90,27,067 100.00
 J) Shareholding PaƩern as on 31st March, 2019

Category No. of Holders % of Total 
Holders

No. of Shares % of Holding

Indian Residents 24,052 96.57 1,54,69,662 53.29
DomesƟc Companies 438 1.76 88,58,571 30.52
Non Resident Indians 402 1.61 5,86,156 2.02
Foreign Companies 0 0.00 0 0.00
Mutual Funds 2 0.01 6,200 0.02
Financial InsƟtuƟons 3 0.01 25,346 0.09
Banks 2 0.01 961 0.00
Directors / RelaƟves of Directors 4 0.02 20,83,248 7.18
FIIs 3 0.01 19,96,923 6.88
Others 0 0.00 0 0.00

Total 24,906 100.00 2,90,27,067 100.00
 K) Status of DematerializaƟon as on 31st March, 2019

ParƟculars No. of Shares % of Total Shares No. of Accounts
NaƟonal SecuriƟes Depository Limited (NSDL) 1,93,58,418 66.69 11,465
Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) 93,18,452 32.10 11,852
Total Dematerialized 2,86,76,870 98.79 23,317
Physical 3,50,197 1.21 1,593
Grand Total 2,90,27,067 100.00 24,910

L)  Plant LocaƟon m)  Address for Correspondence
 Falta SEZ Unit  Websol Energy System Limited
 Sector – II, Falta Special Economic Zone,  48, Pramatha Choudhry Sarani, Plot No. 849,
 Falta District, South 24 Parganas,  Block : P, 2nd Floor, New Alipore, Kolkata – 700 053
 PIN – 743 504, West Bengal  Phone: +91 – 33 – 2400 0419

 Fax: +91 – 33 – 2400 0375
 Email: investors@webelsolar.com
 Website: www.webelsolar.com

The Company has designated investors@webelsolar.com (email id) exclusively for the purpose of registering complaints by investors.
12. OTHER DISCLOSURES
 i) The Company does not have any materially significant related party transacƟon, which may have potenƟal conflict with 

the interests of the Company at large. The transacƟons with related parƟes, in normal course of business, have been 
disclosedseparately in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

 ii) There were no instances of non-compliances related to capital markets during the year under review and no penalƟes/
strictures were imposed against the Company during the last three years.

 iii) Whistle Blower Policy framed by the Company to deal with unethical behavior, vicƟmizaƟon, fraud and other grievances or 
concerns, if any, is available on the Company’s website at thefollowing web-link:

 hƩps://www.websolar.com/investor-corner/corporate-governance/- 
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During the year 2018-19, no personnel has been denied access to the Audit CommiƩee pertaining to the Whistle Blower Policy.
iv) All mandatory requirements relaƟng to corporate governance under the LisƟng RegulaƟons have been appropriately complied with 

and the status of non-mandatory (discreƟonary)requirements is given below:
 a. Chairman’s Office is maintained by the Company and expenses towards the performance of the Chairman’s duƟes are borne 

by the Company / reimbursed to him.
 b. The quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company are posted on the Company’s corporate website 

and extract of these results are published in newspapers on an all India basis. The complete Annual Report is sent to every 
Shareholder of the Company.

 c. The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 do not contain any modified audit opinion.
 d. The Head of Internal Audit reports to the Audit CommiƩee of the Board.
v) The Company doesn’t have any unlisted subsidiary company as defined in the LisƟng RegulaƟons and therefore 

correspondingdisclosures have not been made.
vi) In terms of the LisƟng RegulaƟons, the Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report. Details of 

significant changes in key financial raƟos, along with detailed explanaƟons thereof (including details of any change in Return on Net 
Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year along with a detailed explanaƟon thereof) have been adequately 
covered under the Management Discussion and Analysis Report.

vii) A cerƟficate has been obtained from M/s AL & Associates, PracƟcing Company Secretaries confirming that none of the Directors 
of the Company have been debarred or disqualified by the SecuriƟes and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or 
any such statutory authority from being appointed or conƟnuing as directors of theCompany and the same forms part of the Annual 
Report.

viii) All recommendaƟons made by the CommiƩees of the Board during the year were accepted by the Board. During the year 2018-19, 
there was no such instance wherein the Board had not accepted any recommendaƟon of any commiƩee of the Board.

ix) Details of total fees for all services paid by the Company on a consolidated basis, to the Statutory Auditors and all enƟƟes in the 
network firm/network enƟty of which the StatutoryAuditors are a part, given below:

Year 2018-19 Total (Rs.)
For Statutory Audit 3,00,000
For Limited Review 2,00,000

5,00,000
x) The disclosures in relaƟon to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (PrevenƟon, ProhibiƟon and Redressal) Act, 2013 are 

given in the Board’s Report.
xi) The CEO & CFO CerƟficaƟon for the year 2018-19 forms part oŌhe Annual Report.
xii) The financial statements have been prepared in accordancewith Indian AccounƟng Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed underSecƟon 

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read withRule 3 of the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules,2015 (as 
amended from Ɵme to Ɵme).

 All the Ind AS issued and noƟfied by the Ministry of CorporateAffairs under the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards)Rules, 
2015 (as amended) Ɵll the date the financial statementsare approved for issue by the Board of Directors has beenconsidered in 
preparing these financial statements.

xiii) The Company has idenƟfied risk involved in respect to its products, quality, cost, locaƟon and finance. It has also adopted the 
procedures / policies to minimize the risk and the same are reviewed and revised as per the needs to minimize and control the risk.

xiv) The Company has duly complied with the requirements specified in RegulaƟons 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulaƟon(2) 
of RegulaƟon 46 of the LisƟng RegulaƟons.

xv) Other items which are not applicable to the Company have notbeen separately commented upon.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
sd/-

S L Agarwal
Place: Kolkata Managing Director
Date: 29th May, 2019 DIN - 00189898
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CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER IN TERMS OF 
REGULATION 17(8) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 

REGULATIONS, 2015
We, the undersigned, in our respecƟ ve capaciƟ es as Managing Director and Chief Financial Offi  cer of Websol Energy System Limited 
(“theCompany”) to the best of our knowledge and belief, hereby cerƟ fy that:
A. We have reviewed the fi nancial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 and that to the best of our knowledge and 

belief, we state that:
 1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 

might bemisleading;
 2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s aff airs and are in compliance with exisƟ ng 

accounƟ ngstandards, applicable laws and regulaƟ ons.
B. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transacƟ ons were entered into by the Company during the 

year whichare fraudulent, illegal or violaƟ ve of the Company’s code of conduct.
C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for fi nancial reporƟ ng and that we have evaluated 

the eff ecƟ veness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to fi nancial reporƟ ng and have disclosed to the 
Auditors and the Audit CommiƩ ee, defi ciencies in the design or operaƟ on of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps we havetaken or propose to take to recƟ fy these defi ciencies.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit CommiƩ ee
 1. there has been no signifi cant change in internal control over fi nancial reporƟ ng during the year;
 2. there has been no signifi cant change in the accounƟ ng policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in 

thenotes to the fi nancial statements; and
 3. there has been no instance of signifi cant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 

of themanagement or an employee having a signifi cant role in the Company’s internal control systems over fi nancial 
reporƟ ng.

                                       
Place: Kolkata S L Agarwal  Sima Jhunjhunwala
Date: 29/05/2019  Managing Director & CEO  WTD & Chief Financial Offi  cer

DeclaraƟ on for Compliance with the Code of Conduct 
Websol Energy System Limited (“the Company”) has adopted the Code of Conduct for its Board Members and Senior Management 
Personneland the same is available on the website of the Company.

It is hereby confi rmed that the Company has obtained affi  rmaƟ on from all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel 
that theyhave complied with the said Code for the fi nancial year 2018-19. 
                                      
Place: Kolkata  S L Agarwal
Date: 29/05/2019  Managing Director & CEO

Websol Energy System Limited
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Auditors’ CerƟ fi cate on Corporate Governance
To the Members of 
Websol Energy System Limited 
1.  We, G. P. Agrawal & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Statutory Auditors of Websol Energy System Limited (“the Company”), 

have examined the compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31st March 
2019, as sƟpulated in RegulaƟons 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of RegulaƟon 46(2) and para C and D of Schedule V of the SEBI 
(LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015 (LisƟng RegulaƟons).

Managements’ Responsibility 

2.  The compliance of condiƟons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes 
the design, implementaƟon and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure the compliance with the condiƟons 
of the Corporate Governance sƟpulated in LisƟng RegulaƟons. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

3.  Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementaƟon thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
compliance with the condiƟons of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company. 

4.  We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the 
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company. 

5.  We have carried out an examinaƟon of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
CerƟficaƟon of Corporate Governance issued by the InsƟtute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI), the Standards 
on AudiƟng specified under SecƟon 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this cerƟficate 
and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or CerƟficates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires that we comply 
with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

6.  We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control 
for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial InformaƟon, and Other Assurance and Related Services 
Engagements. 

Opinion 

7.  In our opinion, and to the best of our informaƟon and according to explanaƟons given to us, we cerƟfy that the Company has 
complied with the condiƟons of Corporate Governance as sƟpulated in the above-menƟoned LisƟng RegulaƟons. 

8.  We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effecƟveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For G.P. Agrawal & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants
 Firm RegistraƟ on No. 302082E

 (CA. Sunita Kedia)
Place of Signature: Kolkata  Partner
Date:  29th May, 2019  Membership No.60162
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To The Members 

Websol Energy Systems Limited

Report on the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Websol Energy Systems Limited (‘the Company’), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of 
the significant accounƟng policies and other explanatory informaƟon (herein aŌer referred to as “financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the informaƟon required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian AccounƟng Standards specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act, read with 
the Companies (Indian AccounƟng Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘the Ind AS’) and other accounƟng principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on AudiƟng (SAs) specified under secƟon 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibiliƟes under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s ResponsibiliƟes for the Audit of the 
financial statements secƟon of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibiliƟes in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of MaƩer

We draw aƩenƟon to the maƩer that the confirmaƟons in respect of balances of Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and 
Advances from and to various parƟes have not been received in all cases.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above maƩer.

Key Audit MaƩers

Key audit maƩers are those maƩers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These maƩers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these maƩers. 
We have determined the maƩers described below to be the key audit maƩers to be communicated in our report.
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Sl. 
No.

Key Audit MaƩer Auditor’s Response

1. Accuracy of recogniƟon, measurement, 
presentaƟon and disclosures of revenues 
and other related balances in view of 
adopƟon of Ind AS 115 “Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers” (new revenue 
accounƟng standard) 
The applicaƟon of the new revenue 
accounƟng standard involves certain 
key judgements relaƟng to idenƟficaƟon 
of disƟnct performance obligaƟons, 
determinaƟon of transacƟon price of 
the idenƟfied performance obligaƟons, 
the appropriateness of the basis used 
to measure revenue recognised over 
a period. AddiƟonally, new revenue 
accounƟng standard contains disclosures 
which involves collaƟon of informaƟon 
in respect of disaggregated revenue 
and periods over which the remaining 
performance obligaƟons will be saƟsfied 
subsequent to the balance sheet date. 
Refer Note No. 2.8 to the Financial 
Statements.

Our procedures, in relaƟon to revenue recogniƟon for those contracts, 
included:
•  Understanding and evaluaƟng the design and tesƟng the operaƟng 

effecƟveness of controls in respect of revenue recogniƟon
•  Reading the underlying contracts with customers and advances 

received
•  Assessing the appropriateness of informaƟon, such as allotment 

leƩer, and stage of compleƟon of the project including expected 
compleƟon date, compleƟon cerƟficate and possession leƩer used by 
the Management, to determine the duraƟon of the project 

•  EvaluaƟng the assumpƟons used by the Management in ascertaining 
performance obligaƟon is saƟsfied over Ɵme or at a point in Ɵme in 
accordance with Ind AS 115.

•  Selected a sample of agreements, and tested the operaƟng 
effecƟveness of the internal control, relaƟng to idenƟficaƟon of the 
disƟnct performance obligaƟons and determinaƟon of transacƟon 
price, saƟsfacƟon of performance obligaƟon at a point of Ɵme and in 
recording and disclosing revenue in accordance with the new revenue 
accounƟng standard.

Based on the above procedures performed we did not find any significant 
excepƟons in revenue recognized on transiƟoning to Ind AS 115, Revenue 
from contracts with customers.

InformaƟon Other than the Financial statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparaƟon of the other informaƟon. The other informaƟon 
comprises the informaƟon included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to 
Board’s Report and Shareholder’s InformaƟon, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informaƟon and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connecƟon with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informaƟon and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other informaƟon is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informaƟon, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ResponsibiliƟes of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the maƩers stated in SecƟon 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparaƟon of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posiƟon, financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounƟng principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Ind AS. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounƟng records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for prevenƟng and detecƟng frauds and 
other irregulariƟes; selecƟon and applicaƟon of appropriate accounƟng policies; making judgments and esƟmates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, relevant to the preparaƟon 
and presentaƟon of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maƩers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounƟng 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operaƟons, or has no realisƟc alternaƟve but to 
do so.

That Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporƟng process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Financial Statements

Our objecƟves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepƟcism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

• IdenƟfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecƟng a material misstatement resulƟng from fraud is higher than for 
one resulƟng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenƟonal omissions, misrepresentaƟons, or the override 
of internal control. 

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under secƟon 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 
on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operaƟng effecƟveness of 
such controls. 

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounƟng policies used and the reasonableness of accounƟng esƟmates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

•  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounƟng and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condiƟons that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to conƟnue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw aƩenƟon in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or condiƟons may cause the Company to cease to conƟnue as 
a going concern. 

•  Evaluate the overall presentaƟon, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transacƟons and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentaƟon.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other maƩers, the planned scope and Ɵming of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we idenƟfy during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relaƟonships and other maƩers that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the maƩers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those maƩers that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit maƩers. We 
describe these maƩers in our auditor’s report unless law or regulaƟon precludes public disclosure about the maƩer or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a maƩer should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communicaƟon.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of sub-secƟon (11) of secƟon 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the maƩers specified 
in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by SecƟon 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

 (a) We have sought and obtained all the informaƟon and explanaƟons which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examinaƟon of those books.

 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under SecƟon 133 of the Act, 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

 (e) On the basis of the wriƩen representaƟons received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2019 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31stMarch, 2019 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of SecƟon 164 (2) of the Act.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of the Company and the 
operaƟng effecƟveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operaƟng effecƟveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporƟng.

 (g) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
secƟon 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

  In our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and according to the explanaƟons given to us, the remuneraƟon 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of secƟon 197 of the Act. 

 (h) With respect to the other maƩers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our informaƟon and 
according to the explanaƟons given to us: 

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending liƟgaƟons on its financial posiƟon in its financial statements- 
Refer Note No. 37.1 to the financial statements.

  ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounƟng standards, for material 
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivaƟve contracts;

  iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor EducaƟon and ProtecƟon Fund 
by the Company.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants                                                                       

Firm's RegistraƟon No. - 302082E
(CA. Sunita Kedia)

Place of Signature: Kolkata  Partner                                                                                        
Date: 29th May, 2019 Membership No. 60162
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Statement referred to in paragraph ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the 
members of Websol Energy Systems Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019:

1. (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full parƟculars including quanƟtaƟve details and situaƟon 
of its fixed assets.

 (b) As explained to us, the physical verificaƟon of Fixed Assets is in progress. Therefore, we could not comment on 
discrepancies, if any between the book records and the physical fixed assets.

 (c)  According to informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and on the basis of our examinaƟon of the books of account, 
and records, Land as menƟoned in the financial statements is leasehold and the lease agreement is in the name 
of the Company.

2. The management has conducted the physical verificaƟon of inventory at reasonable intervals. No discrepancies have 
been noƟced on physical verificaƟon of the inventory as compared to books records.

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or 
other parƟes covered in the Register maintained under secƟon 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 
(iii) (a) to (C) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

4. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of secƟon 185 and I86 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the direcƟves issued by the Reserve Bank of 
India and the provisions of SecƟons 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance 
of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable. 

6. In our opinion and according to the informaƟon and explanaƟon given to us, the cost records and accounts has not 
been prescribed by the Government under secƟon 148 (1) of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (vi) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

7. (a)  According to informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and on the basis of our examinaƟon of the books of account, 
and records, the Company has been generally irregular in deposiƟng undisputed statutory dues including Provident 
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added 
Tax, Cess, Goods and Services Tax (GST) and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authoriƟes.

  According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us, the following undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of the above were in arrears as at 31st March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date on when 
they become payable:

Name of Statute Nature of dues Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
Delhi Value Added Tax Act, 2004 Delhi Value Added Tax 51.76

 (b)  The disputed statutory dues aggregaƟng to Rs. 187.54 lakh that have not been deposited on account of maƩers 
pending before appropriate authoriƟes are as under:

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Statute Nature of 
dues

Period to which pertain Amount 
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Forum where dispute is 
pending

1 Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty 1994-95 to 1999-00 116.55* SeƩlement commission
2 Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty October, 2006 to 

October, 2007
57.12 High court, Kolkata

3 Central Excise Act, 1944 Excise Duty November, 1999 to 
June, 2001

13.87 High court, Kolkata

*  The company had paid Rs. 100.00 Lakhs against this demand in the year 2004-05.

8. The Company had Foreign Currency ConverƟble Bonds (‘FCCBs’) amounƟng to US$ 12.00 million, out of which FCCBs 
of the value US$ 2.14 million has been converted into 23,51,334 Equity Shares of the Company during the year as per 
the rates approved by regulators and shareholders.

 The Company did not have any borrowing from financial insƟtuƟons or Government and has not issued any debentures.  
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9. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, the 
company has not raised moneys by way of iniƟal public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and 
term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, we 
report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noƟced or reported 
during the year. 

11. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the 
Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneraƟon in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of secƟon 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

13. According to the informaƟon and explanaƟons given to us and based on our examinaƟon of the records of the Company, 
transacƟons with the related parƟes are in compliance with secƟon 177 and 188 of Act where applicable and details of 
such transacƟons have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounƟng standards. 

14. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, the 
company has not made any preferenƟal allotment or private placement of shares during the year under review. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented 
upon. 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informaƟon and explanaƟons given by the management, the 
company has not entered into any non-cash transacƟons with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

16. In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under secƟon 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 
1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not 
commented upon. 

For G.P. Agrawal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants                                                                       

Firm’s RegistraƟon No. - 302082E
(CA. Sunita Kedia)

Place of Signature: Kolkata  Partner                                                                                        
Date: 29th May, 2019 Membership No. 60162
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-secƟon 3 of secƟon 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng of Websol Energy Systems Limited (“the Company”) 
as of 31st March, 2019 in conjuncƟon with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that 
date. 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 
internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng (“the 
Guidance Note”) issued by the InsƟtute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibiliƟes include the design, 
implementaƟon and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operaƟng effecƟvely for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevenƟon and detecƟon of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounƟng records, and the Ɵmely 
preparaƟon of reliable financial informaƟon, as required under the Act. 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporƟng based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on AudiƟng, issued by ICAI 
and deemed to be prescribed under secƟon 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporƟng were established and maintained and if such controls operated effecƟvely in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporƟng and their operaƟng effecƟveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporƟng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and tesƟng and evaluaƟng the design and operaƟng effecƟveness of internal control based on 
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporƟng. 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial ReporƟng 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporƟng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporƟng and the preparaƟon of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounƟng principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporƟng 
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transacƟons and disposiƟons of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transacƟons are recorded as necessary to permit preparaƟon of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounƟng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with 
authorizaƟons of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevenƟon 
or Ɵmely detecƟon of unauthorized acquisiƟon, use, or disposiƟon of the Company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 
Inherent LimitaƟons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial ReporƟng 
Because of the inherent limitaƟons of internal financial controls over financial reporƟng, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projecƟons of any evaluaƟon of the internal financial controls over financial reporƟng to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporƟng may become inadequate because of 
changes in condiƟons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporƟng and such internal financial controls over financial reporƟng were operaƟng effecƟvely as at 31st  March, 2019, 
based on the internal control over financial reporƟng criteria established by the Company considering the essenƟal 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For G.P. Agrawal & Co. 
Chartered Accountants                                                                       

Firm’s RegistraƟon No. - 302082E
(CA. Sunita Kedia)

Place of Signature: Kolkata  Partner                                                                                        
Date: 29th May, 2019 Membership No. 60162
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ParƟculars Note
No.

As at 
31st March, 2019

As at 
31st March, 2018

I. ASSETS
  (1) Non - current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 (i) 28,689.20             30,400.93 
(b) Capital work in progress 4 (ii)          90.82          -   
(c) Intangible assets 5            2.68     3.26 
(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments 6                 -            -   
(ii) Loans 7(i)                 -      16.42 
(iii) Other financial assets 8(i)       345.80                   350.63 

(e) Other non-current assets 9(i)       977.94                   977.94 
 30,106.44 31,749.18 

  (2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 10     3,390.10 1,816.67 
(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables 11       965.68 2,134.26 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 12            7.49      7.12 
(iii) Bank Balances other than Cash and cash equivalents 13            0.35     0.35 
(iv) Loans 7(ii)        531.36                   828.88 
(v) Other financial assets 8(ii)             0.01      0.01 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 14           81.53    27.17 
(d) Other current assets 9(ii)          87.82  310.01 

   5,064.34 5,124.47 
Total Assets  35,170.78             36,873.65 

II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
 (1) Equity

(a) Equity share capital 15 2,902.71            2,667.57 
(b) Other equity 16 (a)      5,694.43            7,393.92 

8,597.14           10,061.49 
LiabiliƟes

  (2) Non - current liabiliƟes
(a) Financial liabiliƟes

(i) Borrowings 17(i) 5,391.34             5,585.13 
(ii) Trade and other payables 18(i)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises             -    -   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

    3,282.93            3,838.40 

(iii) Other financial liabiliƟes 19 (i)        3,790.36     5,248.19 
(b) Provisions 20              138.68                           -   
(c) Deferred tax liabiliƟes (Net) 21        1,620.72        1,620.72 
(d) Other non-current liabiliƟes 22(i)             708.11          481.17 

14,932.14   16,773.61 
  (3) Current liabiliƟes

(a) Financial liabiliƟes
(i) Borrowings 17(ii) 2,205.55      2,484.16 
(ii) Trade and other payables 18(ii)

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises                      -   -   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 
enterprises

     8,102.92  6,145.81 

(iii) Other financial liabiliƟes 19 (ii)               914.44          644.39 
(b) Other Current LiabiliƟes 22 (ii)              312.98                 547.84 
(c) Provisions 23 105.61               216.35 

     11,641.50        10,038.55 
Total Equity and LiabiliƟes  35,170.78      36,873.65 

The accompanying notes 1 to 36 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date aƩached.
For G. P. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants S.L.Agarwal Sima Jhunjhunwala
Firm's RegistraƟon No. - 302082E Managing Director

DIN No. 00189898
Chief Financial Officer & Whole Time Director

DIN No. 07264006
(CA. Sunita Kedia)
Partner
Membership No. 60162 Sweta Biyani

Company Secretary
Place of Signature: Kolkata Membership No. : ACS22218
Date: 29th day of May, 2019

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019 (` In Lakh)
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ParƟculars Note
No.

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019

Year ended 
31st March, 2018

I. Revenue from operaƟons  24  6,855.84  18,327.25 
II. Other income 25                   1,728.65   1,099.23 
III. Total income (I+II)           8,584.49                19,426.48 
IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 26                   6,593.41  13,771.32 
Stores and spares consumed 27                      271.68      854.21 
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 28                   (867.72)    (755.48)
Power and fuel consumpƟon 29                     759.34    1,133.58 
Employee benefits expense 30                      946.41      876.80 
Finance costs 31                      611.43      855.89 
DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expense 32                   1,549.35   1,424.39 
Other expenses 33                   1,610.06      786.50 
Total expense (IV)          11,473.96                18,947.21 

V. Profit before excepƟonal items and tax (III-IV)          (2,889.47)                    479.27 
VI. ExcepƟonal items      -               -   
VII. Profit before tax (V-VI)          (2,889.47)                    479.27 
VIII. Tax expense 34

Current tax  5.08        52.38 
Deferred tax      -         (51.42)
Tax expense                 5.08                       0.96 

IX. Profit for the year (VII-VIII)          (2,894.55)                    478.31 
X. Other comprehensive income

A. I. Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
      - Remeasurements of defined benefit plan                     (27.63)   -   
 II.  - Income tax relaƟng to above item                    -     -   
Other comprehensive income for the year              (27.63)   -   

XI. Total comprehensive income for the year (IX + X)          (2,922.18)                    478.31 
XII. Earnings per equity share

(Nominal value per share Rs. 10/-) 
35

Basic (Rs.)                       (10.01)                 1.93 
Diluted (Rs.)                       (8.24)                1.36 

The accompanying notes 1 to 36 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date aƩached.
For G. P. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants S.L.Agarwal Sima Jhunjhunwala
Firm's RegistraƟon No. - 302082E Managing Director

DIN No. 00189898
Chief Financial Officer & Whole Time 

Director
DIN No. 07264006

(CA. Sunita Kedia)
Partner
Membership No. 60162 Sweta Biyani

Company Secretary
Place of Signature: Kolkata Membership No. : ACS22218
Date: 29th day of May, 2019
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Particulars Year ended
31st March 2019

Year ended
31st March 2018 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit / (Loss) before tax  (2,889.47) 478.31 
Adjustments for
DepreciaƟon 1,549.35 1,424.39 
Finance costs 611.43 855.89 
Interest Income  (202.85)  (455.88)
Sundry balances wriƩen back  (1,375.29)  (503.29)
Credit impairment for doubƞul debt 1.83      -    
Sundry balances wriƩen off 242.56    1.26 
OperaƟng profit before working capital changes  (2,062.44) 1,800.68 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and other payables 2,776.93 2,791.75 
Increase / (Decrease) in Non-current and current provisions 0.30  15.47 
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade receivables 924.19    (2,004.43)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabiliƟes  (7.92)  (231.09)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other financial liabiliƟes 270.05 564.39 
Decrease / (Increase) in Other financial assets 4.83 102.42 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other assets 222.19  (288.92)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories  (1,573.43)      (1,393.49)
Cash generated from operaƟons 554.70 1,355.82 
Direct Taxes Paid  (59.43)  (330.17)
Net cash flow from/(used in) operaƟng acƟviƟes 495.27 1,026.61 

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (154.83)  (621.44)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 227.86       -   
Purchase of intangible assets  (0.88)  (2.24)
Loans given received back 313.94 250.31 
Investment in fixed deposit                            -   11.79 
Interest received 202.85 242.06 
Net cash flow from / (used in) invesƟng acƟviƟes 588.94  (119.52)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` In Lakh)
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Particulars Year ended
31st March 2019

Year ended
31st March 2018 

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term borrowings  (202.57)  (1,708.86)
Proceeds from long term borrowings                         8.77 1,675.57 
Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings (net)  (278.61)  (842.76)
Interest paid  (611.43)  (327.60)
Net cash flow from financing acƟviƟes  (1,083.84)  (1,203.65)
Increase / (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 0.37  (296.56)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 7.12 303.68 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 7.49 7.12 

Notes:
1) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year consists of: 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018 

Cash on hand 4.43 5.51 
Balance with banks
On current and EEFC accounts 3.06 1.61 
Closing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow 
statement

7.49 7.12 

2) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the '' Indirect Method '' as set out in the Indian AccounƟng 
Standard (Ind AS)  7 on Statement of Cash Flows.  

3) Cash and cash equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use. 

4) Figure in brackets represent cash ouƞlow from respecƟve acƟviƟes.  

5) Change in liability arising from financing acƟviƟes :

Particulars Borrowings
Non-current Current 

As at 01.04.2017                   5,090.13        3,326.93 
Cash flow during the year*                      495.00  (842.76)
As at 31.03.2018                   5,585.13              2,484.17 
Cash flow during the year*  (193.79)  (278.62)
As at 31.03.2019                   5,391.34         2,205.55 

* includes interest on long term borrowings using effective interest method.

The accompanying notes 1 to 36 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date aƩached.
For G. P. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants S.L.Agarwal Sima Jhunjhunwala
Firm's RegistraƟon No. - 302082E Managing Director

DIN No. 00189898
Chief Financial Officer & Whole Time 

Director
DIN No. 07264006

(CA. Sunita Kedia)
Partner
Membership No. 60162 Sweta Biyani

Company Secretary
Place of Signature: Kolkata Membership No. : ACS22218
Date: 29th day of May, 2019
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(a) Equity Share Capital
ParƟculars  Balance at the 

beginning of the 
year 

 Changes in equity 
share capital 

during the year 

 Balance at the end 
of the year 

For the year ended 31st March, 2018 2,197.31 470.26        2,667.57 
For the year ended 31st March, 2019 2,667.57 235.13         2,902.71 

(b) Other equity 
ParƟculars  Reserve and surplus  Other 

Comprehensive 
Income 

 Total 

 Capital 
Reserve 

 Security 
Premium 
Reserve 

 Retained 
Earnings 

 Remeasurement 
of Defined Benefit 

Plan 
Balance as at 1st April, 2017 19,109.28  10,696.47  (26,200.31)   -      3,605.44 
Prior Period Adjustment    -       -      864.78   -    864.78 
Restated Balance as at 1st April, 2017 19,109.28  10,696.47  (25,335.53)   -      4,470.22 
Profit / (Loss) for the year    -       -      478.31   -    478.31 
Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes)    -       -   -     -      -   
Total Comprehensive Income 19,109.28  10,696.47  (24,857.22)   -      4,948.53 
Adjustments:
Issue of Equity Shares    -      2,445.39     -      -      2,445.39 
Balance as at 31st March, 2018 19,109.28  13,141.86  (24,857.22)   -      7,393.92 
Profit / (Loss) for the year    -       -      (2,894.55)   -    (2,894.55)
Other Comprehensive Income (net of taxes)    -       -       -     (27.63) (27.63)
Total Comprehensive Income 19,109.28  13,141.86  (27,751.77)  (27.63)   4,471.74 
Adjustments:
Issue of equity shares for consideraƟon 
other than cash

   -      1,222.69 -      -     1,222.69 

Transfer from other comprehensive income 
to retained earnings

   -       -      (27.63)   27.63   -   

Balance at 31st March, 2019 19,109.28  14,364.55  (27,779.40)    -     5,694.43 

The accompanying notes 1 to 36 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date aƩached.
For G. P. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants S.L.Agarwal Sima Jhunjhunwala
Firm's RegistraƟon No. - 302082E Managing Director

DIN No. 00189898
Chief Financial Officer & Whole Time 

Director
DIN No. 07264006

(CA. Sunita Kedia)
Partner
Membership No. 60162 Sweta Biyani

Company Secretary
Place of Signature: Kolkata Membership No. : ACS22218
Date: 29th day of May, 2019

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2019 (` In Lakh)
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Note 1 Corporate informaƟon
Websol Energy Systems Limited ("the Company”) is a public limited enƟty incorporated in India and is engaged in the 
business of manufacturing Solar photo-Voltaic Cells and Modules.  

Its registered office is situated at 48, Pramatha Choudhury Sarani, Plot No 849, Block - P, 2nd Floor, New Alipore, Kolkata - 
700053 (West Bengal). The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 were approved for issue by the Board 
of Directors on 29th May, 2019.   

Note 2 Significant accounƟng policies
2.1 Statement of Compliance with Ind AS  

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian AccounƟng Standards (referred to 
as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under SecƟon 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian AccounƟng 
Standards) Rules as amended from Ɵme to Ɵme.  

2.2 Basis of preparaƟon   

 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convenƟon, except for certain items that 
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounƟng policies. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value 
of the consideraƟon in exchange for goods and services.     

 Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transacƟon 
between market parƟcipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
esƟmated using another valuaƟon technique. In esƟmaƟng the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 
into account the characterisƟcs of the asset or liability if market parƟcipants would take those characterisƟcs into 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.  

 All amount disclosed in the financial statements including notes thereon have been rounded off to the nearest 
rupees in lakh as per the requirement of Schedule III to the Act, unless stated otherwise.   

2.3 Use of esƟmates  

 The preparaƟon of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, 
esƟmates and assumpƟons that affect the applicaƟon of the accounƟng policies and the reported amounts of assets 
and liabiliƟes, the disclosure of conƟngent assets and liabiliƟes at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those esƟmates. The 
esƟmates and underlying assumpƟons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounƟng esƟmates are 
recognised in the period in which the esƟmate is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised 
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

2.4 OperaƟng Cycle  

 All assets and liabiliƟes have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operaƟng cycle 
and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 – PresentaƟon of Financial 
Statements. The Company’s normal operaƟng cycle in respect of operaƟons relaƟng to manufacturing Solar photo-
Voltaic Cells and Modules can be considered as 12 months.     

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and DepreciaƟon  

 a) Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisiƟon less accumulated depreciaƟon and impairment, 
if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of PPE recognised as at 
1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP.    

 b) Cost is inclusive of inward freight, non-refundable taxes and duƟes and directly aƩributable costs of bringing 
an asset to the locaƟon and condiƟon of its intended use. All upgradaƟon / enhancements are charged off as 
revenue expenditure unless they bring similar significant addiƟonal benefits.  

  The cost and related accumulated depreciaƟon are derecognised from the financial statements upon sale or 
reƟrement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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 c) DepreciaƟon of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. DepreciaƟon on 
items of PPE is provided on a Straight Line Method (‘SLM’) basis to allocate their cost, net of their residual 
value over the esƟmated useful life of the respecƟve asset as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 
2013. 

  The esƟmated useful lives, residual values and method of depreciaƟon are reviewed at each Balance sheet date 
and changes, if any, are treated as changes in accounƟng esƟmate.    

2.6 Impairment of Assets  

 Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the 
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair 
value less costs to sell and value in use. 

 If at the balance sheet date there is an indicaƟon that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the 
recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment loss previously recognized is reversed such that the asset is 
recognized at its recoverable amount but not exceeding wriƩen down value which would have been reported if the 
impairment loss had not been recognized.    

2.7 Inventories  

 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value aŌer providing for obsolescence, if any.

 Cost of inventory comprises of purchase price, cost of conversion and other directly aƩributable costs that have 
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their respecƟve present locaƟon and condiƟon. Borrowing costs are not 
included in the value of inventories. 

 The cost of inventories is computed on weighted average basis. Inventories are wriƩen down on a case-by-case 
basis if the anƟcipated net realizable value declines below the carrying amount of inventories. Such write downs are 
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.  

 Net realizable value is the esƟmated selling price in the ordinary course of business less esƟmated cost of compleƟon 
and esƟmated costs necessary to make the sale.   

2.8 Revenue recogniƟon  

 With effect from 1st April, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. 
The Company has applied Ind AS 115 using the cumulaƟve catch-up transiƟon method, applied to contracts that 
were not completed as on the transiƟon date i.e. 01 April 2018. Accordingly, the comparaƟve amounts of revenue 
and the corresponding contract assets / liabiliƟes have not been retrospecƟvely adjusted. The effect on adopƟon of 
Ind-AS 115 was insignificant.  

 Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers at an amount to which 
the enƟty expects to be enƟtled following a five-step model in accordance with Ind AS 115. Revenue is measured 
based on the consideraƟon specified in a contract with a customer, and is reduced for volume discounts, rebates and 
other similar allowances.  

 a) Sale of goods  

  Revenue from sale of goods is recognized if the performance obligaƟon of the same is saƟsfied. Performance 
obligaƟon is saƟsfied at a point in Ɵme as per which income is recognized as and when control in goods is 
passed to the buyer. 

 b) Interest income  

  Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effecƟve interest rate (EIR) method.  

 c) All other incomes are accounted for on accrual basis.  

2.9  Provisions, conƟngent liabiliƟes and conƟngent assets  

 a) Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligaƟon, as a result of past events and when a reliable 
esƟmate of the amount of obligaƟon can be made at the reporƟng date. These esƟmates are reviewed at each 
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reporƟng date and adjusted to reflect the current best esƟmates. Provisions are discounted to their present 
values, where the Ɵme value of money is material.  

 b) ConƟngent liability is disclosed for possible obligaƟons which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly 
within the control of the Company or present obligaƟons arising from past events where it is not probable that 
an ouƞlow of resources will be required to seƩle the obligaƟon or a reliable esƟmate of the amount of the 
obligaƟon cannot be made.  

 c) ConƟngent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed except when realisaƟon of income is virtually certain, 
related asset is disclosed.  

 d) Provisions, conƟngent liabiliƟes and conƟngent assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.  

2.10 Employee benefits  

 a) Short-term employee benefits  

  Short-term employee benefits in respect of salaries and wages, including non-monetary benefits are recognised 
as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the related 
service is rendered.  

 b) Provident fund  

  Company’s ContribuƟons to Provident are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year when the 
contribuƟons to the respecƟve funds are due.  

 c) GratuƟy   

  Gratuity is provided on accrual basis.  

2.11 Financial instruments, Financial assets, Financial liabiliƟes and Equity instruments  

 Financial assets and financial liabiliƟes are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the relevant instrument and are iniƟally measured at fair value. TransacƟon costs that are directly 
aƩributable to the acquisiƟon or issue of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes (other than financial assets and 
financial liabiliƟes measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value on 
iniƟal recogniƟon of financial assets or financial liabiliƟes.  

i) Financial Assets  

 (a) RecogniƟon  

  Financial assets include Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents, Bank 
balances etc. Such assets are iniƟally recognised at transacƟon price when the Company becomes party to 
contractual obligaƟons. The transacƟon price includes transacƟon costs unless the asset is being fair valued 
through the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

 (b) ClassificaƟon  

  Management determines the classificaƟon of an asset at iniƟal recogniƟon depending on the purpose for which 
the assets were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on such classificaƟon. 
 

  Financial assets are classified as those measured at:  

  (1)  amorƟsed cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collecƟon of cash flows arising from payments 
of principal and/ or interest.  

  (2)  fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), where the financial assets are held not only 
for collecƟon of cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the sale of such 
assets. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from 
changes in the fair value being recognised in other comprehensive income.  

  (3)  fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the assets does not meet the criteria for categorizaƟon 
as at amorƟzed cost or as FVTOCI. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised 
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gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the period in which they arise.  

  Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents, Bank balances etc. are classified 
for measurement at amorƟsed cost while investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in 
respect of parƟcular investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through 
profit or loss, an irrevocable elecƟon at iniƟal recogniƟon may be made to present subsequent changes in fair 
value through other comprehensive income.  

 (c) Impairment  

  The Company assesses at each reporƟng date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) such 
as investments, trade receivables, advances and security deposits held at amorƟsed cost and financial assets 
that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are tested for impairment based on 
evidence or informaƟon that is available without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and 
loss allowances recognised if the credit quality of the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since iniƟal 
recogniƟon.  

 (d) ReclassificaƟon  

  When and only when the business model is changed, the Company shall reclassify all affected financial assets 
prospecƟvely from the reclassificaƟon date as subsequently measured at amorƟsed cost, fair value through 
other comprehensive income, fair value through profit or loss without restaƟng the previously recognised gains, 
losses or interest and in terms of the reclassificaƟon principles laid down in the Ind AS relaƟng to Financial 
Instruments.  

 (e) De-recogniƟon  

  Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or has been 
transferred, and the Company has transferred substanƟally all of the risks and rewards of ownership. If the 
asset is one that is measured at:   

  (i)  amorƟsed cost, the gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss;  

  (ii)  fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulaƟve fair value adjustments previously taken 
to reserves are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset represents an equity 
investment in which case the cumulaƟve fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves is reclassified 
within equity.     

ii) Financial liabiliƟes  

 Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabiliƟes are iniƟally recognised at the value of the respecƟve 
contractual obligaƟons. They are subsequently measured at amorƟsed cost.   

 Financial liabiliƟes are derecognised when the liability is exƟnguished, that is, when the contractual obligaƟon is 
discharged, cancelled and on expiry.   

iii) Equity instruments  

 Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue. 

iv) Offseƫng of financial instruments  

 Financial assets and liabiliƟes are offset and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intenƟon to seƩle on a net basis or realise the 
asset and seƩle the liability simultaneously.   

v) Dividend distribuƟon  

 Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) is recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved 
by the Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders. 
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vi) Fair value measurement  

 Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an enƟty-specific measurement. Under Ind AS, fair valuaƟon of 
financial instruments is guided by Ind AS 113 “Fair Value Measurement” (Ind AS – 113).

 For some assets and liabiliƟes, observable market transacƟons or market informaƟon might be available. For other 
assets and liabiliƟes, observable market transacƟons and market informaƟon might not be available. However, the 
objecƟve of a fair value measurement in both cases is the same—to esƟmate the price at which an orderly transacƟon 
to sell the asset or to transfer the liability would take place between market parƟcipants at the measurement date 
under current market condiƟons. 

 In determining the fair value of financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumpƟons that 
are based on market condiƟons and risks exisƟng at each balance sheet date. 

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by 
valuaƟon technique:  

 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in acƟve markets for idenƟcal assets or liabiliƟes.  

 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly. 

 Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabiliƟes that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

2.12 Taxes  

 Taxes on income comprises of current taxes and deferred taxes. Current tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period using tax rates and tax laws 
enacted during the period, together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

 Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliƟes and the 
amounts used for taxaƟon purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substanƟvely enacted by the 
end of the reporƟng period.

 Deferred tax assets are recognized for deducƟble temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits 
and any unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deducƟble temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be uƟlised.

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be 
uƟlised. 

 Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are disclosed 
separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable. 

2.13 Earnings per Share  

 a) Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to equity 
shareholders (aŌer deducƟng aƩributable taxes) by the weighted-average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period.      

 b) For the purpose of calculaƟng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period aƩributable to 
equity shareholders and the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted 
for the effects of all diluƟve potenƟal equity shares. 

  The number of equity shares and potenƟal diluƟve equity shares are adjusted retrospecƟvely for all periods 
presented for any share split and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the 
financial statements by the Board of Directors,  

2.14 OperaƟng Segment   

 The Company is engaged in producƟon of Solar photo-Voltaic Cells and Modules. Based on its internal organisaƟon 
and management structure, the Company operates in only one business segment i.e. manufacturing of Solar photo-
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Voltaic Cells and Modules and in only one geographic segment i.e. India. Accordingly there are no separate reportable 
segments.

2.15 Foreign Currency TransacƟons  

 The funcƟonal and presentaƟon currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.  

 TransacƟons in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange rate prevailing on the transacƟon date. Gains/ 
losses arising on seƩlement as also on translaƟon of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.  

2.16 Cash Flow Statement  

 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transacƟons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operaƟng cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with invesƟng or financing flows. The cash flows from operaƟng, invesƟng and 
financing acƟviƟes of the Company are segregated. 

Note 3 Use of esƟmates and judgements 
The preparaƟon of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounƟng principles requires management 
to make esƟmates and assumpƟons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiliƟes and disclosure of conƟngent 
liabiliƟes at the date of the financial statements and the results of operaƟons during the reporƟng period end. Although 
these esƟmates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and acƟons, actual results could differ 
from these esƟmates.  

The esƟmates and underlying assumpƟons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounƟng esƟmates are 
recognised in the period in which the esƟmate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.   

Key sources of esƟmaƟon uncertainty  

The following are the key assumpƟons concerning the future, and other key sources of esƟmaƟon uncertainty at the end 
of the reporƟng period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabiliƟes within the next financial year.  

(i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:  

 The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporƟng period. This 
reassessment may result in change in depreciaƟon expense in future periods.  

(ii) Fair value measurement  

 When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabiliƟes recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured 
based on quoted prices in acƟve markets, their fair value is measured using valuaƟon techniques. The inputs 
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include consideraƟons of inputs such as liquidity risk, 
credit risk and volaƟlity. Changes in assumpƟons about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial 
instruments.  

(iii) Provisions and conƟngent liabiliƟes   

 The Company has ongoing liƟgaƟons with various regulatory authoriƟes and third parƟes. Where an ouƞlow of funds 
is believed to be probable and a reliable esƟmate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s 
assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best 
esƟmate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve 
esƟmaƟon uncertainty. InformaƟon about such liƟgaƟons is provided in notes to the financial statements. 
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Note 4 Property, plant and equipment

(i) ParƟculars Gross Block DepreciaƟon / AmorƟsaƟon Net Block
 As on                           

1st April, 
2018 

AddiƟons 
During the 

year

Disposals/ 
deducƟons 
during the 

year

 As on                           
31st 

March, 
2019 

 As on                           
1st April, 

2018 

For the 
year

Disposals/ 
deducƟons 
during the 

year

 As on                           
31st 

March, 
2019 

 As on                           
31st March, 

2019 

 As on                           
31st March, 

2018 

Leasehold Land 1,933.90     -         -   1,933.90      0.02      0.01       -     0.03 1,933.87 1,933.88 
Building   4,649.76   58.92       -   4,708.68 387.35    205.60            -   592.95 4,115.73 4,262.41 
Plant and machinery 25,964.81     -   236.35 25,728.46 1,907.05 1,283.30   8.49 3,181.86 22,546.60 24,057.76 
Furniture and Fixture      151.41     -         -        151.41     82.01       41.01 -      123.02     28.39    69.40 
Computer        6.78 1.76       -          8.54      2.77         1.70      -     4.47        4.07       4.01 
Office Equipment       19.34 3.34       -       22.68      8.49         3.23           -     11.72      10.96     10.85 
Motor Vehicles      89.28     -         -       89.28    26.66       13.04           -   39.70     49.58    62.62 
Total 32,815.28 64.02 236.35 32,642.95 2,414.35 1,547.89            8.49 3,953.75 28,689.20 30,400.93 

(ii)  Capital Work in 
Progress

 -    90.82  -    90.82  -    -    -    -    90.82  -   

Previous Year
ParƟculars Gross Block DepreciaƟon / AmorƟsaƟon Net Block

 As on                           
1st April, 

2017 

AddiƟons 
During the 

year

Disposals/ 
deducƟons 
during the 

year

 As on                           
31st 

March, 
2018 

 As on                           
1st April, 

2017 

For the 
year

Adjust-
ment

Disposals/ 
deducƟons 
during the 

year

 As on                           
31st 

March, 
2018 

 As on                           
31st 

March, 
2018 

 As on                           
31st 

March, 
2017 

Leasehold Land  1,933.90  -    -    1,933.90  0.01  0.01  -    -    0.02  1,933.88  1,933.89 
Building  4,642.04  7.72  -    4,649.76  193.58  193.77  -    -    387.35  4,262.41  4,448.46 
Plant and machinery 23,300.38  2,664.43  -    25,964.81  737.47  1,384.50  (214.92)  -    1,907.05  24,057.76 22,562.91 
Furniture and Fixture  149.82  1.59  -    151.41  40.96  41.05  -    -    82.01  69.40  108.86 
Computer  2.20  4.58  -    6.78  1.54  1.23  -    -    2.77  4.01  0.66 
Office Equipment  15.29  4.05  -    19.34  5.67  2.82  -    -    8.49  10.85  9.62 
Motor Vehicles  89.28  -    -    89.28  11.84  14.82  -    -    26.66  62.62  77.44 
Total 30,132.91  2,682.37  -    32,815.28  991.07  1,638.20  (214.92)  -    2,414.35  30,400.93 29,141.84 

Notes:
1. Leasehold Land of Salt Lake unit has been acquired under a lease of 90 years with a renewal opƟon.
2. Leasehold Land of Falta SEZ unit has been acquired under a lease of 15 years with a renewal opƟon.
3. Refer note 16 (b) for details regarding the restatement as a result of an error.
4. Refer note no. 17 (i) and (ii) for assets hypothecated as security for borrowings.

Note 5 Intangible assets ( ` In Lakh)

Particulars Computer 
SoŌware

Gross carrying amount as at 1st April, 2018                 5.43 
AddiƟons during the year              0.88 
As at 31st March, 2019              6.31 

AmorƟsaƟon expense
As at 1st April, 2018               2.17 
AmorƟsaƟon for the year              1.46 
As at 31st March, 2019              3.63 

Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2019             2.68 
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Notes forming part of financial statements (Contd.)    (` In Lakh)

Previous year

ParƟculars  Computer 
SoŌware 

Gross carrying amount as at 1st April, 2017                 3.19 
AddiƟons during the year                2.24 
Gross carrying amount as at 31st March, 2018                5.43 
AmorƟsaƟon expense
As at 1st April, 2017              1.06 
AmorƟsaƟon for the year               1.11 
As at 31st March, 2018               2.17 
Net carrying amount as at 31st March, 2018            3.26 

Note 6 Non-current investments

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

 Joint Venture : 
 Carried at cost 

 Fully paid up : 
 Unquoted  
 Websol Energy System Europe KG  -    15.10 
 Less:- Provision for impairment of investments  -    (15.10)

Total  -    -   

Note 7 Loans

(i)  Non-current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Unsecured, considered good
Loans 

Related party
 Erstwhile overseas joint venture  -    18.45 
 Less:- Provision for impairment of loan  -    (18.45)

Others
 Other corporate body  -    16.42 

Total  -    16.42 

(ii)  Current 
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Unsecured, considered good
Loans 

 Overseas corporate body  531.36  828.88 
Total  531.36  828.88 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements (` In Lakh)
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Note 8 Other financial assets

(i)  Non-current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits  345.80  350.63 
Total  345.80  350.63 

(ii)  Current 
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Unsecured, considered good

 Interest accrued on fixed deposits  0.01  0.01 
Total  0.01  0.01 

Note 9 Other  assets
(i)  Non-current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Advances other than capital advances
 Cenvat Credit  119.72  119.72 
 Advance for raw material  858.22  858.22 
Total  977.94  977.94 

(ii)  Current 
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Capital advances  -    19.93 
Advances other than capital advances

Advances to suppliers and others  -    107.71 
Advance against expenses  -    10.13 
Advance to Staff  19.02  6.71 
Electricity duty refundable  0.29  52.55 
Service tax input receivable  5.31  30.96 
GST input receivable  56.08  76.56 
Prepayments  7.12  5.46 

Total  87.82  310.01 

Note 10 Inventories (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Raw Materials  1,506.71  806.78 
Work In Progress  133.71  282.36 
Finished Goods  1,696.66  680.29 
Stores and Spares  53.02  47.25 
Total  3390.10  1,816.67 

Notes forming part of financial statements(Contd.)  (` In Lakh)
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Note 11 Trade Receivables

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

 Unsecured, considered good  967.51  2,134.26 
 Credit impaired  6.29  6.29 

 973.80  2,140.55 
Less: Allowance for impaired receivables  (8.12)  (6.29)
Total  965.68  2,134.26 

Note 12 Cash and cash equivalents

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Balances with banks
On current and EEFC accounts  3.06  1.61 
Cash on hand  4.43  5.51 
Total  7.49  7.12 

Note 13 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Term Deposits with Bank
Original maturity period less than 12 months 0.35  0.35 
Total 0.35  0.35 

Note 14 Current Tax Assets (Net)

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Advance Tax  92.98  91.00 
Less : Provision for taxaƟon  (11.45)  (63.83)
Total  81.53  27.17 

Note 15 Equity share capital  

ParƟculars As at 31st
March, 2019

As at 31st
March, 2018

No. of 
shares

(Rs. in 
lakh)

No. of 
shares

(Rs. in 
lakh)

(a) Authorised
Equity shares of par value Rs. 10/- each 60,000,000 6,000.00 60,000,000 6,000.00     

60,000,000 6,000.00 60,000,000 6,000.00     
(b) Issued, subscribed and paid up

Equity shares of par value Rs. 10/- each  fully paid in cash 11,286,553 1,128.66 11,286,553 1,128.66     
Equity shares of par value Rs. 10/- each  fully paid up issued as 
bonus shares by capitalizaƟon of SecuriƟes Premium

9,986,533     998.65 9,986,533 998.65       

Equity shares of par value Rs. 10/- each  fully paid for 
consideraƟon other than cash

7,753,981 775.40 5,402,647 540.26       

29,027,067 2,902.71 26,675,733 2,667.57     

Notes forming part of Financial Statements (` In Lakh)
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 (c)  ReconciliaƟon of number and amount of equity shares outstanding:

ParƟculars As at 31st
March, 2019

As at 31st
March, 2018

No. of 
shares

(Rs. in 
lakh)

No. of 
shares

(Rs. in 
lakh)

At the beginning of the year  26,675,733  2,667.57  21,973,066  2,197.31 
Shares issued during the year  2,351,334  235.14  4,702,667  470.27 
At the end of the year 29,027,067  2,902.71 26,675,733  2,667.57 

(d) The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per Equity share. Each holder of equity 
shares is enƟtled to vote one per equity share held. All equity shares ranks pari passu with respect to the dividend, 
voƟng rights and other terms. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of 
the shareholders in the ensuring Annual General MeeƟng. In the event of the liquidaƟon of the company, normally 
the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the company aŌer distribuƟon of all preferenƟal 
amounts, in proporƟon to their shareholding.     

(e) Shareholders holding more than 5 % of the equity shares in the Company :

NAME OF THE SHAREHOLDER As at 31st
March, 2019

As at 31st
March, 2018

No. of 
shares held

% of 
holiding

No. of 
shares held

% of 
holiding

S L Industries Private Limited  5,419,674 18.67%  5,519,674 20.69%
Garnet InternaƟonal Limited  -    -    2,528,514 9.48%
Sohan Lal Agarwal  2,069,208 7.13%  1,873,108 7.02%
India Max Investment Fund Limited  1,677,025 5.78%  -    -   

(f) "Foreign Currency ConverƟble Bonds (FCCBs) amounƟng to US$ 16.80 million issued by the Company in earlier years 
was restructured vide a wriƩen resoluƟon dated 7th December, 2016 signed by the bondholders and consequently, a 
supplement trust deed was executed on the same date between the Company and the Trustee. Post restructuring, the 
bonds are converƟble into equity shares of the Company at the opƟon of the bondholders. Other major changes due 
to restructuring are as follows

 (i)  Principal value of bonds were reduced from US$ 16.80 million to US$ 12.00 million.

 (ii)  Change in conversion price from Rs. 550/- per share to Rs. 62/- per share at a fixed exchange rate of Rs. 68.032 / 
US$.

 (iii)  Extension in tenure of bonds upto 1st May, 2021, i.e. bondholders not converƟng their bonds into shares upto the 
said date will be seƩled in cash by the Company.

 (iv)  Minimum denominaƟon of bonds fixed at US$ 1,00,000 as a result of which pool factor of 0.7142857142857143 
being uƟlized for conversion into equity shares.

Note 16(a) Other equity

ParƟculars As at 31st
March, 2019

As at 31st
March, 2018

(a) Capital Reserve
 Balance as per last account  19,109.28  19,109.28 
AddiƟon / (DeleƟon) during the year  -    -   
Closing Balance  19,109.28  19,109.28 

(b) SecuriƟes Premium
Balance as per last account  13,141.86  10,696.47 
Add: Issue of equity shares  1,222.69  2,445.39 
Closing Balance  14,364.55  13,141.86 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements (` In Lakh)
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ParƟculars As at 31st
March, 2019

As at 31st
March, 2018

(c) Retained Earnings
Balance as per last account  (24,857.22)  (26,200.31)
Prior Period Adjustment*  -    864.78 
Restated Balance as per last account  (24,857.22)  (25,335.53)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year  (2,894.55)  478.31 
Add: Transfer from Other comprehensive 
income

 (27.63)  -   

Closing Balance  (27,779.40)  (24,857.22)
(d) Other Comprehensive Income

 - Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan
Balance as per last account  -    -   
Add: Other comprehensive income for the 
year

 (27.63)  -   

Less: Transferred to Retained earnings  (27.63)  -   
Closing Balance  -    -   

Total  5,694.43  7,393.92 

* Refer note 16 (b) for details regarding the restatement as a result of an error.     
Notes:      
1. Capital Reserve represents various capital receipts such as subsidy, share applicaƟon money forfieted, receipt on 

seƩlement of loan, etc.     
2. SecuriƟes premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This reserve is being uƟlised in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act.  
3. Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profit / amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.
4. Remeasurement of defined benefit plans comprises actuarial gains and losses which are recognised in other 

comprehensive income and then immediately transferred to retained earnings.    

Note 16(b) CorrecƟon of error in calculaƟon for depreciaƟon
The Company undertook reconciliaƟon of its fixed assets as per books and as per fixed assets register in 2017-18 and 
found mistake in calculaƟon of depreciaƟon i.e. the same was found to be overcharged in the books of accounts in earlier 
years.    
The aforesaid error has been corrected by restaƟng each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior period 
as follows: 

Balance Sheet (Extract) Property, Plant and 
Equipment

Retained Earnings

Balance as at 1st April, 2017                 28,277.07      (26,200.31)
Increase                     864.78              864.78 
Restated Balance as at 1st April, 2017                 29,141.85      (25,335.53)

Statement of Profit or Loss (Extract)  For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2018 

Increase / 
(Decrease)

 For the year 
ended 31st 

March, 2018 
(Restated) 

DepreciaƟon and amorƟzaƟon expense 1,639.31            (214.92) 1,424.39 
Profit for the year          263.39              214.92        478.31 

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the prior period have also been restated. The amount of correcƟon for both basic 
and diluted earnings per share was an increase of Rs. 0.87 and Rs. 0.61 per share respecƟvely.

Notes forming part of Financial Statements (` In Lakh)
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Note 17 Borrowings
(i)  Non-current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Term loans 
Secured

From EnƟƟes other than Bank
Invent Asset ReconstrucrƟon Company Ltd.  3,526.13  3,718.12 

Others
Unsecured
From Related parƟes 1656.03 1647.26
From Others  209.18  219.75 

Total  5,391.34  5,585.13 
Nature of securiƟes: 

i) Term loan from Invent is primarily secured by way of first pari passu charge on mortgage / hypothecaƟon over 90 MW 
cell line plant and equipment includiing land of Falta unit measuring 28,576.84 sq mts. Along with that, the loan is 
collaterally secured by way of first pari passu on equitable mortgage of indutrial plot at Sector V, Salt lake electronics 
complex measuring 1.06 acre on pari passu basis. 

Repayment Schedule as at March 31, 2019
ParƟculars Maturity profile Total
Secured loan Less than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years
Invent Asset ReconstrucrƟon Company Ltd.                   -   2,881.11             645.02                        3,526.13 

Repayment Schedule as at March 31, 2018
ParƟculars Maturity profile Total
Secured loan Less than 1 year 1-5 years Over 5 years
Invent Asset ReconstrucrƟon Company Ltd.  -    3,200.28 517.84  3,718.12 

(ii)  Current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Other loans and advances
Secured

Machinery Purchase Loan  570.76  570.76 
From bodies corporate*  -    1,217.66 
Unsecured

From bodies corporate*  1,634.79  695.74 
Total  2,205.55  2,484.16 

* Other than related parƟes
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Nature of securiƟes:

(i) Machinery purchase loan is secured by way of hypothecaton of respecƟve machinery so procured. 

Note 18 Trade and Other Payables
(i)  Non-current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Other payables
Payable to Suppliers of Capital Goods
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  -    -   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  3,282.93  3,838.40 
Total  3,282.93  3,838.40 

(ii)  Current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises  -    -   
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises  8,102.92  6,145.81 
Total  8,102.92  6,145.81 

Note 19 Other Financial Liabilities
(i)  Non-current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Foreign Currency ConverƟble Bonds  3,790.36  5,248.19 
Total  3,790.36  5,248.19 

(ii)  Current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Other Payables
Unpaid salary and other payroll dues  288.63  142.77 
Accrued expenses  625.81  501.62 
Total  914.44  644.39 

* There is no amount outstanding to be transferred to Investor ProtecƟon and Educaton Fund.

Note 20 Provisions

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Provision for Employee benefits
 Gratuity  138.68  -   
Total  138.68  -   
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Note 21 Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

ParƟculars Opening 
Balance

Recognised in 
profit or loss

Closing 
Balance

As at 31st March, 2019
Tax effect of items consƟtuƟng deferred tax liabiliƟes
DepreciaƟon      1,938.83              -   1,938.83 

     1,938.83        -   1,938.83 
Tax effect of items consƟtuƟng deferred tax assets
MAT credit enƟtlement          318.11                     -        318.11 

   318.11                  -   318.11 
Net deferred tax liabiliƟes / expense        1,620.72                  -   1,620.72 
As at 31st March, 2018
Tax effect of items consƟtuƟng deferred tax liabiliƟes
DepreciaƟon         1,938.83                    -      1,938.83 

       1,938.83                   -       1,938.83 
Tax effect of items consƟtuƟng deferred tax assets
MAT credit enƟtlement           266.69            51.42     318.11 

     266.69       51.42 318.11 
Net deferred tax liabiliƟes / expense 1,672.14          (51.42)    1,620.72 

Note 22 Other Current liabilities

(i)  Non-current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Lease ObligaƟon  0.09  0.10 
Deferred Income  708.02  481.07 
Total  708.11  481.17 

(ii)  Current
ParƟculars As at

31st March, 2019
As at

31st March, 2018
Advances from customers  -    129.56 
Statutory liabiliƟes  124.16  204.46 
Lease ObligaƟon  0.01  0.01 
Deferred Income  188.81  213.81 

 312.98  547.84 

Note 23 Short term provisions

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Provision for Employee benefits
Gratuity  5.61  116.35 
Other Provisions 
Excise Duty  100.00  100.00 
Total  105.61  216.35 
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Note 24 Revenue from operations

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Sale of goods
Solar Photovoltaic Cells and Modules  6,855.84  18,316.16 
Other operaƟng revenues
Tolling charges  -    11.09 
Total  6,855.84  18,327.25 

Note 25 Other income

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Interest income on financial assets carried at amorƟzed cost
Deposits with Bank  -    2.13 
Loans  185.24  435.95 
Security deposit  17.60  17.80 
Other non-operaƟng income
Sundry balances wriƩen back  1,375.29  503.29 
Insurance claim received  1.06  59.04 
Exchange FluctuaƟon Income  -    80.94 
Miscellaneous income  149.46  0.08 
Total  1,728.65  1,099.23 

Note 26 Cost of materials consumed

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Opening stock  806.78  183.42 
Add: Purchases  6,961.24  13,909.03 
         Carriage Inward  332.10  485.65 

 8,100.12  14,578.10 
Less: Closing stock  1,506.71  806.78 

 6,593.41  13,771.32 
Silicon Wafers  1,918.05  9,553.66 
Silver & Aluminium Paste  431.74  1,429.11 
Other Materials  4,243.62  2,788.55 
Total  6,593.41  13,771.32 

Note 27 Stores and Spares consumed

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Opening Stock  47.25  32.59 
Add: Purchase  277.45  868.87 
Less: Closing Stock  53.02  47.25 
Total  271.68  854.21 

Notes forming part of Financial Statements (` In Lakh)
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Note 28 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Finished Goods
Opening stock  680.29  157.17 
Less : Closing stock  1,696.66  680.29 
Total (A)  (1,016.37)  (523.12)
Work- in-progress
Opening stock  282.36  50.00 
Less :Closing stock  133.71  282.36 
Total (B)  148.65  (232.36)
Total (A + B)  (867.72)  (755.48)

Note 29 Power and Fuel

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Power and fuel  756.65  1,130.71 
Electric charges  2.69  2.87 
Total  759.34  1,133.58 

Note 30 Employee benefits expense

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Salaries, allowances, bonus and gratuity  864.69  796.45 
ContribuƟons to provident and other funds (Refer note no. 36 (4))  66.70  63.84 
Staff welfare expenses  15.02  16.51 
Total  946.41  876.80 

Note 31 Finance costs

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Interest 
On financial assets carried at amorƟsed cost  284.17   528.30
On one Ɵme seƩlement with bank and ARCs - 47.24
Other borrowing costs   327.26      280.35
Total  611.43   855.89

Note 32 Depreciation and amortisation expense

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

DepreciaƟon of property, plant and equipment (Refer note no. 4)*  1,547.89  1,423.28 
AmorƟsaƟon of intangible assets (Refer note no. 5)  1.46  1.11 
Total  1,549.35  1,424.39 

* Refer note 16 (b) for details regarding the restatement as a result of an error.
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Note 33 Other expenses

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Rent  55.74  48.31 
Repairs and maintenance to building  67.44  56.02 
Repairs and maintenance to machinery  21.53  43.25 
Repairs and maintenance to others  23.03  19.32 
Insurance  9.69  18.91 
LisƟng Fees  6.16  14.33 
Rates & taxes  11.80  6.27 
Carriage Outward  108.91  56.78 
Conference and MeeƟng expenses  4.38  4.38 
Director's Siƫng fees  3.65  3.24 
DonaƟon  2.00  5.00 
AdverƟsement and Selling Expenses  1.00  1.63 
Bank Commission and Charges  3.58  13.92 
PrinƟng and StaƟonery  8.68  8.36 
Professional and consultancy charges  201.11  245.24 
Payment to Auditor*  5.00  4.43 
Exchange FluctuaƟon Loss  535.64  -   
Telephone charges  9.34  9.72 
Travelling and Conveyance  65.38  83.67 
Coolie & Cartage  0.11  0.14 
Hire Charges  7.77  26.47 
Security Expenses  10.63  8.61 
Sundry Balances wriƩen off  242.56  1.26 
Credit impairment for doubƞul debt  1.83  -   
Other Selling Expenses  153.07  65.09 
Miscellaneous Expense  50.03  42.15 
Total  1,610.06  786.50 

Payment to Auditor Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018 #

As Auditor  3.00  3.57 
For Other Services  2.00  -   
For TaxaƟon MaƩers  -    0.86 
Total  5.00  4.43 

# Represents amount paid to previous statutory auditors.
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Note 34 Tax expense

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Current tax*  5.08  52.38 
Deferred tax (Refer note no. 21)  -    (51.42)

 5.08  0.96 
* Pertains to income tax for earlier years
ReconciliaƟon of Tax Expense
Profit/Loss before tax  (2,889.47)  479.27 
Applicable tax rate  -   20.39%
Computed tax expense  -    97.72 
Adjustment for:
Effect on Ind AS adjustment as at transiƟon date  -    2.48 
MAT Credit EnƟtlement  -    51.42 
Other differences  -    42.86 
Tax Expense  -    0.96 

Note 35 Earnings per share  

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Amount used as the numerator (Rs. in lakh)
Profit for the year - (A)  (2,894.55) 478.31 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding used as the 
denominator for compuƟng Basic Earnings per share - (B)

289.11 247.95 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding used as the 
denominator for compuƟng Diluted earnings per share  - (C)

351.34 351.53 

Nominal value of equity shares  (Rs.) 10.00 10.00 
Basic earnings per share  (Rs.)  (A/B)*  (10.01) 1.93 
Diluted earnings per share  (Rs.)  (A/C)*  (8.24)  1.36 

* Refer note 16 (b) for details regarding the restatement as a result of an error.

Note 36 Other disclosures 
1.  ConƟngent liabiliƟes  (to the extent not provided for)

Sl.  
No.

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

A. ConƟngent liabiliƟes :
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts :

(i) Income tax penalty*  -   628.05 
(ii) Excise duty and penalty** 187.54 187.54 
(iii) Trade payable- Liquidated damages 20.00 20.00 

207.54 835.59 
The amounts shown  above represent the best possible esƟmates arrived at on the basis of available informaƟon. 
The uncertainƟes and Ɵming of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of different legal processes 
which have been invoked by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be and, therefore, cannot be 
esƟmated accurately. The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of above conƟngent liabiliƟes.
In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered necessary for the disputes menƟoned above on the ground 
that there are fair chances of successful outcome of the appeals."    
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The company's product namely Solar Photovoltaic Modules carry a warranty of 25 years as per InternaƟonal Standards.

A fair esƟmate of future liability that may arise on this account is not ascertainable. The same shall be accounted for as and 
when any claim occurs.        

*  Income Tax demand pertaining to A.Y. 2013-14 was raised on the Company u/s 271(1)(c). However, the said demand 
was deleted vide order dated 04.02.2019.        

**  The company has paid Rs. 100 Lakh against this demand in the year 2004-05.

2. The company has not received any memorandum (as required to be filed by the suppliers with the noƟfied authority 
under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) claiming their status as on 31 March 2019 
as micro, small and medium enterprises. Consequently, the amount due to micro and  small enterprises as per 
requirement of SecƟon 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 is Nil (31st March 
2018 - Nil).       

3. OperaƟng segment

 The Company is primarily engaged in only one product line i.e., Solar photo-Voltaic Cells and Modules. All the 
acƟviƟes of the Company revolve around the main business. As such there are no separate reportable segments 
as per requirements of AccounƟng Standard (Ind AS- 108) on operaƟng segment. Further, the Company operates 
only in India, hence addiƟonal informaƟon under geographical segments is also not applicable. The Director of the 
Company has been idenƟfied as the Chief OperaƟng Decision Maker (CODM). The Chief OperaƟng Decision Maker also 
monitors the operaƟng results as one single segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocaƟon 
and performance assessment and hence, there are no addiƟonal disclosures to be provided other than those already 
provided in the financial statements.

4 Employee Benefits :         

 As per Indian AccounƟng Standard - 19 " Employee Benefits",  the disclosures of Employee Benefits are as 
follows: 

a) Defined ContribuƟon Plan :        

 Employee benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance CorporaƟon  are considered as defined 
contribuƟon plan.      

 The contribuƟons to the respecƟve fund are made in accordance with the relevant statute and are recognised as 
expense when employees have rendered service enƟtling them to the contribuƟon. The contribuƟons to defined 
contribuƟon plan, recognised as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as under : 

ParƟculars Year ended
31st March, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Employer's ContribuƟon to Provident Fund 49.25 45.60 
Employer's ContribuƟon to Employees' State Insurance Scheme 17.45 18.24 

ReƟring gratuity        

The Company had an obligaƟon towards gratuity, a defined benefit reƟrement plan covering eligible employees. The plan 
provided for a lump-sum payment to vested  employees at reƟrement, death while in employment or on terminaƟon of 
employment of an amount equivalent to 15/26 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service. VesƟng 
occured upon compleƟon of five years of service. The Company made annual contribuƟons to gratuity funds established 
as trusts or insurance companies. The Company accounted for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in the future based 
on an actuarial valuaƟon. The Company was exposed to actuarial risk, investment risk, interest risk, salary escalaƟon risk, 
demographic risk, regulatory risk.       

i.  Actuarial risk: It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following 
reasons:

 Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalaƟon will result into an 
increase in ObligaƟon at a rate that is higher than expected.

Notes forming part of Financial Statements (` In Lakh)



73
Statutory Reports
Financial Statements

FINANCIAL REPORTS

 Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate assumpƟon than the Gratuity 
benefits will be paid earlier than expected. Since there is no condiƟon of vesƟng on the death benefit, the acceleraƟon of cash 
flow will lead to an actuarial loss or gain depending on the relaƟve values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.
Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumpƟon than 
the Gratuity benefits will be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are 
vested as at there resignaƟon date."        

ii.  Investment risk: For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets cerƟfied by the 
insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is 
independent of the future discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuaƟons in the net liability or the funded status if 
there are significant changes in the discount rate during the inter-valuaƟon period.    

iii. Interest risk:  The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in 
an increase in the ulƟmate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the 
liability.        

iv.  Liquidity risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due 
to non-availability of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabiliƟes or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in 
Ɵme.        

v.  Salary EscalaƟon risk: The present value of the defined benefit plans calculated with the assumpƟon of salary increase 
rate of plan parƟcipants in future. DeviaƟon in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan parƟcipants from the 
rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligaƟon will have a bearing on the plan's liability. 
       

vi.  Demographic risk: The Company has used certain mortality and aƩriƟon assumpƟons in valuaƟon of the liability. The 
Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumpƟon.

vii.  Regulatory  risk: Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act , 1972 (as 
amended from Ɵme to Ɵme). There is a risk of change in regulaƟons requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. Increase in 
the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20 Lakh).     

The most recent actuarial valuaƟon of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon were carried 
out as at March 31, 2019  by a registered Actuary. The present value of the defined benefit obligaƟon, and the related 
current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The principal assumpƟons used for the purposes of the actuarial valuaƟons were as follows:

ParƟculars ValuaƟon
 As at

March 31, 2019 
Discount rate(s) 7.60%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 10.00%
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Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:-
ParƟculars  For the year 

ended 
March 31, 2019 

Current service cost                    17.18 
Past service cost and (gain)/loss from seƩlements                        -   
Net interest expense             7.90 
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss                25.08 
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net 
interest expense

              (0.03)

Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience assumpƟons                 27.66 
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from assumpƟons changes                          -   
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income                 27.63 
Total                52.71 

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the "Employee benefit expenses" line 
item in the statement of profit and loss 

The remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income 

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the enƟty's obligaƟon in respect of its defined benefit plans is as 
follows:

ParƟculars As at
March 31, 2019 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligaƟon  159.84 
Fair value of plan assets  (15.55)
Funded status  144.29 
RestricƟons on asset recognised  -   
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligaƟon  144.29 

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligaƟons are as follows:

ParƟculars  For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2019 
Opening defined benefit obligaƟons  130.78 
Current service cost  17.18 
Interest cost  9.00 
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience assumpƟons  27.66 
Benefits paid (24.78) 
Closing defined benefit obligaƟon  159.84 

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

ParƟculars  For the year 
ended 

March 31, 2019 
Opening fair value of plan assets  14.42 
Interest income  1.10 
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)  0.03 
Closing fair value of plan assets  15.55 
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ParƟculars As at
March 31, 2019 

Investment Details Gratuity
Funded

Scheme of insurance - convenƟonal products 100%

The following payments are expected contribuƟons to the defined benefit plan in future years:
ParƟculars As at

March 31, 2019 
March 31, 2020  21.95 
March 31, 2021  2.70 
March 31, 2022  2.83 
March 31, 2023  11.62 
March 31, 2024  8.19 
March 31, 2025 to March 31, 2029  80.11 
Total expected payments 127.40

SensiƟvity analysis        

Significant actuarial assumpƟon for determinaƟon of defined benefit plan are discount rate and expected salary growth. 
The sensiƟvity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumpƟons occurring 
at the end of the reporƟng period, while holding all other assumpƟons constant. The result of sensiƟvity analysis is given 
below : 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

For the year ended 
March 31, 2019

AssumpƟons Discount rate Future salary increases
SensiƟvity Level +1 % 

increase
-1 % 

decrease
+1 % 

increase
-1 % 

decrease
 Impact on defined benefit obligaƟon (12.20)       15.00   13.20      (11.50)
 % Change compared to base due to sensiƟvity [+/(-)%] 

Note:  Actuarial ValuaƟon for gratuity has been done only as at 31st March, 2019. Hence, figures for earlier periods could 
not be disclosed.        

5. Details of Loan, guarantee and Investments covered under secƟon 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 :

 All loans as disclosed in Note No. 7 are provided for business purposes. The Company has neither given any security 
or guarantee nor made any investment during the year.  

6. Disclosure under RegulaƟon 34(3) of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015

 There are no transacƟons which are required to be disclosed under Schedule V to the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015.        

7. Lease disclosure

 Finance lease taken

 The Company’s significant leasing arrangements is in respect of financial leases for factory in salt lake and falta. 
Leasehold land of Salt Lake unit has been acquired under a lease of 90 years with a renewal opƟon and Leasehold land 
of Falta SEZ unit has been acquired under a lease of 15 years with a renewal opƟon.The aggregate lease rentals payable 
are charged as ‘Rent’ under note no. 33.        
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The future minimum rentals are as follows:

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Not later than one year  33.58  22.03 
Later than one year and not later than five years  131.03  104.64 
Later than five years  -    12.81 

 164.61  139.48 

8 Related party disclosures
a) Name of the related parƟes and 

descripƟon of relaƟonship :
i) Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP):

Mr. S.L. Agarwal - Managing Director
Smt Sima Jhunjhunwala - Whole Time Director
Smt Sweta Biyani - CS (Resigned on 29.03.2019)

ii) Other related parƟes
Close members of KMP Sangrima Enterprise - RelaƟve of Managing Director is partner in the firm
Significant influence enƟƟes S.L Industries Pvt. Ltd. (Promoter 

Company)
b) TransacƟons with Related parƟes :
Nature of transacƟon/ Name of related 
party

Significant influence enƟƟes  Key 
Managerial 
Personnel 

(KMP)

Close 
members 
of KMP

Total

(i) CompensaƟon/ RemunraƟon of KMP
Mr. S.L. Agarwal  - 90.26  - 90.26

(-)  (64.02) (-)  (64.02)
Smt. Sima Jhunjhunwala  - 18.87  - 18.87 

(-)  (18.28) (-)  (18.28)
Smt. Sweta Biyani  - 2.19  - 2.19 

(-)  (2.07) (-)  (2.07)
(ii) Unsecured Loan taken

S.L Industries Pvt. Ltd.  -  -  -  - 
 (684.32)  -  -  (684.32)

(iii) Unsecured Loan Repayment
S.L Industries Pvt. Ltd.  -  -  -  - 

 (669.53) (-) (-)  (669.53)
(iv) Purchase of Goods

Sangrima Enterprise  -  - 37.01 37.01 
(-) (-)  (99.39)  (99.39)

(v) Amount paid for purchase
Sangrima Enterprise  -  - 62.74 62.74 

(-) (-)  (277.00)  (277.00)
(vi) Sale of Goods

Sangrima Enterprise  -  - 4.64 4.64 
(-) (-)  (96.19)  (96.19)
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Balance outstanding as at the year end:
(i) Unsecured Loan Payable Outstanding

S.L Industries Pvt. Ltd.  -  -  -  - 
 (206.23) (-) (-)  (206.23)

(ii) Trade payable outstanding at the end of the year
Sangrima Enterprise  -  - 37.01 37.01 

(-) (-)  (62.74)  (62.74)
(iii) Trade receivable outstanding at the end of the year

Sangrima Enterprise  -  - 7.28 7.28 
(-) (-)  (96.19)  (96.19)

c) Details of RemuneraƟon paid/ payable to KMP
ParƟculars Mr. S.L. Agarwal Smt Sima 

Jhunjhunwala 
Smt Sweta 

Biyani 
Total 

Short - term employee benefits
Salary  79.82 

 (57.68)
 16.12 

 (15.46)
 1.80 

 (1.80)
 97.74 

 (74.94)
Perquisites  3.73  1.41  0.15  5.29 

 (2.89)  (1.54)  (0.03)  (4.46)
 83.55  17.53  1.95  103.03 

 (60.57)  (17.00)  (1.83)  (79.40)
Post employment benefits
ContribuƟon to provident fund, 
gratuity and other funds

 6.71  1.34  0.24  8.29 
 (3.45)  (1.28)  (0.24)  (4.97)
 90.26  18.87  2.19  111.32 

 (64.02)  (18.28)  (2.07)  (84.37)

d) The transacƟons with related parƟes have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from those 
on normal commercial terms.

e) The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be seƩled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No 
expense has been recognised in current year and previous year for bad or doubƞul debts in respect of the amounts 
owed by related parƟes.

f) Figures in brackets-( ) represents for year ended 31st March, 2018.

9.   Financial instruments - AccounƟng, ClassificaƟon and Fair value measurements
A.  Financial instruments by category

As at 31st march, 2019 (Rs. In Lakh)
Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars Refer 
Note 
No.

 Total Fair 
Value 

Carrying value
AmorƟzed 

cost
FVTOCI FVTPL Total

(1) Financial assets
(a) Trade receivables 11 965.68 965.68            -   -   965.68 
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 12 7.49 7.49        -   -   7.49 
(c) Bank Balances other than Cash and 

cash equivalents
13 0.35 0.35 0.35 

(d) Loans 7 531.36 531.36         -   -   531.36 
(e) Other financial assets 8 345.81 345.81        -   -   345.81 

Total 1,850.69 1,850.69         -   -   1,850.69 
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Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars Refer 
Note 
No.

 Total Fair 
Value 

Carrying value
AmorƟzed 

cost
FVTOCI FVTPL Total

(2) Financial liabiliƟes
(a) Borrowings 17 7,596.89 7,596.89  -  - 7,596.89 
(b) Trade payables 18 11,385.85 11,385.85  -  - 11,385.85 
(c) Other financial liabiliƟes 19 4,704.80 4,704.80  -  - 4,704.80 

Total 23,687.54 23,687.54  -  - 23,687.54 
As at 31st March, 2018 (Rs. In Lakh)
Sl. 
No.

ParƟculars Refer 
Note 
No.

 Total Fair 
Value 

Carrying value
AmorƟzed 

cost
FVTOCI FVTPL Total

(1) Financial assets
(a) Trade receivables 11 2,134.26   2,134.26  -  - 2,134.26 
(b) Cash and cash equivalents 12         7.12           7.12  -  - 7.12 
(c) Bank Balances other than Cash and 

cash equivalents
13         0.35           0.35 0.35 

(d) Loans 7     845.30      845.30  -  -      845.30 
(e) Other financial assets 8     350.64      350.64  -  -        350.64 

Total 3,337.67   3,337.67  -  -    3,337.67 
(2) Financial liabiliƟes
(a) Borrowings 17 8,069.29   8,069.29  -  - 8,069.29 
(b) Trade payables 18 9,984.21   9,984.21  -  - 9,984.21 
(c) Other financial liabiliƟes 19 5,892.57   5,892.57  -  - 5,892.57 

Total 23,946.07 23,946.07  -  - 23,946.07 
Fair value hierarchy
The fair value of the financial assets and financial liabiliƟes are included at the amount at which the instrument could 
be exchanged in a current transacƟon between willing parƟes, other than in a forced or liquidaƟon sale.
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in acƟve markets for idenƟcal assets or liabiliƟes.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabiliƟes that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, loans and 
other current financial assets, short term borrowings, trade payables and other current financial liabiliƟes is considered 
to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.

Where such items are Non-current in nature, the same has been classified as Level 3 and fair value determined using 
adjusted net asset value method. 
There has been no change in the valuaƟon methodology for Level 3 inputs during the year. The Company has not classified 
any material financial instruments under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between Level 1 and 
Level 2.
Financial assets and financial liabiliƟes measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31st March, 2019 Nil (31st March, 
2018 : Nil).
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10. Financial risk management objecƟves and policies
 The Company’s acƟviƟes expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company’s Board of Directors has 

overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. This note 
explains the sources of risk which the enƟty is exposed to and how the enƟty manages the risk and the related impact 
in the financial statements.

 (a)  Credit risk
  Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligaƟons under financial instrument or a customer 

contract leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposure to credit risk from its operaƟng acƟviƟes primarily 
trade receivables with exchanges  and from its financing acƟviƟes including deposits placed with bank and other 
financial instruments/assets. Credit risk from balances with bank and other financial instrument is managed in 
accordance with company's policies.  

  Credit risk arising from balances with banks and other cash equivalents is limited and no collaterals are held 
against these because the counterparƟes are banks and recognised financial insƟtuƟons with high credit raƟngs 
assigned by creidt raƟng agencies.

  Loans and other financial assets measured at amorƟzed cost includes loans to related parƟes, security deposits 
and others. Credit risk related to these financial assets are managed by monitoring the recoverability of such 
amounts conƟnuously, while at the same Ɵme internal control system is in place to ensure that the amounts are 
within defined limits.

  Customer credit risk is managed as per company's established policy, procedure and control related to credit risk 
management. Credit quality of the customer is assessed based on his previous track record and funds & securiƟes 
held by him in his account amd individual credit limit are defined according to this assessment. Outstanding 
customer receivables are regularly monitored. An impairment analysis is performed at each balance sheet 
date on an individual basis for major clients. In addiƟon, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into 
homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collecƟvely. Assets are wriƩen off when there is no reasonable 
expectaƟon of recovery. The Company conƟnues to engage with parƟes whose balances are wriƩen off and 
aƩempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognized in statement of profit and loss. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

  The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets on the basis of assumpƟons, inputs and 
factors specific to the class of financial assets. The Company provides for expected credit loss on Cash and cash 
equivalents, other bank balances, investments, loans, trade receivables and other financial assets  based on 12 
months expected credit loss/life Ɵme expected credit loss/ fully provided for. Life Ɵme expected credit loss is 
provided for trade receivables.

  Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach
  In respect of trade receivables, the Company considers provision for lifeƟme expected credit loss. Given the 

nature of business operaƟons, the Company’s trade receivables has low credit risk. Further, historical trends 
indicate any shorƞall between such deposits held by the Company and amounts due from customers have been 
negligible. Hence, no loss allowances using life Ɵme expected credit loss mode is required.

The movement of Trade Receivables and Expected Credit Loss are as follows:

ParƟculars As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Trade Receivables (Gross)  973.81  2,140.55 
Less: Expected Credit Loss  (8.12)  (6.29)
Trade Receivables (Net)  965.68  2,134.26 

(b) Liquidity risk       

 Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to seƩle or meet its obligaƟon on Ɵme or at 
reasonable price. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securiƟes 
and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of commiƩed credit faciliƟes to meet obligaƟons when 
due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under 
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commiƩed faciliƟes. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity posiƟon and cash and cash 
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company takes into account the liquidity of the market in which 
the enƟty operates.

 The tables below summarises the Company’s financial liabiliƟes into relevant maturity groupings based on their 
contractual maturiƟes.       

Particulars  Less than 1 
year 

1-5 years More than 5 
years

Total

As at 31st March, 2019
Borrowings (excluding interest) 2,205.55 4,746.32      645.02 7,596.89 
Trade payables 8,102.92 3,282.93  - 11,385.85 
Other financial liabiliƟes 914.44 3,790.36  - 4,704.80 
Total 11,222.91 11,819.61     645.02 23,687.54 
As at 31st March, 2018
Borrowings (excluding interest) 2,484.17 5,067.29 517.84 8,069.30 
Trade payables 2,380.00 7,604.21                   -   9,984.21 
Other financial liabiliƟes 644.40 5,248.19                   -   5,892.59 
Total 5,508.57 17,919.69 517.84 23,946.10 

(c) Market risk       

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change 
in market prices. Market rate risk comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk such as equity price 
risk and commodity risk.     

 Foreign currency risk  

 Foreign currency risk is the risk of impact related to fair value of future cash flows if an exposure in foreign currency, 
which fluctuate due to change in forign currency rate. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign 
exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s foreign currency denominated borrowings and trade payables.  The 
foreign currency risk is unhedged.    

Unhedged Foreign Currency exposures are as follows :-       

ParƟculars Currency As at
31st March, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

Amount receivable on account of sale of goods, loans and 
advances, interest, etc.

USD NIL NIL

Amount payable on account of purchase of goods and 
services, loans and advances, interest, etc.

USD 105.64 NIL

EURO 18.42 NIL
Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change 
in market interest rate.

i)  Liabilities

 The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are, therefore, not subject to interest rate 
risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a 
change in market interest rates. 

 The Company has no variable rate borrowings.
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ii)  Assets

 The company’s fixed deposits and loans are carried at fixed rate. Therefore, these are not subject to interest rate risk as 
defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change 
in market interest rates.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value of financial instrument will fluctuate due to change in market traded price.  

The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk arising 
from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets. 

11. Capital Management

 Risk management

 For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, securities premium and 
all other equity reserves attributable to the equity share-holders of the Company. The Company’s objective when 
managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns to 
shareholders and other stake holders and maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of Capital. 

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in the financial condition and 
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders (buy back its shares) or issue new shares. 

 In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 
that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 
requirements. The Company has complied with these covenants.

 No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31st March, 
2019 and 31st March, 2018.       

ParƟculars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Net debt  7,589.41  8,062.18 
Total equity 8597.14  8,981.79 
Net debt to equity raƟo 0.88 0.90 

* Net debt = non-current borrowings + current borrowings + current maturities of non-current borrowings + interest 
accrued – cash and cash equivalents.

12. Investment in Websol Energy System Europe KG has been written off since the said Company is incurring losses and 
there is no future possibility of realizing the investment made in the said Company. (Refer Note 6 to the Financial 
Statements) 

13. Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Standards Issued but not yet Effective

 i) Ind AS 116

  Ind AS 116 is effective for period beginning on or after 1st April, 2019. It will replace previous lease standard Ind 
AS 17. 

  Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for recognition, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to 
account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 
17. 

  Ind AS 116 requires lessees to recognize a ‘right-of-use asset’ and a ‘lease liability’ for almost all leasing 
arrangements. Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under Ind 
AS 17. The lessor still has to classify leases as either finance or operating. 

  The Company is evaluating the impact of the standard and amendment on the financial position and results of 
operation.
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 ii) Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments to Ind AS 12

  Appendix C has been added to Ind AS 12 which seeks to bring clarity to the accounting for uncertainties on income 
tax treatment that are yet to be accepted by tax authorities and to reflect in the measurement of current and 
deferred taxes.

  The Company is evaluating the impact of the standard and amendment on the financial position and results of 
operation.

 iii) Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation, Amendments to Ind AS 109 

  The amendments relate to the existing requirements in Ind AS 109 regarding termination rights in order to allow 
measurement at amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair value through other comprehensive 
income) even in the case of negative compensation payments. The Company does not expect this amendment to 
have any impact on its financial statements.

 iv) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement- Amendments to Ind AS 19

  On 30th March, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in 
connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements.

 The amendments require an entity: 

  •  to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the 
period after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

  •  to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a 
surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling 

 Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The 
Company does not have any impact on account of this amendment. 

14. The previous year’s have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary. Amounts and 
other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and 
are to be read in relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year. 

The accompanying notes 1 to 36 are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date aƩached.
For G. P. AGRAWAL & CO.
Chartered Accountants S.L.Agarwal Sima Jhunjhunwala
Firm's RegistraƟon No. - 302082E Managing Director

DIN No. 00189898
Chief Financial Officer & Whole Time 

Director
DIN No. 07264006

(CA. Sunita Kedia)
Partner
Membership No. 60162 Sweta Biyani (Resigned on 29.03.2019)

Company Secretary
Place of Signature: Kolkata Membership No. : ACS22218
Date: 29th day of May, 2019

Notes forming part of Financial Statements (` In Lakh)



83
Statutory Reports
Financial Statements

FINANCIAL REPORTS

Notes



Notes



WEBSOL ENERGY SYSTEM LIMITED
Registered Office : 48, Pramatha Choudhury Sarani, Plot 849, Block P New Alipore, Kolkata – 700 053
CIN NO : L29307WB1990PLC048350 
Telephone : (033) 2400-0419, Email : investors@webelsolar.com. Website : www.webelsolar.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Folio No/DP ID & Client ID :  
Annual General MeeƟng of the Company, to 
be held on Monday, September 30, 2019 at Share Holding :  

09.30AM at Nazrul Tirtha, Biswa Bangla Serial No :  
Sarani, beside DLF Building, AF Block- Name :                                                                                                                                     
(Newtown), AcƟon Area-1A, Newtown Name(s) of Joint Holder(s), if any :  
Kolkata, West Bengal-700156 Address :  

................………………………………………………………………………. .............. ……………………………………………………......................
 Proxy’s Name in Block Letters Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please bring the Attendance Slip duly signed to the meeting and hand it over at the Entrance of the Meeting Hall. 
Duplicate slips will not be issued at the venue of the AGM.

WEBSOL ENERGY SYSTEM LIMITED PROXY FORM : MGT-11

Registered Office : 48, Pramatha Choudhury Sarani, Plot 849, Block P New Alipore, Kolkata – 700 053
CIN NO : L29307WB1990PLC048350 
Telephone : (033) 2400-0419, Email : investors@webelsolar.com. Website : www.webelsolar.com

[Pursuant to SecƟon 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and AdministraƟon) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member(s): .......................................................................................................................................................................

Registered Address : ...............................................................................................................................................................................

E-mail ID : ...............................................................................................................................................................................................

Folio No/DP ID & Client ID : ................................................................................................................................................................... 

I/We, being the Member(s) of Websol Energy System Limited, holding………………………….Equity Shares of the above named Company, 
hereby appoint :

1) Name : ……………………………………………………………………………....Address……………………………………………………..........……………...........……

 E-mail ID :…………………………………………………………………….…....Signature : ...……………………………..………........….….   or failing him/her;

2) Name : ……………………………………………………………………………....Address………………………………………………….........……............………………

 E-mail ID :…………………………………………………………………….…....Signature : ...……………………………..……........………..  or failing him/her;

3) Name : ……………………………………………………………………………....Address…………………………………………………….....................…………………

 E-mail ID :…………………………………………………………………….…....Signature : ……………………………..……………….......………........……………….

as my/our Proxy to aƩend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General MeeƟng of the Company, to 
be held on Monday, September 30, 2019 at 09.30AM at Nazrul Tirtha, Biswa Bangla Sarani, beside DLF Building, AF Block (Newtown), 
AcƟon Area-1A, Newtown, Kolkata, West Bengal-700156



Sl. 
No.

ResoluƟons OpƟonal *
For Against

Ordinary Business
1 AdopƟon of the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st March, 2019, the 

Statement of Profit & Loss and the cash flow statement for the year ended as on that date 
together with Notes, Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2 To appoint a Director in place of Shri Sohan Lal Agarwal, Managing Director (DIN 00189898), 
who reƟres by rotaƟon and being eligible offer himself for re-appointment.

Special Business
3 Appointment of Mr. Ritesh Ojha  (DIN: 08277744) as an Independent Director of the 

Company
4 Re-appointment of Mr. Dharmendra Sethia (DIN:06775533) as Non-ExecuƟve Director of 

the Company

Signed this …………………………………………….day of …………………………………….2019

Signature of Shareholder……………………………………………………..Signature of Proxyholder……………………………….………….....……

Notes :

1. This form of proxy in order to be effecƟve should be duly completed and deposited at the Company’s Registered 
Office or Head and Corporate Office not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the AGM.

2. For the ResoluƟons, please refer to the NoƟce of Annual General MeeƟng of the Company.

3. *It is opƟonal to put a ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resoluƟons indicated to the box. If you leave the 
‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against and vor all ResoluƟons, your Proxy will be enƟtled to vote in the manner as 
he/she thinks appropriate.

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVEN(Electronic VoƟng Event Number) User ID Password

Note : Please refer to AGM NoƟce for E-voƟng instrucƟons.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp of 
` 1/- here






	Websol Annual Report 18-19 (11-09-19).pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Websol Secretarial 2019.pdf
	Websol Accounts 2019.indd.pdf

	Websol Annual Report 18-19 (09-09-19).pdf
	Websol Cover 2019.pdf (p.1-4)
	Websol sec and acc.pdf (p.5-90)
	Websol Secretarial 2019.pdf
	Websol Accounts 2019.indd.pdf



	Websol Secretarial 2019.pdf
	Websol Accounts 2019.indd.pdf


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /AardvarkBold
    /ACaslonPro-Bold
    /ACaslonPro-BoldItalic
    /ACaslonPro-Italic
    /ACaslonPro-Regular
    /ACaslonPro-Semibold
    /ACaslonPro-SemiboldItalic
    /AdobeArabic-Bold
    /AdobeArabic-BoldItalic
    /AdobeArabic-Italic
    /AdobeArabic-Regular
    /AdobeDevanagari-Bold
    /AdobeDevanagari-BoldItalic
    /AdobeDevanagari-Italic
    /AdobeDevanagari-Regular
    /AdobeFangsongStd-Regular
    /AdobeFanHeitiStd-Bold
    /AdobeGothicStd-Bold
    /AdobeHebrew-Bold
    /AdobeHebrew-BoldItalic
    /AdobeHebrew-Italic
    /AdobeHebrew-Regular
    /AdobeHeitiStd-Regular
    /AdobeKaitiStd-Regular
    /AdobeMingStd-Light
    /AdobeMyungjoStd-Medium
    /AdobeNaskh-Medium
    /AdobeSongStd-Light
    /AeroRegularSWFTE
    /AGaramondPro-Bold
    /AGaramondPro-BoldItalic
    /AGaramondPro-Italic
    /AGaramondPro-Regular
    /AGaramond-Regular
    /AGBenguiatCyrBook
    /AgencyFB-Bold
    /AgencyFB-Reg
    /AkrutiBngBharatiNormal
    /AkrutiBngSharatBold
    /AkrutiBngSuchitraNormal
    /AkrutiBngVivekBold
    /AkrutiBngVivekNormal
    /AkrutiDevChakraBold
    /AkrutiDevHarshaMedium
    /AkrutiDevManojBold
    /AkrutiDevManojNormal
    /AkrutiDevManoramaBold
    /AkrutiDevMoujBold
    /AkrutiDevMoujLight
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaBold
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaExpandBold
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaExpandNormal
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaMedium
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaNormal
    /AkrutiDevPriyaBold
    /AkrutiDevPriyaExpandedBold
    /AkrutiDevPriyaExpandedNormal
    /AkrutiDevPriyaNormal
    /AkrutiDevRohiniBold
    /AkrutiDevRohiniNormal
    /AkrutiDevShridharBold
    /AkrutiDevShridharNormal
    /AkrutiDevSunilNormal
    /AkrutiGanpati1
    /AkrutiGanpati2
    /AkrutiGanpati3
    /AkrutiGanpati4
    /AkrutiGanpati5
    /AkrutiImage1
    /AkrutiImage10
    /AkrutiImage11
    /AkrutiImage12
    /AkrutiImage13
    /AkrutiImage14
    /AkrutiImage3
    /AkrutiImage9
    /AkrutiSnmChanakyaNormalItalic
    /AlbertsthalTypewriter
    /AlbumDrei
    /AlexBrush-Regular
    /Algerian
    /AmasisMT
    /AmasisMT-Light
    /AmasisMT-LightItalic
    /AmasisMT-Medium
    /AmasisMT-MediumItalic
    /AmazingGrotesk-DemiBold
    /AmazingGrotesk-DemiBoldItalic
    /AmazingGrotesk-Light
    /AmazingGrotesk-Ultra
    /AmazingGrotesk-UltraItalic
    /AmazoneBT-Regular
    /appleberry
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialRoundedMTBold
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /ArtBrewery
    /AssemblyLightSSK
    /AtlantixProSSi
    /ATRotisSansSerif-Bold
    /ATRotisSansSerif-Italic
    /AvantGarde-BookTh
    /AvantGarde-BookWd
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Book
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-BookOblique
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Demi
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-DemiOblique
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Medium
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-MediumOblique
    /BacktoBlackDemo
    /Bahnschrift
    /BalloonBT-ExtraBold
    /Banff-Normal
    /BanffPSMT
    /BankGothicBT-Medium
    /BaskOldFace
    /Bauhaus
    /Bauhaus93
    /Bauhaus-Bold
    /Bauhaus-BoldItalic
    /Bauhaus-Heavy-Bold
    /Bauhaus-Thin
    /BebasNeue
    /BellGothicBT-Bold
    /BellGothicStd-Black
    /BellGothicStd-Bold
    /BellMT
    /BellMTBold
    /BellMTItalic
    /BelweBT-Bold
    /BelweBT-Light
    /BelweBT-Medium
    /BelweBT-RomanCondensed
    /BendableBRK
    /Bengasi
    /BenguiatGothicBold
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-Bold
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-BoldItal
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-Book
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-BookItal
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-Bold
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-BoldItalic
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-Book
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-BookItalic
    /Benighted
    /BerkshireSwash-Regular
    /BerlinSansFB-Bold
    /BerlinSansFBDemi-Bold
    /BerlinSansFB-Reg
    /BermudaLP-Squiggle
    /BernardMT-Condensed
    /BernhardFashionBT-Regular
    /BernhardModernBT-Bold
    /BernhardModernBT-BoldItalic
    /BickhamScriptStd-Bold
    /BirchStd
    /BlackadderITC-Regular
    /BlackjackRollin
    /BlackoakStd
    /BodoniBT-Bold
    /BodoniBT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniBT-Book
    /BodoniBT-BookItalic
    /BodoniMT
    /BodoniMTBlack
    /BodoniMTBlack-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Bold
    /BodoniMT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Bold
    /BodoniMTCondensed-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Italic
    /BodoniMTPosterCompressed
    /BoisterBlack
    /BookAntiqua
    /BookAntiqua-Bold
    /BookAntiqua-BoldItalic
    /BookAntiqua-Italic
    /BookmanOldStyle
    /BookmanOldStyle-Bold
    /BookmanOldStyle-BoldItalic
    /BookmanOldStyle-Italic
    /BookshelfSymbolSeven
    /Boomerang
    /BoomerangItalic
    /BoringBoring
    /BoringJoined
    /BradleyHandITC
    /BritannicBold
    /Broadway
    /Brush-Script
    /BrushScriptMT
    /BrushScript-Normal-Italic
    /BrushScriptStd
    /Brush-ScriptWide
    /Brushstroke
    /Caesar
    /Calibri
    /Calibri-Bold
    /Calibri-BoldItalic
    /Calibri-Italic
    /Calibri-Light
    /Calibri-LightItalic
    /CalifornianFB-Bold
    /CalifornianFB-Italic
    /CalifornianFB-Reg
    /CalisMTBol
    /CalistoMT
    /CalistoMT-BoldItalic
    /CalistoMT-Italic
    /Cambria
    /Cambria-Bold
    /Cambria-BoldItalic
    /Cambria-Italic
    /CambriaMath
    /Candara
    /Candara-Bold
    /Candara-BoldItalic
    /Candara-Italic
    /Candara-Light
    /Candara-LightItalic
    /CarbonBlock
    /CaslonAntique
    /CaslonAntiqueItalic
    /Castellar
    /CastleT-Ligh
    /CataneoBT-Bold
    /CataneoBT-BoldSwash
    /CataneoBT-Light
    /CataneoBT-Regular
    /Centaur
    /Century
    /Century725BT-RomanCondensed
    /Century751BT-BoldB
    /Century751BT-BoldItalicB
    /Century751BT-ItalicB
    /Century751BT-No2ItalicB
    /Century751BT-RomanB
    /Century751BT-RomanNo2B
    /Century751BT-SemiBold
    /Century751BT-SemiBoldItalicB
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Bold
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-BoldIt
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Italic
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Roman
    /CenturySchoolbook
    /CenturySchoolbook-Bold
    /CenturySchoolbook-BoldItalic
    /CenturySchoolbook-Italic
    /CFBadNews-Regular
    /Chandini-NormalA
    /Chaparral-Display
    /ChaparralPro-Bold
    /ChaparralPro-BoldIt
    /ChaparralPro-Italic
    /ChaparralPro-LightIt
    /ChaparralPro-Regular
    /CharlemagneStd-Bold
    /ChaseCallasSH
    /Chessmaster5500
    /Chiller-Regular
    /ChopinScript
    /ClarendonBT-Black
    /ClarendonBT-Bold
    /ClarendonBT-Light
    /ClarendonBT-Roman
    /Colaborate-Bold
    /Colaborate-Medium
    /ColonnaMT
    /ComicSansMS
    /ComicSansMS-Bold
    /ComicSansMS-BoldItalic
    /ComicSansMS-Italic
    /ComixHighlight
    /CommercialScript
    /CommercialScriptBT-Regular
    /CommercialScriptStd
    /CommercialScrT
    /Consolas
    /Consolas-Bold
    /Consolas-BoldItalic
    /Consolas-Italic
    /Constantia
    /Constantia-Bold
    /Constantia-BoldItalic
    /Constantia-Italic
    /CooperBlack
    /CooperBlackStd
    /CooperBlackStd-Italic
    /CooperBT-Black
    /CooperBT-BlackHeadline
    /CooperBT-BlackItalic
    /CooperBT-BlackItalicHeadline
    /CooperBT-BlackOutline
    /CooperBT-Bold
    /CooperBT-BoldItalic
    /CooperBT-Light
    /CooperBT-LightItalic
    /CooperBT-Medium
    /CooperBT-MediumItalic
    /CooperPlanck2LightSH
    /CooperPlanck6BoldSH
    /CooperPlanck8HeavySH
    /CopperplateGothic-Bold
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Bold
    /CopperplateGothicBT-BoldCond
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Heavy
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Roman
    /CopperplateGothicBT-RomanCond
    /CopperplateGothic-Light
    /Corbel
    /Corbel-Bold
    /Corbel-BoldItalic
    /Corbel-Italic
    /CorbelLight
    /CorbelLight-Italic
    /Coronet-SemiBold-Italic
    /CorporateHQ
    /Cotillion
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Cuprum-Bold
    /Cuprum-BoldItalic
    /CuprumFFU
    /Cuprum-Italic
    /Cuprum-Regular
    /CurlzMT
    /Cutout
    /DauphinPlain
    /DeVinneBT-Text
    /DFGothic-EB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFKaiSho-SB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-SU-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-UB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-W5-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFPOP1-W9-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DIN-Black
    /DIN-Bold
    /DINPro-Bold
    /DINPro-Light
    /DINPro-Medium
    /DIN-Regular
    /Dobra-Book
    /Dobra-BookItalic
    /Dobra-Light
    /Dobra-Medium
    /EasyRider
    /Ebrima
    /Ebrima-Bold
    /EccentricStd
    /EdwardianScriptITC
    /Elephant-Italic
    /Elephant-Regular
    /EmbassyBT-Regular
    /English111VivaceBT-Regular
    /EngraversGothicBT-Regular
    /EngraversMT
    /ErasITC-Bold
    /ErasITC-Demi
    /ErasITC-Light
    /ErasITC-Medium
    /EuroSig
    /Eurostile
    /Eurostile-Bold
    /Eurostile-BoldCondensed
    /Eurostile-BoldExtendedTwo
    /Eurostile-BoldOblique
    /Eurostile-Condensed
    /Eurostile-Demi
    /Eurostile-DemiOblique
    /Eurostile-ExtendedTwo
    /Eurostile-Oblique
    /EverydayMayhem
    /Exotic350BT-Bold
    /Exotic350BT-DemiBold
    /FelixTitlingMT
    /FencesPlain
    /FibographyPersonalUse
    /FixedMiriamTransparent
    /FoglihtenNo07calt
    /FootlightMTLight
    /ForteMT
    /FranklinGothic-Book
    /FranklinGothic-BookItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Demi
    /FranklinGothic-DemiCond
    /FranklinGothic-DemiItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Heavy
    /FranklinGothic-HeavyItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Medium
    /FranklinGothic-MediumCond
    /FranklinGothic-MediumItalic
    /FranklinGotItcTEE-Book
    /FranklinGotItcTEE-Heav
    /Freehand521BT-RegularC
    /Freehand575
    /Freehand591
    /Freehand591-Bold
    /FreestyleScript
    /FreestyleScript-Regular
    /FrenchScriptMT
    /FrillyKnickers
    /FujiyamaPSMT
    /FuturaBlackBT-Regular
    /Futura-Bold
    /FuturaBT-Bold
    /FuturaBT-BoldCondensed
    /FuturaBT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /FuturaBT-BoldItalic
    /FuturaBT-Book
    /FuturaBT-BookItalic
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlack
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackCondensed
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackCondItalic
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackItalic
    /FuturaBT-Heavy
    /FuturaBT-HeavyItalic
    /FuturaBT-Light
    /FuturaBT-LightCondensed
    /FuturaBT-LightItalic
    /FuturaBT-Medium
    /FuturaBT-MediumCondensed
    /FuturaBT-MediumItalic
    /FuturaExt-Bold
    /Futura-Heavy
    /Gabriola
    /Gadugi
    /Gadugi-Bold
    /Ganesh
    /Ganess
    /Garamond
    /Garamond-Bold
    /Garamond-Italic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-Bold
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldCondensed
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldCondItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-Book
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookCondensed
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookCondItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookItalic
    /Garamond-Kursiv
    /GaramondPremrPro
    /GaramondPremrPro-It
    /GaramondPremrPro-Smbd
    /GaramondPremrPro-SmbdIt
    /GargoyleSSi
    /Geometric212BT-BookCondensed
    /Geometric212BT-HeavyCondensed
    /Geometric415BT-BlackA
    /Geometric415BT-BlackItalicA
    /Geometric415BT-MediumA
    /Geometric415BT-MediumItalicA
    /Geometric706BT-BlackCondensedB
    /GeometricSlab703BT-Bold
    /GeometricSlab703BT-BoldCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-BoldItalic
    /GeometricSlab703BT-Medium
    /GeometricSlab703BT-MediumCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-MediumItalic
    /GeometricSlab703BT-XtraBoldCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-XtraBoldItal
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Giddyup
    /GiddyupStd
    /Gigi-Regular
    /GillSans
    /GillSans-Bold
    /GillSansMT
    /GillSansMT-Bold
    /GillSansMT-BoldItalic
    /GillSansMT-Condensed
    /GillSansMT-ExtraCondensedBold
    /GillSansMT-Italic
    /GillSans-UltraBold
    /GillSans-UltraBoldCondensed
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaBold
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaBoldItalic
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaItalic
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaNormal
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaBold
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaBoldItalic
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaItalic
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaNormal
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Bold
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Bold
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Italic
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Normal
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Italic
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Normal
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Bold
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Bold
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Italic
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Normal
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Italic
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Normal
    /GloucesterMT-ExtraCondensed
    /GoodTimes
    /GothamBlack
    /GothamBlack-Italic
    /GothamBold
    /GothamBold-Italic
    /GothamBook
    /GothamBook-Italic
    /GothamExtraLight
    /GothamExtraLight-Italic
    /GothamLight
    /GothamLight-Italic
    /GothamMedium
    /GothamMedium-Italic
    /GothamRounded-LightItalic
    /GothamThin
    /GothamThin-Italic
    /GothamUltra
    /GothamUltra-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Bold
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Regular
    /GoudyStout
    /GraffitiPaintBrush
    /GrandHotel-Regular
    /GreatVibes-Regular
    /Haettenschweiler
    /HalvettCondensed
    /HalvettCondensedBold
    /HalvettLight
    /HalvettThin
    /HandelGotD-Bold
    /HandelGothic
    /HandelGothicBT-Regular
    /HandelGothicCn
    /HandelGothicEx
    /HandelGothicWd
    /HandOfSean
    /Handycheera
    /HarlowSolid
    /Harrington
    /HeadlineText
    /Heavenetica4LtOblSH
    /HelvCondensed
    /HelvCondensed-Bold
    /Helvetica
    /Helvetica-Bold
    /Helvetica-BoldOblique
    /Helvetica-Condensed
    /Helvetica-Condensed-Bold
    /Helvetica-Condensed-BoldObl
    /Helvetica-Condensed-Oblique
    /HelveticaExt-Bold
    /HelveticaInserat-Roman-SemiBold
    /Helvetica-Narrow
    /Helvetica-Narrow-Bold
    /Helvetica-Narrow-BoldOblique
    /Helvetica-Narrow-Oblique
    /HelveticaNeue
    /HelveticaNeue-Bold
    /HelveticaNeue-BoldItalic
    /HelveticaNeue-Condensed
    /HelveticaNeue-Heavy
    /HelveticaNeue-Italic
    /HelveticaNeue-Light
    /HelveticaNeue-Medium
    /HelveticaNeue-Roman
    /HelveticaNeue-Thin
    /HelveticaNeue-UltraLight
    /Helvetica-Normal
    /Helvetica-Oblique
    /HighTowerText-Italic
    /HighTowerText-Reg
    /HimchuliBold
    /HimchuliBoldBold
    /HimchuliExtraBoldExtraBold
    /HoboStd
    /HPSimplified-Bold
    /HPSimplified-BoldItalic
    /HPSimplified-Italic
    /HPSimplified-Light
    /HPSimplified-LightItalic
    /HPSimplified-Regular
    /Humanist521BT-Bold
    /Humanist521BT-BoldItalic
    /Humanist521BT-Italic
    /Humanist521BT-Light
    /Humanist521BT-LightItalic
    /Humanist521BT-Roman
    /Humanist777BT-BlackB
    /Humanist777BT-BlackCondensedB
    /Humanist777BT-BlackItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldCondensedB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-ItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-LightB
    /Humanist777BT-LightItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-RomanB
    /Humanist777BT-RomanCondensedB
    /Impact
    /ImprintMT-Shadow
    /InformalRoman-Regular
    /InkFree
    /ISCIIDev
    /JavaneseText
    /Jokerman-Regular
    /JuiceITC-Regular
    /KabelITCbyBT-Book
    /KabelITCbyBT-Medium
    /KabelITCbyBT-Ultra
    /KabobBold
    /KaufmannBT-Regular
    /KGBlankSpaceSketch
    /KGBlankSpaceSolid
    /Khaki-Two
    /KonTikiEnchantedJF
    /KozGoPr6N-Bold
    /KozGoPr6N-ExtraLight
    /KozGoPr6N-Heavy
    /KozGoPr6N-Light
    /KozGoPr6N-Medium
    /KozGoPr6N-Regular
    /KozGoPro-Bold
    /KozGoPro-ExtraLight
    /KozGoPro-Heavy
    /KozGoPro-Light
    /KozGoPro-Medium
    /KozGoPro-Regular
    /KozMinPr6N-Bold
    /KozMinPr6N-ExtraLight
    /KozMinPr6N-Heavy
    /KozMinPr6N-Light
    /KozMinPr6N-Medium
    /KozMinPr6N-Regular
    /KozMinPro-Bold
    /KozMinPro-ExtraLight
    /KozMinPro-Heavy
    /KozMinPro-Light
    /KozMinPro-Medium
    /KozMinPro-Regular
    /KristenITC-Regular
    /Kruthi-TamilAstro
    /Kruti-Astro
    /KrutiDev010
    /Kundli-English
    /KunstlerScript
    /LatinWide
    /LeelawadeeUI
    /LeelawadeeUI-Bold
    /LeelawadeeUI-Semilight
    /LegerBold
    /LetterGothicStd
    /LetterGothicStd-Bold
    /LetterGothicStd-BoldSlanted
    /LetterGothicStd-Slanted
    /LithosPro-Black
    /LithosPro-Regular
    /LMMono10-Regular
    /Lucemita-Regular
    /LucidaBright
    /LucidaBright-Demi
    /LucidaBright-DemiItalic
    /LucidaBright-Italic
    /LucidaCalligraphy-Italic
    /LucidaConsole
    /LucidaFax
    /LucidaFax-Demi
    /LucidaFax-DemiItalic
    /LucidaFax-Italic
    /LucidaHandwriting-Italic
    /LucidaSans
    /LucidaSans-Demi
    /LucidaSans-DemiItalic
    /LucidaSans-Italic
    /LucidaSans-Typewriter
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBold
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBoldOblique
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterOblique
    /LucidaSansUnicode
    /LucienSchoenschriftvCAT
    /MachineITCbyBT-Regular
    /Magneto-Bold
    /MaiandraGD-Regular
    /MalgunGothic
    /MalgunGothicBold
    /MalgunGothic-Semilight
    /Marcellus-Regular
    /Marlett
    /MaterhornNF
    /MaturaMTScriptCapitals
    /MesquiteStd
    /MicrosoftHimalaya
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiLight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiRegular
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUILight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIRegular
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue-Bold
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa-Bold
    /MicrosoftSansSerif
    /MicrosoftTaiLe
    /MicrosoftTaiLe-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHei
    /MicrosoftYaHei-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiLight
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUILight
    /Microsoft-Yi-Baiti
    /MingLiU-ExtB
    /Ming-Lt-HKSCS-ExtB
    /MinionPro-Bold
    /MinionPro-BoldCn
    /MinionPro-BoldCnIt
    /MinionPro-BoldIt
    /MinionPro-It
    /MinionPro-Medium
    /MinionPro-MediumIt
    /MinionPro-Regular
    /MinionPro-Semibold
    /MinionPro-SemiboldIt
    /MiriamTransparent
    /MisterEarlBT-Regular
    /Mistral
    /ML1-TTKarthikaBold
    /ML1-TTKarthikaBoldItalic
    /ML1-TTKarthikaItalic
    /ML1-TTKarthikaNormal
    /ML1-TTRevathiBold
    /ML1-TTRevathiBoldItalic
    /ML1-TTRevathiItalic
    /ML1-TTRevathiNormal
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Bold
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Italic
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Normal
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Bold
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Italic
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Normal
    /Moderna
    /Modern-Regular
    /Mojo
    /MongolianBaiti
    /MonotypeCorsiva
    /MS-Gothic
    /MS-Mincho
    /MSOutlook
    /MS-PGothic
    /MSReferenceSansSerif
    /MSReferenceSpecialty
    /MS-UIGothic
    /MT-Extra
    /MTExtraTiger
    /MuseoSans-100
    /MuseoSans-300
    /MuseoSans-700
    /MVBoli
    /MyanmarText
    /MyanmarText-Bold
    /MyhotaHatchedBold
    /MyriadArabic-Bold
    /MyriadArabic-BoldIt
    /MyriadArabic-It
    /MyriadArabic-Regular
    /Myriad-BdWeb
    /MyriadHebrew-Bold
    /MyriadHebrew-BoldIt
    /MyriadHebrew-It
    /MyriadHebrew-Regular
    /Myriad-ItWeb
    /MyriadPro-Bold
    /MyriadPro-BoldCond
    /MyriadPro-BoldCondIt
    /MyriadPro-BoldIt
    /MyriadPro-Cond
    /MyriadPro-CondIt
    /MyriadPro-It
    /MyriadPro-Light
    /MyriadPro-LightIt
    /MyriadPro-Regular
    /MyriadPro-Semibold
    /MyriadPro-SemiboldIt
    /Myriad-Web
    /MyriadWebPro
    /MyriadWebPro-Bold
    /MyriadWebPro-Condensed
    /MyriadWebPro-CondensedItalic
    /MyriadWebPro-Italic
    /NellaSueDemo
    /NeoSansIntel
    /NeoSansIntel-Light
    /NeoSansIntel-Medium
    /NewCenturySchlbk-Roman
    /NewGenevaNine
    /News701BT-BoldA
    /News701BT-ItalicA
    /News706BT-BoldC
    /NewsGothicBT-Bold
    /NewsGothicBT-BoldItalic
    /NewsGothicBT-Italic
    /NewsGothicBT-Light
    /NewsGothicBT-Roman
    /NewsGothicBT-RomanCondensed
    /NexaBold
    /NexaLight
    /NiagaraEngraved-Reg
    /NiagaraSolid-Reg
    /NirmalaUI
    /NirmalaUI-Bold
    /NirmalaUI-Semilight
    /NSimSun
    /NuevaStd-Bold
    /NuevaStd-BoldCond
    /NuevaStd-BoldCondItalic
    /NuevaStd-Cond
    /NuevaStd-CondItalic
    /NuevaStd-Italic
    /Nyx
    /OCRA-Alternate
    /OCRAbyBT-Regular
    /OCRAExtended
    /OCRAStd
    /OCRB10PitchBT-Regular
    /OldEnglishTextMT
    /Onyx
    /Optima
    /Optima-Bold
    /OptimaBoldEx-Bold
    /Optima-BoldItalic
    /OptimaBoldItalicEx-BoldItalic
    /OptimaBoldTh-Bold
    /OptimaBoldWd-Bold
    /OptimaCn
    /OptimaHollow
    /Optima-Italic
    /OptimaItalicEx-Italic
    /OptimaItalicWd-Italic
    /Optima-Thin
    /Optima-ThinCn
    /Optima-ThinEx
    /Optima-ThinWd
    /OptimaToLefty
    /OptimaWd
    /OR1-TTGarima-Bold
    /OR1-TTGarima-Italic
    /OR1-TTGarima-Normal
    /OR1-TTSarala-Bold
    /OR1-TTSarala-Italic
    /OR1-TTSarala-Normal
    /OratorStd
    /OratorStd-Slanted
    /ORB-TTGarima-Bold
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Bold
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Italic
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Normal
    /ORB-TTGarima-Italic
    /ORB-TTGarima-Normal
    /ORB-TTSarala-Bold
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Bold
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Italic
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Normal
    /ORB-TTSarala-Italic
    /ORB-TTSarala-Normal
    /Ouch
    /PalaceScriptMT
    /PalatinoLinotype-Bold
    /PalatinoLinotype-BoldItalic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Italic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Roman
    /Papyrus-Regular
    /Parchment-Regular
    /ParisianBT-Regular
    /ParkAvenueBT-Regular
    /Perpetua
    /Perpetua-Bold
    /Perpetua-BoldItalic
    /Perpetua-Italic
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Bold
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Light
    /PillGothic300mg-Bold
    /PillGothic300mg-Oblique
    /PillGothic300mg-Regular
    /Playbill
    /PMingLiU-ExtB
    /Pompeia-Inline
    /PoorRichard-Regular
    /PoplarStd
    /Postino-Italic
    /President
    /PrestigeEliteStd-Bd
    /Pristina-Regular
    /PTScriptBreeze
    /Punk
    /RageItalic
    /Ravie
    /RealityPress
    /Reeperbahn
    /RevueBT-Regular
    /Roboto-Black
    /Roboto-BlackItalic
    /Roboto-Bold
    /Roboto-BoldItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Bold
    /RobotoCondensed-BoldItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Italic
    /RobotoCondensed-Light
    /RobotoCondensed-LightItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Regular
    /Roboto-Italic
    /Roboto-Light
    /Roboto-LightItalic
    /Roboto-Medium
    /Roboto-MediumItalic
    /Roboto-Regular
    /Roboto-Thin
    /Roboto-ThinItalic
    /Rockwell
    /Rockwell-Bold
    /Rockwell-BoldItalic
    /Rockwell-Condensed
    /Rockwell-CondensedBold
    /Rockwell-ExtraBold
    /Rockwell-Italic
    /RosewoodStd-Regular
    /RoughDraft
    /Rupee
    /RupeeForadian
    /SamarkanNormal
    /SamarkanOblique
    /Sansation
    /Sansation-Bold
    /Sansation-Light
    /SchadowBT-Bold
    /SchadowBT-Roman
    /ScriptMTBold
    /SD1-TTSurekhBold
    /SD1-TTSurekhNormal
    /SeagullBT-Bold
    /SeagullBT-Heavy
    /SeagullBT-Light
    /SeagullBT-Medium
    /SegoeMDL2Assets
    /SegoePrint
    /SegoePrint-Bold
    /SegoeScript
    /SegoeScript-Bold
    /SegoeUI
    /SegoeUIBlack
    /SegoeUIBlack-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Bold
    /SegoeUI-BoldItalic
    /SegoeUIEmoji
    /SegoeUIHistoric
    /SegoeUI-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Light
    /SegoeUI-LightItalic
    /SegoeUI-SemiBold
    /SegoeUI-Semibold
    /SegoeUI-SemiboldItalic
    /SegoeUI-Semilight
    /SegoeUI-SemilightItalic
    /SegoeUISymbol
    /SerpentineD-Bold
    /SFSpeakeasy
    /ShelleyAllegroBT-Regular
    /ShorelinesScriptBold
    /ShowcardGothic-Reg
    /Shuriken-Boy
    /SimSun
    /SimSun-ExtB
    /SitkaBanner
    /SitkaBanner-Bold
    /SitkaBanner-BoldItalic
    /SitkaBanner-Italic
    /SitkaDisplay
    /SitkaDisplay-Bold
    /SitkaDisplay-BoldItalic
    /SitkaDisplay-Italic
    /SitkaHeading
    /SitkaHeading-Bold
    /SitkaHeading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaHeading-Italic
    /SitkaSmall
    /SitkaSmall-Bold
    /SitkaSmall-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSmall-Italic
    /SitkaSubheading
    /SitkaSubheading-Bold
    /SitkaSubheading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSubheading-Italic
    /SitkaText
    /SitkaText-Bold
    /SitkaText-BoldItalic
    /SitkaText-Italic
    /SLABSTHIN
    /SlipstreamLetPlain
    /SnapITC-Regular
    /SourceSansPro-Black
    /SourceSansPro-BlackIt
    /SourceSansPro-Bold
    /SourceSansPro-BoldIt
    /SourceSansPro-ExtraLightIt
    /SourceSansPro-It
    /SourceSansPro-LightIt
    /SourceSansPro-Regular
    /SourceSansPro-Semibold
    /SourceSansPro-SemiboldIt
    /Souvenir-BoldItalic
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-Demi
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-DemiItalic
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-Light
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-LightItalic
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldHollow
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldItalic
    /SouvenirLightBoldLefites
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldWd
    /Souvenir-Light-ItalicWd
    /SpumoniLP
    /Square721BT-Bold
    /Square721BT-BoldCondensed
    /Square721BTItalic
    /Square721BT-Roman
    /Square721BT-RomanCondensed
    /Square721DmItalic
    /Square721DmNormal
    /Staccato222BT-Regular
    /Stencil
    /StencilStd
    /Stucco555
    /Swiss721BT-Black
    /Swiss721BT-BlackCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-BlackCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BlackExtended
    /Swiss721BT-BlackItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BlackOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BlackRounded
    /Swiss721BT-Bold
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensedOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BoldExtended
    /Swiss721BT-BoldItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BoldOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BoldRounded
    /Swiss721BT-Heavy
    /Swiss721BT-HeavyItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Italic
    /Swiss721BT-ItalicCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-Light
    /Swiss721BT-LightCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-LightCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-LightExtended
    /Swiss721BT-LightItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Medium
    /Swiss721BT-MediumItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Roman
    /Swiss721BT-RomanCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-RomanExtended
    /Swiss721BT-Thin
    /Swiss721BT-ThinItalic
    /Swiss911BT-ExtraCompressed
    /Swiss911BT-UltraCompressed
    /Swiss921BT-RegularA
    /Swiss924BT-RegularB
    /SY2-TTDance-Normal
    /SY3-TTGanesh-Normal
    /SY4-TTGanesh-Normal
    /SY5-TTGods-Normal
    /SY7-TTLamps-Normal
    /SY8-TTSports-Normal
    /Sylfaen
    /SymbolMT
    /SymbolTiger
    /SymbolTigerExpert
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TektonPro-Bold
    /TektonPro-BoldCond
    /TektonPro-BoldExt
    /TektonPro-BoldObl
    /TempusSansITC
    /TheHit
    /Tiger
    /TigerExpert
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Times-Roman
    /TrajanPro-Bold
    /TrajanPro-Regular
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Bold
    /TwCenMT-BoldItalic
    /TwCenMT-Condensed
    /TwCenMT-CondensedBold
    /TwCenMT-CondensedExtraBold
    /TwCenMT-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Regular
    /TypoUprightBT-Regular
    /UnicaOne-Regular
    /UniversCondensed
    /UniversityRoman
    /UniversityRomanBT-Bold
    /UniversityRomanBT-Regular
    /USIS1949
    /VAGRoundedBT-Regular
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
    /Vibrocentric-Bold
    /VinerHandITC
    /Vinque
    /Vivaldii
    /VladimirScript
    /VTKSEMBROIDERY
    /WalkwayUpperCondensed
    /WalkwayUpperSemiBold
    /WalkwayUpperUItraCondensed
    /Webdings
    /Wingdings2
    /Wingdings3
    /Wingdings-Regular
    /WP-ArabicScriptSihafa
    /WP-ArabicSihafa
    /WP-BoxDrawing
    /WP-CyrillicA
    /WP-CyrillicB
    /WP-GreekCentury
    /WP-GreekCourier
    /WP-GreekHelve
    /WP-HebrewDavid
    /WP-IconicSymbolsA
    /WP-IconicSymbolsB
    /WP-Japanese
    /WP-MathA
    /WP-MathB
    /WP-MathExtendedA
    /WP-MathExtendedB
    /WP-MultinationalAHelve
    /WP-MultinationalARoman
    /WP-MultinationalBCourier
    /WP-MultinationalBHelve
    /WP-MultinationalBRoman
    /WP-MultinationalCourier
    /WP-Phonetic
    /WPTypographicSymbols
    /Yesteryear-Regular
    /YuGothic-Bold
    /YuGothic-Light
    /YuGothic-Medium
    /YuGothic-Regular
    /YuGothicUI-Bold
    /YuGothicUI-Light
    /YuGothicUI-Regular
    /YuGothicUI-Semibold
    /YuGothicUI-Semilight
    /ZapfDingbats
    /ZurichBT-Black
    /ZurichBT-BlackExtended
    /ZurichBT-BlackItalic
    /ZurichBT-Bold
    /ZurichBT-BoldCondensed
    /ZurichBT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /ZurichBT-BoldExtended
    /ZurichBT-BoldExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-BoldItalic
    /ZurichBT-ExtraBlack
    /ZurichBT-ExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-Italic
    /ZurichBT-ItalicCondensed
    /ZurichBT-Light
    /ZurichBT-LightCondensed
    /ZurichBT-LightCondensedItalic
    /ZurichBT-LightExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-LightItalic
    /ZurichBT-Roman
    /ZurichBT-RomanCondensed
    /ZurichBT-RomanExtended
    /ZurichBT-UltraBlackExtended
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /AardvarkBold
    /ACaslonPro-Bold
    /ACaslonPro-BoldItalic
    /ACaslonPro-Italic
    /ACaslonPro-Regular
    /ACaslonPro-Semibold
    /ACaslonPro-SemiboldItalic
    /AdobeArabic-Bold
    /AdobeArabic-BoldItalic
    /AdobeArabic-Italic
    /AdobeArabic-Regular
    /AdobeDevanagari-Bold
    /AdobeDevanagari-BoldItalic
    /AdobeDevanagari-Italic
    /AdobeDevanagari-Regular
    /AdobeFangsongStd-Regular
    /AdobeFanHeitiStd-Bold
    /AdobeGothicStd-Bold
    /AdobeHebrew-Bold
    /AdobeHebrew-BoldItalic
    /AdobeHebrew-Italic
    /AdobeHebrew-Regular
    /AdobeHeitiStd-Regular
    /AdobeKaitiStd-Regular
    /AdobeMingStd-Light
    /AdobeMyungjoStd-Medium
    /AdobeNaskh-Medium
    /AdobeSongStd-Light
    /AeroRegularSWFTE
    /AGaramondPro-Bold
    /AGaramondPro-BoldItalic
    /AGaramondPro-Italic
    /AGaramondPro-Regular
    /AGaramond-Regular
    /AGBenguiatCyrBook
    /AgencyFB-Bold
    /AgencyFB-Reg
    /AkrutiBngBharatiNormal
    /AkrutiBngSharatBold
    /AkrutiBngSuchitraNormal
    /AkrutiBngVivekBold
    /AkrutiBngVivekNormal
    /AkrutiDevChakraBold
    /AkrutiDevHarshaMedium
    /AkrutiDevManojBold
    /AkrutiDevManojNormal
    /AkrutiDevManoramaBold
    /AkrutiDevMoujBold
    /AkrutiDevMoujLight
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaBold
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaExpandBold
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaExpandNormal
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaMedium
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaNormal
    /AkrutiDevPriyaBold
    /AkrutiDevPriyaExpandedBold
    /AkrutiDevPriyaExpandedNormal
    /AkrutiDevPriyaNormal
    /AkrutiDevRohiniBold
    /AkrutiDevRohiniNormal
    /AkrutiDevShridharBold
    /AkrutiDevShridharNormal
    /AkrutiDevSunilNormal
    /AkrutiGanpati1
    /AkrutiGanpati2
    /AkrutiGanpati3
    /AkrutiGanpati4
    /AkrutiGanpati5
    /AkrutiImage1
    /AkrutiImage10
    /AkrutiImage11
    /AkrutiImage12
    /AkrutiImage13
    /AkrutiImage14
    /AkrutiImage3
    /AkrutiImage9
    /AkrutiSnmChanakyaNormalItalic
    /AlbertsthalTypewriter
    /AlbumDrei
    /AlexBrush-Regular
    /Algerian
    /AmasisMT
    /AmasisMT-Light
    /AmasisMT-LightItalic
    /AmasisMT-Medium
    /AmasisMT-MediumItalic
    /AmazingGrotesk-DemiBold
    /AmazingGrotesk-DemiBoldItalic
    /AmazingGrotesk-Light
    /AmazingGrotesk-Ultra
    /AmazingGrotesk-UltraItalic
    /AmazoneBT-Regular
    /appleberry
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialRoundedMTBold
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /ArtBrewery
    /AssemblyLightSSK
    /AtlantixProSSi
    /ATRotisSansSerif-Bold
    /ATRotisSansSerif-Italic
    /AvantGarde-BookTh
    /AvantGarde-BookWd
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Book
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-BookOblique
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Demi
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-DemiOblique
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Medium
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-MediumOblique
    /BacktoBlackDemo
    /Bahnschrift
    /BalloonBT-ExtraBold
    /Banff-Normal
    /BanffPSMT
    /BankGothicBT-Medium
    /BaskOldFace
    /Bauhaus
    /Bauhaus93
    /Bauhaus-Bold
    /Bauhaus-BoldItalic
    /Bauhaus-Heavy-Bold
    /Bauhaus-Thin
    /BebasNeue
    /BellGothicBT-Bold
    /BellGothicStd-Black
    /BellGothicStd-Bold
    /BellMT
    /BellMTBold
    /BellMTItalic
    /BelweBT-Bold
    /BelweBT-Light
    /BelweBT-Medium
    /BelweBT-RomanCondensed
    /BendableBRK
    /Bengasi
    /BenguiatGothicBold
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-Bold
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-BoldItal
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-Book
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-BookItal
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-Bold
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-BoldItalic
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-Book
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-BookItalic
    /Benighted
    /BerkshireSwash-Regular
    /BerlinSansFB-Bold
    /BerlinSansFBDemi-Bold
    /BerlinSansFB-Reg
    /BermudaLP-Squiggle
    /BernardMT-Condensed
    /BernhardFashionBT-Regular
    /BernhardModernBT-Bold
    /BernhardModernBT-BoldItalic
    /BickhamScriptStd-Bold
    /BirchStd
    /BlackadderITC-Regular
    /BlackjackRollin
    /BlackoakStd
    /BodoniBT-Bold
    /BodoniBT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniBT-Book
    /BodoniBT-BookItalic
    /BodoniMT
    /BodoniMTBlack
    /BodoniMTBlack-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Bold
    /BodoniMT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Bold
    /BodoniMTCondensed-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Italic
    /BodoniMTPosterCompressed
    /BoisterBlack
    /BookAntiqua
    /BookAntiqua-Bold
    /BookAntiqua-BoldItalic
    /BookAntiqua-Italic
    /BookmanOldStyle
    /BookmanOldStyle-Bold
    /BookmanOldStyle-BoldItalic
    /BookmanOldStyle-Italic
    /BookshelfSymbolSeven
    /Boomerang
    /BoomerangItalic
    /BoringBoring
    /BoringJoined
    /BradleyHandITC
    /BritannicBold
    /Broadway
    /Brush-Script
    /BrushScriptMT
    /BrushScript-Normal-Italic
    /BrushScriptStd
    /Brush-ScriptWide
    /Brushstroke
    /Caesar
    /Calibri
    /Calibri-Bold
    /Calibri-BoldItalic
    /Calibri-Italic
    /Calibri-Light
    /Calibri-LightItalic
    /CalifornianFB-Bold
    /CalifornianFB-Italic
    /CalifornianFB-Reg
    /CalisMTBol
    /CalistoMT
    /CalistoMT-BoldItalic
    /CalistoMT-Italic
    /Cambria
    /Cambria-Bold
    /Cambria-BoldItalic
    /Cambria-Italic
    /CambriaMath
    /Candara
    /Candara-Bold
    /Candara-BoldItalic
    /Candara-Italic
    /Candara-Light
    /Candara-LightItalic
    /CarbonBlock
    /CaslonAntique
    /CaslonAntiqueItalic
    /Castellar
    /CastleT-Ligh
    /CataneoBT-Bold
    /CataneoBT-BoldSwash
    /CataneoBT-Light
    /CataneoBT-Regular
    /Centaur
    /Century
    /Century725BT-RomanCondensed
    /Century751BT-BoldB
    /Century751BT-BoldItalicB
    /Century751BT-ItalicB
    /Century751BT-No2ItalicB
    /Century751BT-RomanB
    /Century751BT-RomanNo2B
    /Century751BT-SemiBold
    /Century751BT-SemiBoldItalicB
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Bold
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-BoldIt
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Italic
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Roman
    /CenturySchoolbook
    /CenturySchoolbook-Bold
    /CenturySchoolbook-BoldItalic
    /CenturySchoolbook-Italic
    /CFBadNews-Regular
    /Chandini-NormalA
    /Chaparral-Display
    /ChaparralPro-Bold
    /ChaparralPro-BoldIt
    /ChaparralPro-Italic
    /ChaparralPro-LightIt
    /ChaparralPro-Regular
    /CharlemagneStd-Bold
    /ChaseCallasSH
    /Chessmaster5500
    /Chiller-Regular
    /ChopinScript
    /ClarendonBT-Black
    /ClarendonBT-Bold
    /ClarendonBT-Light
    /ClarendonBT-Roman
    /Colaborate-Bold
    /Colaborate-Medium
    /ColonnaMT
    /ComicSansMS
    /ComicSansMS-Bold
    /ComicSansMS-BoldItalic
    /ComicSansMS-Italic
    /ComixHighlight
    /CommercialScript
    /CommercialScriptBT-Regular
    /CommercialScriptStd
    /CommercialScrT
    /Consolas
    /Consolas-Bold
    /Consolas-BoldItalic
    /Consolas-Italic
    /Constantia
    /Constantia-Bold
    /Constantia-BoldItalic
    /Constantia-Italic
    /CooperBlack
    /CooperBlackStd
    /CooperBlackStd-Italic
    /CooperBT-Black
    /CooperBT-BlackHeadline
    /CooperBT-BlackItalic
    /CooperBT-BlackItalicHeadline
    /CooperBT-BlackOutline
    /CooperBT-Bold
    /CooperBT-BoldItalic
    /CooperBT-Light
    /CooperBT-LightItalic
    /CooperBT-Medium
    /CooperBT-MediumItalic
    /CooperPlanck2LightSH
    /CooperPlanck6BoldSH
    /CooperPlanck8HeavySH
    /CopperplateGothic-Bold
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Bold
    /CopperplateGothicBT-BoldCond
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Heavy
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Roman
    /CopperplateGothicBT-RomanCond
    /CopperplateGothic-Light
    /Corbel
    /Corbel-Bold
    /Corbel-BoldItalic
    /Corbel-Italic
    /CorbelLight
    /CorbelLight-Italic
    /Coronet-SemiBold-Italic
    /CorporateHQ
    /Cotillion
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Cuprum-Bold
    /Cuprum-BoldItalic
    /CuprumFFU
    /Cuprum-Italic
    /Cuprum-Regular
    /CurlzMT
    /Cutout
    /DauphinPlain
    /DeVinneBT-Text
    /DFGothic-EB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFKaiSho-SB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-SU-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-UB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-W5-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFPOP1-W9-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DIN-Black
    /DIN-Bold
    /DINPro-Bold
    /DINPro-Light
    /DINPro-Medium
    /DIN-Regular
    /Dobra-Book
    /Dobra-BookItalic
    /Dobra-Light
    /Dobra-Medium
    /EasyRider
    /Ebrima
    /Ebrima-Bold
    /EccentricStd
    /EdwardianScriptITC
    /Elephant-Italic
    /Elephant-Regular
    /EmbassyBT-Regular
    /English111VivaceBT-Regular
    /EngraversGothicBT-Regular
    /EngraversMT
    /ErasITC-Bold
    /ErasITC-Demi
    /ErasITC-Light
    /ErasITC-Medium
    /EuroSig
    /Eurostile
    /Eurostile-Bold
    /Eurostile-BoldCondensed
    /Eurostile-BoldExtendedTwo
    /Eurostile-BoldOblique
    /Eurostile-Condensed
    /Eurostile-Demi
    /Eurostile-DemiOblique
    /Eurostile-ExtendedTwo
    /Eurostile-Oblique
    /EverydayMayhem
    /Exotic350BT-Bold
    /Exotic350BT-DemiBold
    /FelixTitlingMT
    /FencesPlain
    /FibographyPersonalUse
    /FixedMiriamTransparent
    /FoglihtenNo07calt
    /FootlightMTLight
    /ForteMT
    /FranklinGothic-Book
    /FranklinGothic-BookItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Demi
    /FranklinGothic-DemiCond
    /FranklinGothic-DemiItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Heavy
    /FranklinGothic-HeavyItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Medium
    /FranklinGothic-MediumCond
    /FranklinGothic-MediumItalic
    /FranklinGotItcTEE-Book
    /FranklinGotItcTEE-Heav
    /Freehand521BT-RegularC
    /Freehand575
    /Freehand591
    /Freehand591-Bold
    /FreestyleScript
    /FreestyleScript-Regular
    /FrenchScriptMT
    /FrillyKnickers
    /FujiyamaPSMT
    /FuturaBlackBT-Regular
    /Futura-Bold
    /FuturaBT-Bold
    /FuturaBT-BoldCondensed
    /FuturaBT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /FuturaBT-BoldItalic
    /FuturaBT-Book
    /FuturaBT-BookItalic
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlack
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackCondensed
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackCondItalic
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackItalic
    /FuturaBT-Heavy
    /FuturaBT-HeavyItalic
    /FuturaBT-Light
    /FuturaBT-LightCondensed
    /FuturaBT-LightItalic
    /FuturaBT-Medium
    /FuturaBT-MediumCondensed
    /FuturaBT-MediumItalic
    /FuturaExt-Bold
    /Futura-Heavy
    /Gabriola
    /Gadugi
    /Gadugi-Bold
    /Ganesh
    /Ganess
    /Garamond
    /Garamond-Bold
    /Garamond-Italic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-Bold
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldCondensed
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldCondItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-Book
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookCondensed
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookCondItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookItalic
    /Garamond-Kursiv
    /GaramondPremrPro
    /GaramondPremrPro-It
    /GaramondPremrPro-Smbd
    /GaramondPremrPro-SmbdIt
    /GargoyleSSi
    /Geometric212BT-BookCondensed
    /Geometric212BT-HeavyCondensed
    /Geometric415BT-BlackA
    /Geometric415BT-BlackItalicA
    /Geometric415BT-MediumA
    /Geometric415BT-MediumItalicA
    /Geometric706BT-BlackCondensedB
    /GeometricSlab703BT-Bold
    /GeometricSlab703BT-BoldCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-BoldItalic
    /GeometricSlab703BT-Medium
    /GeometricSlab703BT-MediumCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-MediumItalic
    /GeometricSlab703BT-XtraBoldCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-XtraBoldItal
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Giddyup
    /GiddyupStd
    /Gigi-Regular
    /GillSans
    /GillSans-Bold
    /GillSansMT
    /GillSansMT-Bold
    /GillSansMT-BoldItalic
    /GillSansMT-Condensed
    /GillSansMT-ExtraCondensedBold
    /GillSansMT-Italic
    /GillSans-UltraBold
    /GillSans-UltraBoldCondensed
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaBold
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaBoldItalic
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaItalic
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaNormal
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaBold
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaBoldItalic
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaItalic
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaNormal
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Bold
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Bold
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Italic
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Normal
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Italic
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Normal
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Bold
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Bold
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Italic
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Normal
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Italic
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Normal
    /GloucesterMT-ExtraCondensed
    /GoodTimes
    /GothamBlack
    /GothamBlack-Italic
    /GothamBold
    /GothamBold-Italic
    /GothamBook
    /GothamBook-Italic
    /GothamExtraLight
    /GothamExtraLight-Italic
    /GothamLight
    /GothamLight-Italic
    /GothamMedium
    /GothamMedium-Italic
    /GothamRounded-LightItalic
    /GothamThin
    /GothamThin-Italic
    /GothamUltra
    /GothamUltra-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Bold
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Regular
    /GoudyStout
    /GraffitiPaintBrush
    /GrandHotel-Regular
    /GreatVibes-Regular
    /Haettenschweiler
    /HalvettCondensed
    /HalvettCondensedBold
    /HalvettLight
    /HalvettThin
    /HandelGotD-Bold
    /HandelGothic
    /HandelGothicBT-Regular
    /HandelGothicCn
    /HandelGothicEx
    /HandelGothicWd
    /HandOfSean
    /Handycheera
    /HarlowSolid
    /Harrington
    /HeadlineText
    /Heavenetica4LtOblSH
    /HelvCondensed
    /HelvCondensed-Bold
    /Helvetica
    /Helvetica-Bold
    /Helvetica-BoldOblique
    /Helvetica-Condensed
    /Helvetica-Condensed-Bold
    /Helvetica-Condensed-BoldObl
    /Helvetica-Condensed-Oblique
    /HelveticaExt-Bold
    /HelveticaInserat-Roman-SemiBold
    /Helvetica-Narrow
    /Helvetica-Narrow-Bold
    /Helvetica-Narrow-BoldOblique
    /Helvetica-Narrow-Oblique
    /HelveticaNeue
    /HelveticaNeue-Bold
    /HelveticaNeue-BoldItalic
    /HelveticaNeue-Condensed
    /HelveticaNeue-Heavy
    /HelveticaNeue-Italic
    /HelveticaNeue-Light
    /HelveticaNeue-Medium
    /HelveticaNeue-Roman
    /HelveticaNeue-Thin
    /HelveticaNeue-UltraLight
    /Helvetica-Normal
    /Helvetica-Oblique
    /HighTowerText-Italic
    /HighTowerText-Reg
    /HimchuliBold
    /HimchuliBoldBold
    /HimchuliExtraBoldExtraBold
    /HoboStd
    /HPSimplified-Bold
    /HPSimplified-BoldItalic
    /HPSimplified-Italic
    /HPSimplified-Light
    /HPSimplified-LightItalic
    /HPSimplified-Regular
    /Humanist521BT-Bold
    /Humanist521BT-BoldItalic
    /Humanist521BT-Italic
    /Humanist521BT-Light
    /Humanist521BT-LightItalic
    /Humanist521BT-Roman
    /Humanist777BT-BlackB
    /Humanist777BT-BlackCondensedB
    /Humanist777BT-BlackItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldCondensedB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-ItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-LightB
    /Humanist777BT-LightItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-RomanB
    /Humanist777BT-RomanCondensedB
    /Impact
    /ImprintMT-Shadow
    /InformalRoman-Regular
    /InkFree
    /ISCIIDev
    /JavaneseText
    /Jokerman-Regular
    /JuiceITC-Regular
    /KabelITCbyBT-Book
    /KabelITCbyBT-Medium
    /KabelITCbyBT-Ultra
    /KabobBold
    /KaufmannBT-Regular
    /KGBlankSpaceSketch
    /KGBlankSpaceSolid
    /Khaki-Two
    /KonTikiEnchantedJF
    /KozGoPr6N-Bold
    /KozGoPr6N-ExtraLight
    /KozGoPr6N-Heavy
    /KozGoPr6N-Light
    /KozGoPr6N-Medium
    /KozGoPr6N-Regular
    /KozGoPro-Bold
    /KozGoPro-ExtraLight
    /KozGoPro-Heavy
    /KozGoPro-Light
    /KozGoPro-Medium
    /KozGoPro-Regular
    /KozMinPr6N-Bold
    /KozMinPr6N-ExtraLight
    /KozMinPr6N-Heavy
    /KozMinPr6N-Light
    /KozMinPr6N-Medium
    /KozMinPr6N-Regular
    /KozMinPro-Bold
    /KozMinPro-ExtraLight
    /KozMinPro-Heavy
    /KozMinPro-Light
    /KozMinPro-Medium
    /KozMinPro-Regular
    /KristenITC-Regular
    /Kruthi-TamilAstro
    /Kruti-Astro
    /KrutiDev010
    /Kundli-English
    /KunstlerScript
    /LatinWide
    /LeelawadeeUI
    /LeelawadeeUI-Bold
    /LeelawadeeUI-Semilight
    /LegerBold
    /LetterGothicStd
    /LetterGothicStd-Bold
    /LetterGothicStd-BoldSlanted
    /LetterGothicStd-Slanted
    /LithosPro-Black
    /LithosPro-Regular
    /LMMono10-Regular
    /Lucemita-Regular
    /LucidaBright
    /LucidaBright-Demi
    /LucidaBright-DemiItalic
    /LucidaBright-Italic
    /LucidaCalligraphy-Italic
    /LucidaConsole
    /LucidaFax
    /LucidaFax-Demi
    /LucidaFax-DemiItalic
    /LucidaFax-Italic
    /LucidaHandwriting-Italic
    /LucidaSans
    /LucidaSans-Demi
    /LucidaSans-DemiItalic
    /LucidaSans-Italic
    /LucidaSans-Typewriter
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBold
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBoldOblique
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterOblique
    /LucidaSansUnicode
    /LucienSchoenschriftvCAT
    /MachineITCbyBT-Regular
    /Magneto-Bold
    /MaiandraGD-Regular
    /MalgunGothic
    /MalgunGothicBold
    /MalgunGothic-Semilight
    /Marcellus-Regular
    /Marlett
    /MaterhornNF
    /MaturaMTScriptCapitals
    /MesquiteStd
    /MicrosoftHimalaya
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiLight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiRegular
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUILight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIRegular
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue-Bold
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa-Bold
    /MicrosoftSansSerif
    /MicrosoftTaiLe
    /MicrosoftTaiLe-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHei
    /MicrosoftYaHei-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiLight
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUILight
    /Microsoft-Yi-Baiti
    /MingLiU-ExtB
    /Ming-Lt-HKSCS-ExtB
    /MinionPro-Bold
    /MinionPro-BoldCn
    /MinionPro-BoldCnIt
    /MinionPro-BoldIt
    /MinionPro-It
    /MinionPro-Medium
    /MinionPro-MediumIt
    /MinionPro-Regular
    /MinionPro-Semibold
    /MinionPro-SemiboldIt
    /MiriamTransparent
    /MisterEarlBT-Regular
    /Mistral
    /ML1-TTKarthikaBold
    /ML1-TTKarthikaBoldItalic
    /ML1-TTKarthikaItalic
    /ML1-TTKarthikaNormal
    /ML1-TTRevathiBold
    /ML1-TTRevathiBoldItalic
    /ML1-TTRevathiItalic
    /ML1-TTRevathiNormal
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Bold
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Italic
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Normal
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Bold
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Italic
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Normal
    /Moderna
    /Modern-Regular
    /Mojo
    /MongolianBaiti
    /MonotypeCorsiva
    /MS-Gothic
    /MS-Mincho
    /MSOutlook
    /MS-PGothic
    /MSReferenceSansSerif
    /MSReferenceSpecialty
    /MS-UIGothic
    /MT-Extra
    /MTExtraTiger
    /MuseoSans-100
    /MuseoSans-300
    /MuseoSans-700
    /MVBoli
    /MyanmarText
    /MyanmarText-Bold
    /MyhotaHatchedBold
    /MyriadArabic-Bold
    /MyriadArabic-BoldIt
    /MyriadArabic-It
    /MyriadArabic-Regular
    /Myriad-BdWeb
    /MyriadHebrew-Bold
    /MyriadHebrew-BoldIt
    /MyriadHebrew-It
    /MyriadHebrew-Regular
    /Myriad-ItWeb
    /MyriadPro-Bold
    /MyriadPro-BoldCond
    /MyriadPro-BoldCondIt
    /MyriadPro-BoldIt
    /MyriadPro-Cond
    /MyriadPro-CondIt
    /MyriadPro-It
    /MyriadPro-Light
    /MyriadPro-LightIt
    /MyriadPro-Regular
    /MyriadPro-Semibold
    /MyriadPro-SemiboldIt
    /Myriad-Web
    /MyriadWebPro
    /MyriadWebPro-Bold
    /MyriadWebPro-Condensed
    /MyriadWebPro-CondensedItalic
    /MyriadWebPro-Italic
    /NellaSueDemo
    /NeoSansIntel
    /NeoSansIntel-Light
    /NeoSansIntel-Medium
    /NewCenturySchlbk-Roman
    /NewGenevaNine
    /News701BT-BoldA
    /News701BT-ItalicA
    /News706BT-BoldC
    /NewsGothicBT-Bold
    /NewsGothicBT-BoldItalic
    /NewsGothicBT-Italic
    /NewsGothicBT-Light
    /NewsGothicBT-Roman
    /NewsGothicBT-RomanCondensed
    /NexaBold
    /NexaLight
    /NiagaraEngraved-Reg
    /NiagaraSolid-Reg
    /NirmalaUI
    /NirmalaUI-Bold
    /NirmalaUI-Semilight
    /NSimSun
    /NuevaStd-Bold
    /NuevaStd-BoldCond
    /NuevaStd-BoldCondItalic
    /NuevaStd-Cond
    /NuevaStd-CondItalic
    /NuevaStd-Italic
    /Nyx
    /OCRA-Alternate
    /OCRAbyBT-Regular
    /OCRAExtended
    /OCRAStd
    /OCRB10PitchBT-Regular
    /OldEnglishTextMT
    /Onyx
    /Optima
    /Optima-Bold
    /OptimaBoldEx-Bold
    /Optima-BoldItalic
    /OptimaBoldItalicEx-BoldItalic
    /OptimaBoldTh-Bold
    /OptimaBoldWd-Bold
    /OptimaCn
    /OptimaHollow
    /Optima-Italic
    /OptimaItalicEx-Italic
    /OptimaItalicWd-Italic
    /Optima-Thin
    /Optima-ThinCn
    /Optima-ThinEx
    /Optima-ThinWd
    /OptimaToLefty
    /OptimaWd
    /OR1-TTGarima-Bold
    /OR1-TTGarima-Italic
    /OR1-TTGarima-Normal
    /OR1-TTSarala-Bold
    /OR1-TTSarala-Italic
    /OR1-TTSarala-Normal
    /OratorStd
    /OratorStd-Slanted
    /ORB-TTGarima-Bold
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Bold
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Italic
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Normal
    /ORB-TTGarima-Italic
    /ORB-TTGarima-Normal
    /ORB-TTSarala-Bold
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Bold
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Italic
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Normal
    /ORB-TTSarala-Italic
    /ORB-TTSarala-Normal
    /Ouch
    /PalaceScriptMT
    /PalatinoLinotype-Bold
    /PalatinoLinotype-BoldItalic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Italic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Roman
    /Papyrus-Regular
    /Parchment-Regular
    /ParisianBT-Regular
    /ParkAvenueBT-Regular
    /Perpetua
    /Perpetua-Bold
    /Perpetua-BoldItalic
    /Perpetua-Italic
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Bold
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Light
    /PillGothic300mg-Bold
    /PillGothic300mg-Oblique
    /PillGothic300mg-Regular
    /Playbill
    /PMingLiU-ExtB
    /Pompeia-Inline
    /PoorRichard-Regular
    /PoplarStd
    /Postino-Italic
    /President
    /PrestigeEliteStd-Bd
    /Pristina-Regular
    /PTScriptBreeze
    /Punk
    /RageItalic
    /Ravie
    /RealityPress
    /Reeperbahn
    /RevueBT-Regular
    /Roboto-Black
    /Roboto-BlackItalic
    /Roboto-Bold
    /Roboto-BoldItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Bold
    /RobotoCondensed-BoldItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Italic
    /RobotoCondensed-Light
    /RobotoCondensed-LightItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Regular
    /Roboto-Italic
    /Roboto-Light
    /Roboto-LightItalic
    /Roboto-Medium
    /Roboto-MediumItalic
    /Roboto-Regular
    /Roboto-Thin
    /Roboto-ThinItalic
    /Rockwell
    /Rockwell-Bold
    /Rockwell-BoldItalic
    /Rockwell-Condensed
    /Rockwell-CondensedBold
    /Rockwell-ExtraBold
    /Rockwell-Italic
    /RosewoodStd-Regular
    /RoughDraft
    /Rupee
    /RupeeForadian
    /SamarkanNormal
    /SamarkanOblique
    /Sansation
    /Sansation-Bold
    /Sansation-Light
    /SchadowBT-Bold
    /SchadowBT-Roman
    /ScriptMTBold
    /SD1-TTSurekhBold
    /SD1-TTSurekhNormal
    /SeagullBT-Bold
    /SeagullBT-Heavy
    /SeagullBT-Light
    /SeagullBT-Medium
    /SegoeMDL2Assets
    /SegoePrint
    /SegoePrint-Bold
    /SegoeScript
    /SegoeScript-Bold
    /SegoeUI
    /SegoeUIBlack
    /SegoeUIBlack-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Bold
    /SegoeUI-BoldItalic
    /SegoeUIEmoji
    /SegoeUIHistoric
    /SegoeUI-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Light
    /SegoeUI-LightItalic
    /SegoeUI-SemiBold
    /SegoeUI-Semibold
    /SegoeUI-SemiboldItalic
    /SegoeUI-Semilight
    /SegoeUI-SemilightItalic
    /SegoeUISymbol
    /SerpentineD-Bold
    /SFSpeakeasy
    /ShelleyAllegroBT-Regular
    /ShorelinesScriptBold
    /ShowcardGothic-Reg
    /Shuriken-Boy
    /SimSun
    /SimSun-ExtB
    /SitkaBanner
    /SitkaBanner-Bold
    /SitkaBanner-BoldItalic
    /SitkaBanner-Italic
    /SitkaDisplay
    /SitkaDisplay-Bold
    /SitkaDisplay-BoldItalic
    /SitkaDisplay-Italic
    /SitkaHeading
    /SitkaHeading-Bold
    /SitkaHeading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaHeading-Italic
    /SitkaSmall
    /SitkaSmall-Bold
    /SitkaSmall-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSmall-Italic
    /SitkaSubheading
    /SitkaSubheading-Bold
    /SitkaSubheading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSubheading-Italic
    /SitkaText
    /SitkaText-Bold
    /SitkaText-BoldItalic
    /SitkaText-Italic
    /SLABSTHIN
    /SlipstreamLetPlain
    /SnapITC-Regular
    /SourceSansPro-Black
    /SourceSansPro-BlackIt
    /SourceSansPro-Bold
    /SourceSansPro-BoldIt
    /SourceSansPro-ExtraLightIt
    /SourceSansPro-It
    /SourceSansPro-LightIt
    /SourceSansPro-Regular
    /SourceSansPro-Semibold
    /SourceSansPro-SemiboldIt
    /Souvenir-BoldItalic
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-Demi
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-DemiItalic
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-Light
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-LightItalic
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldHollow
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldItalic
    /SouvenirLightBoldLefites
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldWd
    /Souvenir-Light-ItalicWd
    /SpumoniLP
    /Square721BT-Bold
    /Square721BT-BoldCondensed
    /Square721BTItalic
    /Square721BT-Roman
    /Square721BT-RomanCondensed
    /Square721DmItalic
    /Square721DmNormal
    /Staccato222BT-Regular
    /Stencil
    /StencilStd
    /Stucco555
    /Swiss721BT-Black
    /Swiss721BT-BlackCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-BlackCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BlackExtended
    /Swiss721BT-BlackItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BlackOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BlackRounded
    /Swiss721BT-Bold
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensedOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BoldExtended
    /Swiss721BT-BoldItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BoldOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BoldRounded
    /Swiss721BT-Heavy
    /Swiss721BT-HeavyItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Italic
    /Swiss721BT-ItalicCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-Light
    /Swiss721BT-LightCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-LightCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-LightExtended
    /Swiss721BT-LightItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Medium
    /Swiss721BT-MediumItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Roman
    /Swiss721BT-RomanCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-RomanExtended
    /Swiss721BT-Thin
    /Swiss721BT-ThinItalic
    /Swiss911BT-ExtraCompressed
    /Swiss911BT-UltraCompressed
    /Swiss921BT-RegularA
    /Swiss924BT-RegularB
    /SY2-TTDance-Normal
    /SY3-TTGanesh-Normal
    /SY4-TTGanesh-Normal
    /SY5-TTGods-Normal
    /SY7-TTLamps-Normal
    /SY8-TTSports-Normal
    /Sylfaen
    /SymbolMT
    /SymbolTiger
    /SymbolTigerExpert
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TektonPro-Bold
    /TektonPro-BoldCond
    /TektonPro-BoldExt
    /TektonPro-BoldObl
    /TempusSansITC
    /TheHit
    /Tiger
    /TigerExpert
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Times-Roman
    /TrajanPro-Bold
    /TrajanPro-Regular
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Bold
    /TwCenMT-BoldItalic
    /TwCenMT-Condensed
    /TwCenMT-CondensedBold
    /TwCenMT-CondensedExtraBold
    /TwCenMT-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Regular
    /TypoUprightBT-Regular
    /UnicaOne-Regular
    /UniversCondensed
    /UniversityRoman
    /UniversityRomanBT-Bold
    /UniversityRomanBT-Regular
    /USIS1949
    /VAGRoundedBT-Regular
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
    /Vibrocentric-Bold
    /VinerHandITC
    /Vinque
    /Vivaldii
    /VladimirScript
    /VTKSEMBROIDERY
    /WalkwayUpperCondensed
    /WalkwayUpperSemiBold
    /WalkwayUpperUItraCondensed
    /Webdings
    /Wingdings2
    /Wingdings3
    /Wingdings-Regular
    /WP-ArabicScriptSihafa
    /WP-ArabicSihafa
    /WP-BoxDrawing
    /WP-CyrillicA
    /WP-CyrillicB
    /WP-GreekCentury
    /WP-GreekCourier
    /WP-GreekHelve
    /WP-HebrewDavid
    /WP-IconicSymbolsA
    /WP-IconicSymbolsB
    /WP-Japanese
    /WP-MathA
    /WP-MathB
    /WP-MathExtendedA
    /WP-MathExtendedB
    /WP-MultinationalAHelve
    /WP-MultinationalARoman
    /WP-MultinationalBCourier
    /WP-MultinationalBHelve
    /WP-MultinationalBRoman
    /WP-MultinationalCourier
    /WP-Phonetic
    /WPTypographicSymbols
    /Yesteryear-Regular
    /YuGothic-Bold
    /YuGothic-Light
    /YuGothic-Medium
    /YuGothic-Regular
    /YuGothicUI-Bold
    /YuGothicUI-Light
    /YuGothicUI-Regular
    /YuGothicUI-Semibold
    /YuGothicUI-Semilight
    /ZapfDingbats
    /ZurichBT-Black
    /ZurichBT-BlackExtended
    /ZurichBT-BlackItalic
    /ZurichBT-Bold
    /ZurichBT-BoldCondensed
    /ZurichBT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /ZurichBT-BoldExtended
    /ZurichBT-BoldExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-BoldItalic
    /ZurichBT-ExtraBlack
    /ZurichBT-ExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-Italic
    /ZurichBT-ItalicCondensed
    /ZurichBT-Light
    /ZurichBT-LightCondensed
    /ZurichBT-LightCondensedItalic
    /ZurichBT-LightExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-LightItalic
    /ZurichBT-Roman
    /ZurichBT-RomanCondensed
    /ZurichBT-RomanExtended
    /ZurichBT-UltraBlackExtended
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /AardvarkBold
    /ACaslonPro-Bold
    /ACaslonPro-BoldItalic
    /ACaslonPro-Italic
    /ACaslonPro-Regular
    /ACaslonPro-Semibold
    /ACaslonPro-SemiboldItalic
    /AdobeArabic-Bold
    /AdobeArabic-BoldItalic
    /AdobeArabic-Italic
    /AdobeArabic-Regular
    /AdobeDevanagari-Bold
    /AdobeDevanagari-BoldItalic
    /AdobeDevanagari-Italic
    /AdobeDevanagari-Regular
    /AdobeFangsongStd-Regular
    /AdobeFanHeitiStd-Bold
    /AdobeGothicStd-Bold
    /AdobeHebrew-Bold
    /AdobeHebrew-BoldItalic
    /AdobeHebrew-Italic
    /AdobeHebrew-Regular
    /AdobeHeitiStd-Regular
    /AdobeKaitiStd-Regular
    /AdobeMingStd-Light
    /AdobeMyungjoStd-Medium
    /AdobeNaskh-Medium
    /AdobeSongStd-Light
    /AeroRegularSWFTE
    /AGaramondPro-Bold
    /AGaramondPro-BoldItalic
    /AGaramondPro-Italic
    /AGaramondPro-Regular
    /AGaramond-Regular
    /AGBenguiatCyrBook
    /AgencyFB-Bold
    /AgencyFB-Reg
    /AkrutiBngBharatiNormal
    /AkrutiBngSharatBold
    /AkrutiBngSuchitraNormal
    /AkrutiBngVivekBold
    /AkrutiBngVivekNormal
    /AkrutiDevChakraBold
    /AkrutiDevHarshaMedium
    /AkrutiDevManojBold
    /AkrutiDevManojNormal
    /AkrutiDevManoramaBold
    /AkrutiDevMoujBold
    /AkrutiDevMoujLight
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaBold
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaExpandBold
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaExpandNormal
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaMedium
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaNormal
    /AkrutiDevPriyaBold
    /AkrutiDevPriyaExpandedBold
    /AkrutiDevPriyaExpandedNormal
    /AkrutiDevPriyaNormal
    /AkrutiDevRohiniBold
    /AkrutiDevRohiniNormal
    /AkrutiDevShridharBold
    /AkrutiDevShridharNormal
    /AkrutiDevSunilNormal
    /AkrutiGanpati1
    /AkrutiGanpati2
    /AkrutiGanpati3
    /AkrutiGanpati4
    /AkrutiGanpati5
    /AkrutiImage1
    /AkrutiImage10
    /AkrutiImage11
    /AkrutiImage12
    /AkrutiImage13
    /AkrutiImage14
    /AkrutiImage3
    /AkrutiImage9
    /AkrutiSnmChanakyaNormalItalic
    /AlbertsthalTypewriter
    /AlbumDrei
    /AlexBrush-Regular
    /Algerian
    /AmasisMT
    /AmasisMT-Light
    /AmasisMT-LightItalic
    /AmasisMT-Medium
    /AmasisMT-MediumItalic
    /AmazingGrotesk-DemiBold
    /AmazingGrotesk-DemiBoldItalic
    /AmazingGrotesk-Light
    /AmazingGrotesk-Ultra
    /AmazingGrotesk-UltraItalic
    /AmazoneBT-Regular
    /appleberry
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialRoundedMTBold
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /ArtBrewery
    /AssemblyLightSSK
    /AtlantixProSSi
    /ATRotisSansSerif-Bold
    /ATRotisSansSerif-Italic
    /AvantGarde-BookTh
    /AvantGarde-BookWd
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Book
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-BookOblique
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Demi
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-DemiOblique
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Medium
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-MediumOblique
    /BacktoBlackDemo
    /Bahnschrift
    /BalloonBT-ExtraBold
    /Banff-Normal
    /BanffPSMT
    /BankGothicBT-Medium
    /BaskOldFace
    /Bauhaus
    /Bauhaus93
    /Bauhaus-Bold
    /Bauhaus-BoldItalic
    /Bauhaus-Heavy-Bold
    /Bauhaus-Thin
    /BebasNeue
    /BellGothicBT-Bold
    /BellGothicStd-Black
    /BellGothicStd-Bold
    /BellMT
    /BellMTBold
    /BellMTItalic
    /BelweBT-Bold
    /BelweBT-Light
    /BelweBT-Medium
    /BelweBT-RomanCondensed
    /BendableBRK
    /Bengasi
    /BenguiatGothicBold
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-Bold
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-BoldItal
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-Book
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-BookItal
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-Bold
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-BoldItalic
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-Book
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-BookItalic
    /Benighted
    /BerkshireSwash-Regular
    /BerlinSansFB-Bold
    /BerlinSansFBDemi-Bold
    /BerlinSansFB-Reg
    /BermudaLP-Squiggle
    /BernardMT-Condensed
    /BernhardFashionBT-Regular
    /BernhardModernBT-Bold
    /BernhardModernBT-BoldItalic
    /BickhamScriptStd-Bold
    /BirchStd
    /BlackadderITC-Regular
    /BlackjackRollin
    /BlackoakStd
    /BodoniBT-Bold
    /BodoniBT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniBT-Book
    /BodoniBT-BookItalic
    /BodoniMT
    /BodoniMTBlack
    /BodoniMTBlack-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Bold
    /BodoniMT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Bold
    /BodoniMTCondensed-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Italic
    /BodoniMTPosterCompressed
    /BoisterBlack
    /BookAntiqua
    /BookAntiqua-Bold
    /BookAntiqua-BoldItalic
    /BookAntiqua-Italic
    /BookmanOldStyle
    /BookmanOldStyle-Bold
    /BookmanOldStyle-BoldItalic
    /BookmanOldStyle-Italic
    /BookshelfSymbolSeven
    /Boomerang
    /BoomerangItalic
    /BoringBoring
    /BoringJoined
    /BradleyHandITC
    /BritannicBold
    /Broadway
    /Brush-Script
    /BrushScriptMT
    /BrushScript-Normal-Italic
    /BrushScriptStd
    /Brush-ScriptWide
    /Brushstroke
    /Caesar
    /Calibri
    /Calibri-Bold
    /Calibri-BoldItalic
    /Calibri-Italic
    /Calibri-Light
    /Calibri-LightItalic
    /CalifornianFB-Bold
    /CalifornianFB-Italic
    /CalifornianFB-Reg
    /CalisMTBol
    /CalistoMT
    /CalistoMT-BoldItalic
    /CalistoMT-Italic
    /Cambria
    /Cambria-Bold
    /Cambria-BoldItalic
    /Cambria-Italic
    /CambriaMath
    /Candara
    /Candara-Bold
    /Candara-BoldItalic
    /Candara-Italic
    /Candara-Light
    /Candara-LightItalic
    /CarbonBlock
    /CaslonAntique
    /CaslonAntiqueItalic
    /Castellar
    /CastleT-Ligh
    /CataneoBT-Bold
    /CataneoBT-BoldSwash
    /CataneoBT-Light
    /CataneoBT-Regular
    /Centaur
    /Century
    /Century725BT-RomanCondensed
    /Century751BT-BoldB
    /Century751BT-BoldItalicB
    /Century751BT-ItalicB
    /Century751BT-No2ItalicB
    /Century751BT-RomanB
    /Century751BT-RomanNo2B
    /Century751BT-SemiBold
    /Century751BT-SemiBoldItalicB
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Bold
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-BoldIt
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Italic
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Roman
    /CenturySchoolbook
    /CenturySchoolbook-Bold
    /CenturySchoolbook-BoldItalic
    /CenturySchoolbook-Italic
    /CFBadNews-Regular
    /Chandini-NormalA
    /Chaparral-Display
    /ChaparralPro-Bold
    /ChaparralPro-BoldIt
    /ChaparralPro-Italic
    /ChaparralPro-LightIt
    /ChaparralPro-Regular
    /CharlemagneStd-Bold
    /ChaseCallasSH
    /Chessmaster5500
    /Chiller-Regular
    /ChopinScript
    /ClarendonBT-Black
    /ClarendonBT-Bold
    /ClarendonBT-Light
    /ClarendonBT-Roman
    /Colaborate-Bold
    /Colaborate-Medium
    /ColonnaMT
    /ComicSansMS
    /ComicSansMS-Bold
    /ComicSansMS-BoldItalic
    /ComicSansMS-Italic
    /ComixHighlight
    /CommercialScript
    /CommercialScriptBT-Regular
    /CommercialScriptStd
    /CommercialScrT
    /Consolas
    /Consolas-Bold
    /Consolas-BoldItalic
    /Consolas-Italic
    /Constantia
    /Constantia-Bold
    /Constantia-BoldItalic
    /Constantia-Italic
    /CooperBlack
    /CooperBlackStd
    /CooperBlackStd-Italic
    /CooperBT-Black
    /CooperBT-BlackHeadline
    /CooperBT-BlackItalic
    /CooperBT-BlackItalicHeadline
    /CooperBT-BlackOutline
    /CooperBT-Bold
    /CooperBT-BoldItalic
    /CooperBT-Light
    /CooperBT-LightItalic
    /CooperBT-Medium
    /CooperBT-MediumItalic
    /CooperPlanck2LightSH
    /CooperPlanck6BoldSH
    /CooperPlanck8HeavySH
    /CopperplateGothic-Bold
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Bold
    /CopperplateGothicBT-BoldCond
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Heavy
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Roman
    /CopperplateGothicBT-RomanCond
    /CopperplateGothic-Light
    /Corbel
    /Corbel-Bold
    /Corbel-BoldItalic
    /Corbel-Italic
    /CorbelLight
    /CorbelLight-Italic
    /Coronet-SemiBold-Italic
    /CorporateHQ
    /Cotillion
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Cuprum-Bold
    /Cuprum-BoldItalic
    /CuprumFFU
    /Cuprum-Italic
    /Cuprum-Regular
    /CurlzMT
    /Cutout
    /DauphinPlain
    /DeVinneBT-Text
    /DFGothic-EB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFKaiSho-SB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-SU-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-UB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-W5-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFPOP1-W9-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DIN-Black
    /DIN-Bold
    /DINPro-Bold
    /DINPro-Light
    /DINPro-Medium
    /DIN-Regular
    /Dobra-Book
    /Dobra-BookItalic
    /Dobra-Light
    /Dobra-Medium
    /EasyRider
    /Ebrima
    /Ebrima-Bold
    /EccentricStd
    /EdwardianScriptITC
    /Elephant-Italic
    /Elephant-Regular
    /EmbassyBT-Regular
    /English111VivaceBT-Regular
    /EngraversGothicBT-Regular
    /EngraversMT
    /ErasITC-Bold
    /ErasITC-Demi
    /ErasITC-Light
    /ErasITC-Medium
    /EuroSig
    /Eurostile
    /Eurostile-Bold
    /Eurostile-BoldCondensed
    /Eurostile-BoldExtendedTwo
    /Eurostile-BoldOblique
    /Eurostile-Condensed
    /Eurostile-Demi
    /Eurostile-DemiOblique
    /Eurostile-ExtendedTwo
    /Eurostile-Oblique
    /EverydayMayhem
    /Exotic350BT-Bold
    /Exotic350BT-DemiBold
    /FelixTitlingMT
    /FencesPlain
    /FibographyPersonalUse
    /FixedMiriamTransparent
    /FoglihtenNo07calt
    /FootlightMTLight
    /ForteMT
    /FranklinGothic-Book
    /FranklinGothic-BookItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Demi
    /FranklinGothic-DemiCond
    /FranklinGothic-DemiItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Heavy
    /FranklinGothic-HeavyItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Medium
    /FranklinGothic-MediumCond
    /FranklinGothic-MediumItalic
    /FranklinGotItcTEE-Book
    /FranklinGotItcTEE-Heav
    /Freehand521BT-RegularC
    /Freehand575
    /Freehand591
    /Freehand591-Bold
    /FreestyleScript
    /FreestyleScript-Regular
    /FrenchScriptMT
    /FrillyKnickers
    /FujiyamaPSMT
    /FuturaBlackBT-Regular
    /Futura-Bold
    /FuturaBT-Bold
    /FuturaBT-BoldCondensed
    /FuturaBT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /FuturaBT-BoldItalic
    /FuturaBT-Book
    /FuturaBT-BookItalic
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlack
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackCondensed
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackCondItalic
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackItalic
    /FuturaBT-Heavy
    /FuturaBT-HeavyItalic
    /FuturaBT-Light
    /FuturaBT-LightCondensed
    /FuturaBT-LightItalic
    /FuturaBT-Medium
    /FuturaBT-MediumCondensed
    /FuturaBT-MediumItalic
    /FuturaExt-Bold
    /Futura-Heavy
    /Gabriola
    /Gadugi
    /Gadugi-Bold
    /Ganesh
    /Ganess
    /Garamond
    /Garamond-Bold
    /Garamond-Italic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-Bold
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldCondensed
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldCondItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-Book
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookCondensed
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookCondItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookItalic
    /Garamond-Kursiv
    /GaramondPremrPro
    /GaramondPremrPro-It
    /GaramondPremrPro-Smbd
    /GaramondPremrPro-SmbdIt
    /GargoyleSSi
    /Geometric212BT-BookCondensed
    /Geometric212BT-HeavyCondensed
    /Geometric415BT-BlackA
    /Geometric415BT-BlackItalicA
    /Geometric415BT-MediumA
    /Geometric415BT-MediumItalicA
    /Geometric706BT-BlackCondensedB
    /GeometricSlab703BT-Bold
    /GeometricSlab703BT-BoldCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-BoldItalic
    /GeometricSlab703BT-Medium
    /GeometricSlab703BT-MediumCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-MediumItalic
    /GeometricSlab703BT-XtraBoldCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-XtraBoldItal
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Giddyup
    /GiddyupStd
    /Gigi-Regular
    /GillSans
    /GillSans-Bold
    /GillSansMT
    /GillSansMT-Bold
    /GillSansMT-BoldItalic
    /GillSansMT-Condensed
    /GillSansMT-ExtraCondensedBold
    /GillSansMT-Italic
    /GillSans-UltraBold
    /GillSans-UltraBoldCondensed
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaBold
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaBoldItalic
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaItalic
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaNormal
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaBold
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaBoldItalic
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaItalic
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaNormal
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Bold
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Bold
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Italic
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Normal
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Italic
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Normal
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Bold
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Bold
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Italic
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Normal
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Italic
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Normal
    /GloucesterMT-ExtraCondensed
    /GoodTimes
    /GothamBlack
    /GothamBlack-Italic
    /GothamBold
    /GothamBold-Italic
    /GothamBook
    /GothamBook-Italic
    /GothamExtraLight
    /GothamExtraLight-Italic
    /GothamLight
    /GothamLight-Italic
    /GothamMedium
    /GothamMedium-Italic
    /GothamRounded-LightItalic
    /GothamThin
    /GothamThin-Italic
    /GothamUltra
    /GothamUltra-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Bold
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Regular
    /GoudyStout
    /GraffitiPaintBrush
    /GrandHotel-Regular
    /GreatVibes-Regular
    /Haettenschweiler
    /HalvettCondensed
    /HalvettCondensedBold
    /HalvettLight
    /HalvettThin
    /HandelGotD-Bold
    /HandelGothic
    /HandelGothicBT-Regular
    /HandelGothicCn
    /HandelGothicEx
    /HandelGothicWd
    /HandOfSean
    /Handycheera
    /HarlowSolid
    /Harrington
    /HeadlineText
    /Heavenetica4LtOblSH
    /HelvCondensed
    /HelvCondensed-Bold
    /Helvetica
    /Helvetica-Bold
    /Helvetica-BoldOblique
    /Helvetica-Condensed
    /Helvetica-Condensed-Bold
    /Helvetica-Condensed-BoldObl
    /Helvetica-Condensed-Oblique
    /HelveticaExt-Bold
    /HelveticaInserat-Roman-SemiBold
    /Helvetica-Narrow
    /Helvetica-Narrow-Bold
    /Helvetica-Narrow-BoldOblique
    /Helvetica-Narrow-Oblique
    /HelveticaNeue
    /HelveticaNeue-Bold
    /HelveticaNeue-BoldItalic
    /HelveticaNeue-Condensed
    /HelveticaNeue-Heavy
    /HelveticaNeue-Italic
    /HelveticaNeue-Light
    /HelveticaNeue-Medium
    /HelveticaNeue-Roman
    /HelveticaNeue-Thin
    /HelveticaNeue-UltraLight
    /Helvetica-Normal
    /Helvetica-Oblique
    /HighTowerText-Italic
    /HighTowerText-Reg
    /HimchuliBold
    /HimchuliBoldBold
    /HimchuliExtraBoldExtraBold
    /HoboStd
    /HPSimplified-Bold
    /HPSimplified-BoldItalic
    /HPSimplified-Italic
    /HPSimplified-Light
    /HPSimplified-LightItalic
    /HPSimplified-Regular
    /Humanist521BT-Bold
    /Humanist521BT-BoldItalic
    /Humanist521BT-Italic
    /Humanist521BT-Light
    /Humanist521BT-LightItalic
    /Humanist521BT-Roman
    /Humanist777BT-BlackB
    /Humanist777BT-BlackCondensedB
    /Humanist777BT-BlackItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldCondensedB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-ItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-LightB
    /Humanist777BT-LightItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-RomanB
    /Humanist777BT-RomanCondensedB
    /Impact
    /ImprintMT-Shadow
    /InformalRoman-Regular
    /InkFree
    /ISCIIDev
    /JavaneseText
    /Jokerman-Regular
    /JuiceITC-Regular
    /KabelITCbyBT-Book
    /KabelITCbyBT-Medium
    /KabelITCbyBT-Ultra
    /KabobBold
    /KaufmannBT-Regular
    /KGBlankSpaceSketch
    /KGBlankSpaceSolid
    /Khaki-Two
    /KonTikiEnchantedJF
    /KozGoPr6N-Bold
    /KozGoPr6N-ExtraLight
    /KozGoPr6N-Heavy
    /KozGoPr6N-Light
    /KozGoPr6N-Medium
    /KozGoPr6N-Regular
    /KozGoPro-Bold
    /KozGoPro-ExtraLight
    /KozGoPro-Heavy
    /KozGoPro-Light
    /KozGoPro-Medium
    /KozGoPro-Regular
    /KozMinPr6N-Bold
    /KozMinPr6N-ExtraLight
    /KozMinPr6N-Heavy
    /KozMinPr6N-Light
    /KozMinPr6N-Medium
    /KozMinPr6N-Regular
    /KozMinPro-Bold
    /KozMinPro-ExtraLight
    /KozMinPro-Heavy
    /KozMinPro-Light
    /KozMinPro-Medium
    /KozMinPro-Regular
    /KristenITC-Regular
    /Kruthi-TamilAstro
    /Kruti-Astro
    /KrutiDev010
    /Kundli-English
    /KunstlerScript
    /LatinWide
    /LeelawadeeUI
    /LeelawadeeUI-Bold
    /LeelawadeeUI-Semilight
    /LegerBold
    /LetterGothicStd
    /LetterGothicStd-Bold
    /LetterGothicStd-BoldSlanted
    /LetterGothicStd-Slanted
    /LithosPro-Black
    /LithosPro-Regular
    /LMMono10-Regular
    /Lucemita-Regular
    /LucidaBright
    /LucidaBright-Demi
    /LucidaBright-DemiItalic
    /LucidaBright-Italic
    /LucidaCalligraphy-Italic
    /LucidaConsole
    /LucidaFax
    /LucidaFax-Demi
    /LucidaFax-DemiItalic
    /LucidaFax-Italic
    /LucidaHandwriting-Italic
    /LucidaSans
    /LucidaSans-Demi
    /LucidaSans-DemiItalic
    /LucidaSans-Italic
    /LucidaSans-Typewriter
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBold
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBoldOblique
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterOblique
    /LucidaSansUnicode
    /LucienSchoenschriftvCAT
    /MachineITCbyBT-Regular
    /Magneto-Bold
    /MaiandraGD-Regular
    /MalgunGothic
    /MalgunGothicBold
    /MalgunGothic-Semilight
    /Marcellus-Regular
    /Marlett
    /MaterhornNF
    /MaturaMTScriptCapitals
    /MesquiteStd
    /MicrosoftHimalaya
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiLight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiRegular
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUILight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIRegular
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue-Bold
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa-Bold
    /MicrosoftSansSerif
    /MicrosoftTaiLe
    /MicrosoftTaiLe-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHei
    /MicrosoftYaHei-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiLight
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUILight
    /Microsoft-Yi-Baiti
    /MingLiU-ExtB
    /Ming-Lt-HKSCS-ExtB
    /MinionPro-Bold
    /MinionPro-BoldCn
    /MinionPro-BoldCnIt
    /MinionPro-BoldIt
    /MinionPro-It
    /MinionPro-Medium
    /MinionPro-MediumIt
    /MinionPro-Regular
    /MinionPro-Semibold
    /MinionPro-SemiboldIt
    /MiriamTransparent
    /MisterEarlBT-Regular
    /Mistral
    /ML1-TTKarthikaBold
    /ML1-TTKarthikaBoldItalic
    /ML1-TTKarthikaItalic
    /ML1-TTKarthikaNormal
    /ML1-TTRevathiBold
    /ML1-TTRevathiBoldItalic
    /ML1-TTRevathiItalic
    /ML1-TTRevathiNormal
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Bold
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Italic
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Normal
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Bold
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Italic
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Normal
    /Moderna
    /Modern-Regular
    /Mojo
    /MongolianBaiti
    /MonotypeCorsiva
    /MS-Gothic
    /MS-Mincho
    /MSOutlook
    /MS-PGothic
    /MSReferenceSansSerif
    /MSReferenceSpecialty
    /MS-UIGothic
    /MT-Extra
    /MTExtraTiger
    /MuseoSans-100
    /MuseoSans-300
    /MuseoSans-700
    /MVBoli
    /MyanmarText
    /MyanmarText-Bold
    /MyhotaHatchedBold
    /MyriadArabic-Bold
    /MyriadArabic-BoldIt
    /MyriadArabic-It
    /MyriadArabic-Regular
    /Myriad-BdWeb
    /MyriadHebrew-Bold
    /MyriadHebrew-BoldIt
    /MyriadHebrew-It
    /MyriadHebrew-Regular
    /Myriad-ItWeb
    /MyriadPro-Bold
    /MyriadPro-BoldCond
    /MyriadPro-BoldCondIt
    /MyriadPro-BoldIt
    /MyriadPro-Cond
    /MyriadPro-CondIt
    /MyriadPro-It
    /MyriadPro-Light
    /MyriadPro-LightIt
    /MyriadPro-Regular
    /MyriadPro-Semibold
    /MyriadPro-SemiboldIt
    /Myriad-Web
    /MyriadWebPro
    /MyriadWebPro-Bold
    /MyriadWebPro-Condensed
    /MyriadWebPro-CondensedItalic
    /MyriadWebPro-Italic
    /NellaSueDemo
    /NeoSansIntel
    /NeoSansIntel-Light
    /NeoSansIntel-Medium
    /NewCenturySchlbk-Roman
    /NewGenevaNine
    /News701BT-BoldA
    /News701BT-ItalicA
    /News706BT-BoldC
    /NewsGothicBT-Bold
    /NewsGothicBT-BoldItalic
    /NewsGothicBT-Italic
    /NewsGothicBT-Light
    /NewsGothicBT-Roman
    /NewsGothicBT-RomanCondensed
    /NexaBold
    /NexaLight
    /NiagaraEngraved-Reg
    /NiagaraSolid-Reg
    /NirmalaUI
    /NirmalaUI-Bold
    /NirmalaUI-Semilight
    /NSimSun
    /NuevaStd-Bold
    /NuevaStd-BoldCond
    /NuevaStd-BoldCondItalic
    /NuevaStd-Cond
    /NuevaStd-CondItalic
    /NuevaStd-Italic
    /Nyx
    /OCRA-Alternate
    /OCRAbyBT-Regular
    /OCRAExtended
    /OCRAStd
    /OCRB10PitchBT-Regular
    /OldEnglishTextMT
    /Onyx
    /Optima
    /Optima-Bold
    /OptimaBoldEx-Bold
    /Optima-BoldItalic
    /OptimaBoldItalicEx-BoldItalic
    /OptimaBoldTh-Bold
    /OptimaBoldWd-Bold
    /OptimaCn
    /OptimaHollow
    /Optima-Italic
    /OptimaItalicEx-Italic
    /OptimaItalicWd-Italic
    /Optima-Thin
    /Optima-ThinCn
    /Optima-ThinEx
    /Optima-ThinWd
    /OptimaToLefty
    /OptimaWd
    /OR1-TTGarima-Bold
    /OR1-TTGarima-Italic
    /OR1-TTGarima-Normal
    /OR1-TTSarala-Bold
    /OR1-TTSarala-Italic
    /OR1-TTSarala-Normal
    /OratorStd
    /OratorStd-Slanted
    /ORB-TTGarima-Bold
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Bold
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Italic
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Normal
    /ORB-TTGarima-Italic
    /ORB-TTGarima-Normal
    /ORB-TTSarala-Bold
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Bold
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Italic
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Normal
    /ORB-TTSarala-Italic
    /ORB-TTSarala-Normal
    /Ouch
    /PalaceScriptMT
    /PalatinoLinotype-Bold
    /PalatinoLinotype-BoldItalic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Italic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Roman
    /Papyrus-Regular
    /Parchment-Regular
    /ParisianBT-Regular
    /ParkAvenueBT-Regular
    /Perpetua
    /Perpetua-Bold
    /Perpetua-BoldItalic
    /Perpetua-Italic
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Bold
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Light
    /PillGothic300mg-Bold
    /PillGothic300mg-Oblique
    /PillGothic300mg-Regular
    /Playbill
    /PMingLiU-ExtB
    /Pompeia-Inline
    /PoorRichard-Regular
    /PoplarStd
    /Postino-Italic
    /President
    /PrestigeEliteStd-Bd
    /Pristina-Regular
    /PTScriptBreeze
    /Punk
    /RageItalic
    /Ravie
    /RealityPress
    /Reeperbahn
    /RevueBT-Regular
    /Roboto-Black
    /Roboto-BlackItalic
    /Roboto-Bold
    /Roboto-BoldItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Bold
    /RobotoCondensed-BoldItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Italic
    /RobotoCondensed-Light
    /RobotoCondensed-LightItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Regular
    /Roboto-Italic
    /Roboto-Light
    /Roboto-LightItalic
    /Roboto-Medium
    /Roboto-MediumItalic
    /Roboto-Regular
    /Roboto-Thin
    /Roboto-ThinItalic
    /Rockwell
    /Rockwell-Bold
    /Rockwell-BoldItalic
    /Rockwell-Condensed
    /Rockwell-CondensedBold
    /Rockwell-ExtraBold
    /Rockwell-Italic
    /RosewoodStd-Regular
    /RoughDraft
    /Rupee
    /RupeeForadian
    /SamarkanNormal
    /SamarkanOblique
    /Sansation
    /Sansation-Bold
    /Sansation-Light
    /SchadowBT-Bold
    /SchadowBT-Roman
    /ScriptMTBold
    /SD1-TTSurekhBold
    /SD1-TTSurekhNormal
    /SeagullBT-Bold
    /SeagullBT-Heavy
    /SeagullBT-Light
    /SeagullBT-Medium
    /SegoeMDL2Assets
    /SegoePrint
    /SegoePrint-Bold
    /SegoeScript
    /SegoeScript-Bold
    /SegoeUI
    /SegoeUIBlack
    /SegoeUIBlack-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Bold
    /SegoeUI-BoldItalic
    /SegoeUIEmoji
    /SegoeUIHistoric
    /SegoeUI-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Light
    /SegoeUI-LightItalic
    /SegoeUI-SemiBold
    /SegoeUI-Semibold
    /SegoeUI-SemiboldItalic
    /SegoeUI-Semilight
    /SegoeUI-SemilightItalic
    /SegoeUISymbol
    /SerpentineD-Bold
    /SFSpeakeasy
    /ShelleyAllegroBT-Regular
    /ShorelinesScriptBold
    /ShowcardGothic-Reg
    /Shuriken-Boy
    /SimSun
    /SimSun-ExtB
    /SitkaBanner
    /SitkaBanner-Bold
    /SitkaBanner-BoldItalic
    /SitkaBanner-Italic
    /SitkaDisplay
    /SitkaDisplay-Bold
    /SitkaDisplay-BoldItalic
    /SitkaDisplay-Italic
    /SitkaHeading
    /SitkaHeading-Bold
    /SitkaHeading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaHeading-Italic
    /SitkaSmall
    /SitkaSmall-Bold
    /SitkaSmall-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSmall-Italic
    /SitkaSubheading
    /SitkaSubheading-Bold
    /SitkaSubheading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSubheading-Italic
    /SitkaText
    /SitkaText-Bold
    /SitkaText-BoldItalic
    /SitkaText-Italic
    /SLABSTHIN
    /SlipstreamLetPlain
    /SnapITC-Regular
    /SourceSansPro-Black
    /SourceSansPro-BlackIt
    /SourceSansPro-Bold
    /SourceSansPro-BoldIt
    /SourceSansPro-ExtraLightIt
    /SourceSansPro-It
    /SourceSansPro-LightIt
    /SourceSansPro-Regular
    /SourceSansPro-Semibold
    /SourceSansPro-SemiboldIt
    /Souvenir-BoldItalic
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-Demi
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-DemiItalic
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-Light
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-LightItalic
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldHollow
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldItalic
    /SouvenirLightBoldLefites
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldWd
    /Souvenir-Light-ItalicWd
    /SpumoniLP
    /Square721BT-Bold
    /Square721BT-BoldCondensed
    /Square721BTItalic
    /Square721BT-Roman
    /Square721BT-RomanCondensed
    /Square721DmItalic
    /Square721DmNormal
    /Staccato222BT-Regular
    /Stencil
    /StencilStd
    /Stucco555
    /Swiss721BT-Black
    /Swiss721BT-BlackCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-BlackCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BlackExtended
    /Swiss721BT-BlackItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BlackOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BlackRounded
    /Swiss721BT-Bold
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensedOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BoldExtended
    /Swiss721BT-BoldItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BoldOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BoldRounded
    /Swiss721BT-Heavy
    /Swiss721BT-HeavyItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Italic
    /Swiss721BT-ItalicCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-Light
    /Swiss721BT-LightCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-LightCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-LightExtended
    /Swiss721BT-LightItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Medium
    /Swiss721BT-MediumItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Roman
    /Swiss721BT-RomanCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-RomanExtended
    /Swiss721BT-Thin
    /Swiss721BT-ThinItalic
    /Swiss911BT-ExtraCompressed
    /Swiss911BT-UltraCompressed
    /Swiss921BT-RegularA
    /Swiss924BT-RegularB
    /SY2-TTDance-Normal
    /SY3-TTGanesh-Normal
    /SY4-TTGanesh-Normal
    /SY5-TTGods-Normal
    /SY7-TTLamps-Normal
    /SY8-TTSports-Normal
    /Sylfaen
    /SymbolMT
    /SymbolTiger
    /SymbolTigerExpert
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TektonPro-Bold
    /TektonPro-BoldCond
    /TektonPro-BoldExt
    /TektonPro-BoldObl
    /TempusSansITC
    /TheHit
    /Tiger
    /TigerExpert
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Times-Roman
    /TrajanPro-Bold
    /TrajanPro-Regular
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Bold
    /TwCenMT-BoldItalic
    /TwCenMT-Condensed
    /TwCenMT-CondensedBold
    /TwCenMT-CondensedExtraBold
    /TwCenMT-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Regular
    /TypoUprightBT-Regular
    /UnicaOne-Regular
    /UniversCondensed
    /UniversityRoman
    /UniversityRomanBT-Bold
    /UniversityRomanBT-Regular
    /USIS1949
    /VAGRoundedBT-Regular
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
    /Vibrocentric-Bold
    /VinerHandITC
    /Vinque
    /Vivaldii
    /VladimirScript
    /VTKSEMBROIDERY
    /WalkwayUpperCondensed
    /WalkwayUpperSemiBold
    /WalkwayUpperUItraCondensed
    /Webdings
    /Wingdings2
    /Wingdings3
    /Wingdings-Regular
    /WP-ArabicScriptSihafa
    /WP-ArabicSihafa
    /WP-BoxDrawing
    /WP-CyrillicA
    /WP-CyrillicB
    /WP-GreekCentury
    /WP-GreekCourier
    /WP-GreekHelve
    /WP-HebrewDavid
    /WP-IconicSymbolsA
    /WP-IconicSymbolsB
    /WP-Japanese
    /WP-MathA
    /WP-MathB
    /WP-MathExtendedA
    /WP-MathExtendedB
    /WP-MultinationalAHelve
    /WP-MultinationalARoman
    /WP-MultinationalBCourier
    /WP-MultinationalBHelve
    /WP-MultinationalBRoman
    /WP-MultinationalCourier
    /WP-Phonetic
    /WPTypographicSymbols
    /Yesteryear-Regular
    /YuGothic-Bold
    /YuGothic-Light
    /YuGothic-Medium
    /YuGothic-Regular
    /YuGothicUI-Bold
    /YuGothicUI-Light
    /YuGothicUI-Regular
    /YuGothicUI-Semibold
    /YuGothicUI-Semilight
    /ZapfDingbats
    /ZurichBT-Black
    /ZurichBT-BlackExtended
    /ZurichBT-BlackItalic
    /ZurichBT-Bold
    /ZurichBT-BoldCondensed
    /ZurichBT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /ZurichBT-BoldExtended
    /ZurichBT-BoldExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-BoldItalic
    /ZurichBT-ExtraBlack
    /ZurichBT-ExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-Italic
    /ZurichBT-ItalicCondensed
    /ZurichBT-Light
    /ZurichBT-LightCondensed
    /ZurichBT-LightCondensedItalic
    /ZurichBT-LightExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-LightItalic
    /ZurichBT-Roman
    /ZurichBT-RomanCondensed
    /ZurichBT-RomanExtended
    /ZurichBT-UltraBlackExtended
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /AardvarkBold
    /ACaslonPro-Bold
    /ACaslonPro-BoldItalic
    /ACaslonPro-Italic
    /ACaslonPro-Regular
    /ACaslonPro-Semibold
    /ACaslonPro-SemiboldItalic
    /AdobeArabic-Bold
    /AdobeArabic-BoldItalic
    /AdobeArabic-Italic
    /AdobeArabic-Regular
    /AdobeDevanagari-Bold
    /AdobeDevanagari-BoldItalic
    /AdobeDevanagari-Italic
    /AdobeDevanagari-Regular
    /AdobeFangsongStd-Regular
    /AdobeFanHeitiStd-Bold
    /AdobeGothicStd-Bold
    /AdobeHebrew-Bold
    /AdobeHebrew-BoldItalic
    /AdobeHebrew-Italic
    /AdobeHebrew-Regular
    /AdobeHeitiStd-Regular
    /AdobeKaitiStd-Regular
    /AdobeMingStd-Light
    /AdobeMyungjoStd-Medium
    /AdobeNaskh-Medium
    /AdobeSongStd-Light
    /AeroRegularSWFTE
    /AGaramondPro-Bold
    /AGaramondPro-BoldItalic
    /AGaramondPro-Italic
    /AGaramondPro-Regular
    /AGaramond-Regular
    /AGBenguiatCyrBook
    /AgencyFB-Bold
    /AgencyFB-Reg
    /AkrutiBngBharatiNormal
    /AkrutiBngSharatBold
    /AkrutiBngSuchitraNormal
    /AkrutiBngVivekBold
    /AkrutiBngVivekNormal
    /AkrutiDevChakraBold
    /AkrutiDevHarshaMedium
    /AkrutiDevManojBold
    /AkrutiDevManojNormal
    /AkrutiDevManoramaBold
    /AkrutiDevMoujBold
    /AkrutiDevMoujLight
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaBold
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaExpandBold
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaExpandNormal
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaMedium
    /AkrutiDevNewPriyaNormal
    /AkrutiDevPriyaBold
    /AkrutiDevPriyaExpandedBold
    /AkrutiDevPriyaExpandedNormal
    /AkrutiDevPriyaNormal
    /AkrutiDevRohiniBold
    /AkrutiDevRohiniNormal
    /AkrutiDevShridharBold
    /AkrutiDevShridharNormal
    /AkrutiDevSunilNormal
    /AkrutiGanpati1
    /AkrutiGanpati2
    /AkrutiGanpati3
    /AkrutiGanpati4
    /AkrutiGanpati5
    /AkrutiImage1
    /AkrutiImage10
    /AkrutiImage11
    /AkrutiImage12
    /AkrutiImage13
    /AkrutiImage14
    /AkrutiImage3
    /AkrutiImage9
    /AkrutiSnmChanakyaNormalItalic
    /AlbertsthalTypewriter
    /AlbumDrei
    /AlexBrush-Regular
    /Algerian
    /AmasisMT
    /AmasisMT-Light
    /AmasisMT-LightItalic
    /AmasisMT-Medium
    /AmasisMT-MediumItalic
    /AmazingGrotesk-DemiBold
    /AmazingGrotesk-DemiBoldItalic
    /AmazingGrotesk-Light
    /AmazingGrotesk-Ultra
    /AmazingGrotesk-UltraItalic
    /AmazoneBT-Regular
    /appleberry
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /ArialRoundedMTBold
    /ArialUnicodeMS
    /ArtBrewery
    /AssemblyLightSSK
    /AtlantixProSSi
    /ATRotisSansSerif-Bold
    /ATRotisSansSerif-Italic
    /AvantGarde-BookTh
    /AvantGarde-BookWd
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Book
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-BookOblique
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Demi
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-DemiOblique
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-Medium
    /AvantGardeITCbyBT-MediumOblique
    /BacktoBlackDemo
    /Bahnschrift
    /BalloonBT-ExtraBold
    /Banff-Normal
    /BanffPSMT
    /BankGothicBT-Medium
    /BaskOldFace
    /Bauhaus
    /Bauhaus93
    /Bauhaus-Bold
    /Bauhaus-BoldItalic
    /Bauhaus-Heavy-Bold
    /Bauhaus-Thin
    /BebasNeue
    /BellGothicBT-Bold
    /BellGothicStd-Black
    /BellGothicStd-Bold
    /BellMT
    /BellMTBold
    /BellMTItalic
    /BelweBT-Bold
    /BelweBT-Light
    /BelweBT-Medium
    /BelweBT-RomanCondensed
    /BendableBRK
    /Bengasi
    /BenguiatGothicBold
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-Bold
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-BoldItal
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-Book
    /BenguiatGothicITCbyBT-BookItal
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-Bold
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-BoldItalic
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-Book
    /BenguiatITCbyBT-BookItalic
    /Benighted
    /BerkshireSwash-Regular
    /BerlinSansFB-Bold
    /BerlinSansFBDemi-Bold
    /BerlinSansFB-Reg
    /BermudaLP-Squiggle
    /BernardMT-Condensed
    /BernhardFashionBT-Regular
    /BernhardModernBT-Bold
    /BernhardModernBT-BoldItalic
    /BickhamScriptStd-Bold
    /BirchStd
    /BlackadderITC-Regular
    /BlackjackRollin
    /BlackoakStd
    /BodoniBT-Bold
    /BodoniBT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniBT-Book
    /BodoniBT-BookItalic
    /BodoniMT
    /BodoniMTBlack
    /BodoniMTBlack-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Bold
    /BodoniMT-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Bold
    /BodoniMTCondensed-BoldItalic
    /BodoniMTCondensed-Italic
    /BodoniMT-Italic
    /BodoniMTPosterCompressed
    /BoisterBlack
    /BookAntiqua
    /BookAntiqua-Bold
    /BookAntiqua-BoldItalic
    /BookAntiqua-Italic
    /BookmanOldStyle
    /BookmanOldStyle-Bold
    /BookmanOldStyle-BoldItalic
    /BookmanOldStyle-Italic
    /BookshelfSymbolSeven
    /Boomerang
    /BoomerangItalic
    /BoringBoring
    /BoringJoined
    /BradleyHandITC
    /BritannicBold
    /Broadway
    /Brush-Script
    /BrushScriptMT
    /BrushScript-Normal-Italic
    /BrushScriptStd
    /Brush-ScriptWide
    /Brushstroke
    /Caesar
    /Calibri
    /Calibri-Bold
    /Calibri-BoldItalic
    /Calibri-Italic
    /Calibri-Light
    /Calibri-LightItalic
    /CalifornianFB-Bold
    /CalifornianFB-Italic
    /CalifornianFB-Reg
    /CalisMTBol
    /CalistoMT
    /CalistoMT-BoldItalic
    /CalistoMT-Italic
    /Cambria
    /Cambria-Bold
    /Cambria-BoldItalic
    /Cambria-Italic
    /CambriaMath
    /Candara
    /Candara-Bold
    /Candara-BoldItalic
    /Candara-Italic
    /Candara-Light
    /Candara-LightItalic
    /CarbonBlock
    /CaslonAntique
    /CaslonAntiqueItalic
    /Castellar
    /CastleT-Ligh
    /CataneoBT-Bold
    /CataneoBT-BoldSwash
    /CataneoBT-Light
    /CataneoBT-Regular
    /Centaur
    /Century
    /Century725BT-RomanCondensed
    /Century751BT-BoldB
    /Century751BT-BoldItalicB
    /Century751BT-ItalicB
    /Century751BT-No2ItalicB
    /Century751BT-RomanB
    /Century751BT-RomanNo2B
    /Century751BT-SemiBold
    /Century751BT-SemiBoldItalicB
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Bold
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-BoldIt
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Italic
    /CenturySchlbkCyrillicBT-Roman
    /CenturySchoolbook
    /CenturySchoolbook-Bold
    /CenturySchoolbook-BoldItalic
    /CenturySchoolbook-Italic
    /CFBadNews-Regular
    /Chandini-NormalA
    /Chaparral-Display
    /ChaparralPro-Bold
    /ChaparralPro-BoldIt
    /ChaparralPro-Italic
    /ChaparralPro-LightIt
    /ChaparralPro-Regular
    /CharlemagneStd-Bold
    /ChaseCallasSH
    /Chessmaster5500
    /Chiller-Regular
    /ChopinScript
    /ClarendonBT-Black
    /ClarendonBT-Bold
    /ClarendonBT-Light
    /ClarendonBT-Roman
    /Colaborate-Bold
    /Colaborate-Medium
    /ColonnaMT
    /ComicSansMS
    /ComicSansMS-Bold
    /ComicSansMS-BoldItalic
    /ComicSansMS-Italic
    /ComixHighlight
    /CommercialScript
    /CommercialScriptBT-Regular
    /CommercialScriptStd
    /CommercialScrT
    /Consolas
    /Consolas-Bold
    /Consolas-BoldItalic
    /Consolas-Italic
    /Constantia
    /Constantia-Bold
    /Constantia-BoldItalic
    /Constantia-Italic
    /CooperBlack
    /CooperBlackStd
    /CooperBlackStd-Italic
    /CooperBT-Black
    /CooperBT-BlackHeadline
    /CooperBT-BlackItalic
    /CooperBT-BlackItalicHeadline
    /CooperBT-BlackOutline
    /CooperBT-Bold
    /CooperBT-BoldItalic
    /CooperBT-Light
    /CooperBT-LightItalic
    /CooperBT-Medium
    /CooperBT-MediumItalic
    /CooperPlanck2LightSH
    /CooperPlanck6BoldSH
    /CooperPlanck8HeavySH
    /CopperplateGothic-Bold
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Bold
    /CopperplateGothicBT-BoldCond
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Heavy
    /CopperplateGothicBT-Roman
    /CopperplateGothicBT-RomanCond
    /CopperplateGothic-Light
    /Corbel
    /Corbel-Bold
    /Corbel-BoldItalic
    /Corbel-Italic
    /CorbelLight
    /CorbelLight-Italic
    /Coronet-SemiBold-Italic
    /CorporateHQ
    /Cotillion
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Cuprum-Bold
    /Cuprum-BoldItalic
    /CuprumFFU
    /Cuprum-Italic
    /Cuprum-Regular
    /CurlzMT
    /Cutout
    /DauphinPlain
    /DeVinneBT-Text
    /DFGothic-EB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFKaiSho-SB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-SU-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-UB-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFMincho-W5-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DFPOP1-W9-WIN-RKSJ-H
    /DIN-Black
    /DIN-Bold
    /DINPro-Bold
    /DINPro-Light
    /DINPro-Medium
    /DIN-Regular
    /Dobra-Book
    /Dobra-BookItalic
    /Dobra-Light
    /Dobra-Medium
    /EasyRider
    /Ebrima
    /Ebrima-Bold
    /EccentricStd
    /EdwardianScriptITC
    /Elephant-Italic
    /Elephant-Regular
    /EmbassyBT-Regular
    /English111VivaceBT-Regular
    /EngraversGothicBT-Regular
    /EngraversMT
    /ErasITC-Bold
    /ErasITC-Demi
    /ErasITC-Light
    /ErasITC-Medium
    /EuroSig
    /Eurostile
    /Eurostile-Bold
    /Eurostile-BoldCondensed
    /Eurostile-BoldExtendedTwo
    /Eurostile-BoldOblique
    /Eurostile-Condensed
    /Eurostile-Demi
    /Eurostile-DemiOblique
    /Eurostile-ExtendedTwo
    /Eurostile-Oblique
    /EverydayMayhem
    /Exotic350BT-Bold
    /Exotic350BT-DemiBold
    /FelixTitlingMT
    /FencesPlain
    /FibographyPersonalUse
    /FixedMiriamTransparent
    /FoglihtenNo07calt
    /FootlightMTLight
    /ForteMT
    /FranklinGothic-Book
    /FranklinGothic-BookItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Demi
    /FranklinGothic-DemiCond
    /FranklinGothic-DemiItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Heavy
    /FranklinGothic-HeavyItalic
    /FranklinGothic-Medium
    /FranklinGothic-MediumCond
    /FranklinGothic-MediumItalic
    /FranklinGotItcTEE-Book
    /FranklinGotItcTEE-Heav
    /Freehand521BT-RegularC
    /Freehand575
    /Freehand591
    /Freehand591-Bold
    /FreestyleScript
    /FreestyleScript-Regular
    /FrenchScriptMT
    /FrillyKnickers
    /FujiyamaPSMT
    /FuturaBlackBT-Regular
    /Futura-Bold
    /FuturaBT-Bold
    /FuturaBT-BoldCondensed
    /FuturaBT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /FuturaBT-BoldItalic
    /FuturaBT-Book
    /FuturaBT-BookItalic
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlack
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackCondensed
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackCondItalic
    /FuturaBT-ExtraBlackItalic
    /FuturaBT-Heavy
    /FuturaBT-HeavyItalic
    /FuturaBT-Light
    /FuturaBT-LightCondensed
    /FuturaBT-LightItalic
    /FuturaBT-Medium
    /FuturaBT-MediumCondensed
    /FuturaBT-MediumItalic
    /FuturaExt-Bold
    /Futura-Heavy
    /Gabriola
    /Gadugi
    /Gadugi-Bold
    /Ganesh
    /Ganess
    /Garamond
    /Garamond-Bold
    /Garamond-Italic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-Bold
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldCondensed
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldCondItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BoldItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-Book
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookCondensed
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookCondItalic
    /GaramondITCbyBT-BookItalic
    /Garamond-Kursiv
    /GaramondPremrPro
    /GaramondPremrPro-It
    /GaramondPremrPro-Smbd
    /GaramondPremrPro-SmbdIt
    /GargoyleSSi
    /Geometric212BT-BookCondensed
    /Geometric212BT-HeavyCondensed
    /Geometric415BT-BlackA
    /Geometric415BT-BlackItalicA
    /Geometric415BT-MediumA
    /Geometric415BT-MediumItalicA
    /Geometric706BT-BlackCondensedB
    /GeometricSlab703BT-Bold
    /GeometricSlab703BT-BoldCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-BoldItalic
    /GeometricSlab703BT-Medium
    /GeometricSlab703BT-MediumCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-MediumItalic
    /GeometricSlab703BT-XtraBoldCond
    /GeometricSlab703BT-XtraBoldItal
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Giddyup
    /GiddyupStd
    /Gigi-Regular
    /GillSans
    /GillSans-Bold
    /GillSansMT
    /GillSansMT-Bold
    /GillSansMT-BoldItalic
    /GillSansMT-Condensed
    /GillSansMT-ExtraCondensedBold
    /GillSansMT-Italic
    /GillSans-UltraBold
    /GillSans-UltraBoldCondensed
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaBold
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaBoldItalic
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaItalic
    /GJ1-TTAvantikaNormal
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaBold
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaBoldItalic
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaItalic
    /GJ1-TTKrishnaNormal
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Bold
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Bold
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Italic
    /GJB-TTAvantikaEN-Normal
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Italic
    /GJB-TTAvantika-Normal
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Bold
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Bold
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Italic
    /GJB-TTKrishnaEN-Normal
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Italic
    /GJB-TTKrishna-Normal
    /GloucesterMT-ExtraCondensed
    /GoodTimes
    /GothamBlack
    /GothamBlack-Italic
    /GothamBold
    /GothamBold-Italic
    /GothamBook
    /GothamBook-Italic
    /GothamExtraLight
    /GothamExtraLight-Italic
    /GothamLight
    /GothamLight-Italic
    /GothamMedium
    /GothamMedium-Italic
    /GothamRounded-LightItalic
    /GothamThin
    /GothamThin-Italic
    /GothamUltra
    /GothamUltra-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Bold
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Italic
    /GoudyOldStyleT-Regular
    /GoudyStout
    /GraffitiPaintBrush
    /GrandHotel-Regular
    /GreatVibes-Regular
    /Haettenschweiler
    /HalvettCondensed
    /HalvettCondensedBold
    /HalvettLight
    /HalvettThin
    /HandelGotD-Bold
    /HandelGothic
    /HandelGothicBT-Regular
    /HandelGothicCn
    /HandelGothicEx
    /HandelGothicWd
    /HandOfSean
    /Handycheera
    /HarlowSolid
    /Harrington
    /HeadlineText
    /Heavenetica4LtOblSH
    /HelvCondensed
    /HelvCondensed-Bold
    /Helvetica
    /Helvetica-Bold
    /Helvetica-BoldOblique
    /Helvetica-Condensed
    /Helvetica-Condensed-Bold
    /Helvetica-Condensed-BoldObl
    /Helvetica-Condensed-Oblique
    /HelveticaExt-Bold
    /HelveticaInserat-Roman-SemiBold
    /Helvetica-Narrow
    /Helvetica-Narrow-Bold
    /Helvetica-Narrow-BoldOblique
    /Helvetica-Narrow-Oblique
    /HelveticaNeue
    /HelveticaNeue-Bold
    /HelveticaNeue-BoldItalic
    /HelveticaNeue-Condensed
    /HelveticaNeue-Heavy
    /HelveticaNeue-Italic
    /HelveticaNeue-Light
    /HelveticaNeue-Medium
    /HelveticaNeue-Roman
    /HelveticaNeue-Thin
    /HelveticaNeue-UltraLight
    /Helvetica-Normal
    /Helvetica-Oblique
    /HighTowerText-Italic
    /HighTowerText-Reg
    /HimchuliBold
    /HimchuliBoldBold
    /HimchuliExtraBoldExtraBold
    /HoboStd
    /HPSimplified-Bold
    /HPSimplified-BoldItalic
    /HPSimplified-Italic
    /HPSimplified-Light
    /HPSimplified-LightItalic
    /HPSimplified-Regular
    /Humanist521BT-Bold
    /Humanist521BT-BoldItalic
    /Humanist521BT-Italic
    /Humanist521BT-Light
    /Humanist521BT-LightItalic
    /Humanist521BT-Roman
    /Humanist777BT-BlackB
    /Humanist777BT-BlackCondensedB
    /Humanist777BT-BlackItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldCondensedB
    /Humanist777BT-BoldItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-ItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-LightB
    /Humanist777BT-LightItalicB
    /Humanist777BT-RomanB
    /Humanist777BT-RomanCondensedB
    /Impact
    /ImprintMT-Shadow
    /InformalRoman-Regular
    /InkFree
    /ISCIIDev
    /JavaneseText
    /Jokerman-Regular
    /JuiceITC-Regular
    /KabelITCbyBT-Book
    /KabelITCbyBT-Medium
    /KabelITCbyBT-Ultra
    /KabobBold
    /KaufmannBT-Regular
    /KGBlankSpaceSketch
    /KGBlankSpaceSolid
    /Khaki-Two
    /KonTikiEnchantedJF
    /KozGoPr6N-Bold
    /KozGoPr6N-ExtraLight
    /KozGoPr6N-Heavy
    /KozGoPr6N-Light
    /KozGoPr6N-Medium
    /KozGoPr6N-Regular
    /KozGoPro-Bold
    /KozGoPro-ExtraLight
    /KozGoPro-Heavy
    /KozGoPro-Light
    /KozGoPro-Medium
    /KozGoPro-Regular
    /KozMinPr6N-Bold
    /KozMinPr6N-ExtraLight
    /KozMinPr6N-Heavy
    /KozMinPr6N-Light
    /KozMinPr6N-Medium
    /KozMinPr6N-Regular
    /KozMinPro-Bold
    /KozMinPro-ExtraLight
    /KozMinPro-Heavy
    /KozMinPro-Light
    /KozMinPro-Medium
    /KozMinPro-Regular
    /KristenITC-Regular
    /Kruthi-TamilAstro
    /Kruti-Astro
    /KrutiDev010
    /Kundli-English
    /KunstlerScript
    /LatinWide
    /LeelawadeeUI
    /LeelawadeeUI-Bold
    /LeelawadeeUI-Semilight
    /LegerBold
    /LetterGothicStd
    /LetterGothicStd-Bold
    /LetterGothicStd-BoldSlanted
    /LetterGothicStd-Slanted
    /LithosPro-Black
    /LithosPro-Regular
    /LMMono10-Regular
    /Lucemita-Regular
    /LucidaBright
    /LucidaBright-Demi
    /LucidaBright-DemiItalic
    /LucidaBright-Italic
    /LucidaCalligraphy-Italic
    /LucidaConsole
    /LucidaFax
    /LucidaFax-Demi
    /LucidaFax-DemiItalic
    /LucidaFax-Italic
    /LucidaHandwriting-Italic
    /LucidaSans
    /LucidaSans-Demi
    /LucidaSans-DemiItalic
    /LucidaSans-Italic
    /LucidaSans-Typewriter
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBold
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterBoldOblique
    /LucidaSans-TypewriterOblique
    /LucidaSansUnicode
    /LucienSchoenschriftvCAT
    /MachineITCbyBT-Regular
    /Magneto-Bold
    /MaiandraGD-Regular
    /MalgunGothic
    /MalgunGothicBold
    /MalgunGothic-Semilight
    /Marcellus-Regular
    /Marlett
    /MaterhornNF
    /MaturaMTScriptCapitals
    /MesquiteStd
    /MicrosoftHimalaya
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiLight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiRegular
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIBold
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUILight
    /MicrosoftJhengHeiUIRegular
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue
    /MicrosoftNewTaiLue-Bold
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa
    /MicrosoftPhagsPa-Bold
    /MicrosoftSansSerif
    /MicrosoftTaiLe
    /MicrosoftTaiLe-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHei
    /MicrosoftYaHei-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiLight
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUI-Bold
    /MicrosoftYaHeiUILight
    /Microsoft-Yi-Baiti
    /MingLiU-ExtB
    /Ming-Lt-HKSCS-ExtB
    /MinionPro-Bold
    /MinionPro-BoldCn
    /MinionPro-BoldCnIt
    /MinionPro-BoldIt
    /MinionPro-It
    /MinionPro-Medium
    /MinionPro-MediumIt
    /MinionPro-Regular
    /MinionPro-Semibold
    /MinionPro-SemiboldIt
    /MiriamTransparent
    /MisterEarlBT-Regular
    /Mistral
    /ML1-TTKarthikaBold
    /ML1-TTKarthikaBoldItalic
    /ML1-TTKarthikaItalic
    /ML1-TTKarthikaNormal
    /ML1-TTRevathiBold
    /ML1-TTRevathiBoldItalic
    /ML1-TTRevathiItalic
    /ML1-TTRevathiNormal
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Bold
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Italic
    /MLB-TTKarthika-Normal
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Bold
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Italic
    /MLB-TTRevathi-Normal
    /Moderna
    /Modern-Regular
    /Mojo
    /MongolianBaiti
    /MonotypeCorsiva
    /MS-Gothic
    /MS-Mincho
    /MSOutlook
    /MS-PGothic
    /MSReferenceSansSerif
    /MSReferenceSpecialty
    /MS-UIGothic
    /MT-Extra
    /MTExtraTiger
    /MuseoSans-100
    /MuseoSans-300
    /MuseoSans-700
    /MVBoli
    /MyanmarText
    /MyanmarText-Bold
    /MyhotaHatchedBold
    /MyriadArabic-Bold
    /MyriadArabic-BoldIt
    /MyriadArabic-It
    /MyriadArabic-Regular
    /Myriad-BdWeb
    /MyriadHebrew-Bold
    /MyriadHebrew-BoldIt
    /MyriadHebrew-It
    /MyriadHebrew-Regular
    /Myriad-ItWeb
    /MyriadPro-Bold
    /MyriadPro-BoldCond
    /MyriadPro-BoldCondIt
    /MyriadPro-BoldIt
    /MyriadPro-Cond
    /MyriadPro-CondIt
    /MyriadPro-It
    /MyriadPro-Light
    /MyriadPro-LightIt
    /MyriadPro-Regular
    /MyriadPro-Semibold
    /MyriadPro-SemiboldIt
    /Myriad-Web
    /MyriadWebPro
    /MyriadWebPro-Bold
    /MyriadWebPro-Condensed
    /MyriadWebPro-CondensedItalic
    /MyriadWebPro-Italic
    /NellaSueDemo
    /NeoSansIntel
    /NeoSansIntel-Light
    /NeoSansIntel-Medium
    /NewCenturySchlbk-Roman
    /NewGenevaNine
    /News701BT-BoldA
    /News701BT-ItalicA
    /News706BT-BoldC
    /NewsGothicBT-Bold
    /NewsGothicBT-BoldItalic
    /NewsGothicBT-Italic
    /NewsGothicBT-Light
    /NewsGothicBT-Roman
    /NewsGothicBT-RomanCondensed
    /NexaBold
    /NexaLight
    /NiagaraEngraved-Reg
    /NiagaraSolid-Reg
    /NirmalaUI
    /NirmalaUI-Bold
    /NirmalaUI-Semilight
    /NSimSun
    /NuevaStd-Bold
    /NuevaStd-BoldCond
    /NuevaStd-BoldCondItalic
    /NuevaStd-Cond
    /NuevaStd-CondItalic
    /NuevaStd-Italic
    /Nyx
    /OCRA-Alternate
    /OCRAbyBT-Regular
    /OCRAExtended
    /OCRAStd
    /OCRB10PitchBT-Regular
    /OldEnglishTextMT
    /Onyx
    /Optima
    /Optima-Bold
    /OptimaBoldEx-Bold
    /Optima-BoldItalic
    /OptimaBoldItalicEx-BoldItalic
    /OptimaBoldTh-Bold
    /OptimaBoldWd-Bold
    /OptimaCn
    /OptimaHollow
    /Optima-Italic
    /OptimaItalicEx-Italic
    /OptimaItalicWd-Italic
    /Optima-Thin
    /Optima-ThinCn
    /Optima-ThinEx
    /Optima-ThinWd
    /OptimaToLefty
    /OptimaWd
    /OR1-TTGarima-Bold
    /OR1-TTGarima-Italic
    /OR1-TTGarima-Normal
    /OR1-TTSarala-Bold
    /OR1-TTSarala-Italic
    /OR1-TTSarala-Normal
    /OratorStd
    /OratorStd-Slanted
    /ORB-TTGarima-Bold
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Bold
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Italic
    /ORB-TTGarimaEN-Normal
    /ORB-TTGarima-Italic
    /ORB-TTGarima-Normal
    /ORB-TTSarala-Bold
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Bold
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Italic
    /ORB-TTSaralaEN-Normal
    /ORB-TTSarala-Italic
    /ORB-TTSarala-Normal
    /Ouch
    /PalaceScriptMT
    /PalatinoLinotype-Bold
    /PalatinoLinotype-BoldItalic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Italic
    /PalatinoLinotype-Roman
    /Papyrus-Regular
    /Parchment-Regular
    /ParisianBT-Regular
    /ParkAvenueBT-Regular
    /Perpetua
    /Perpetua-Bold
    /Perpetua-BoldItalic
    /Perpetua-Italic
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Bold
    /PerpetuaTitlingMT-Light
    /PillGothic300mg-Bold
    /PillGothic300mg-Oblique
    /PillGothic300mg-Regular
    /Playbill
    /PMingLiU-ExtB
    /Pompeia-Inline
    /PoorRichard-Regular
    /PoplarStd
    /Postino-Italic
    /President
    /PrestigeEliteStd-Bd
    /Pristina-Regular
    /PTScriptBreeze
    /Punk
    /RageItalic
    /Ravie
    /RealityPress
    /Reeperbahn
    /RevueBT-Regular
    /Roboto-Black
    /Roboto-BlackItalic
    /Roboto-Bold
    /Roboto-BoldItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Bold
    /RobotoCondensed-BoldItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Italic
    /RobotoCondensed-Light
    /RobotoCondensed-LightItalic
    /RobotoCondensed-Regular
    /Roboto-Italic
    /Roboto-Light
    /Roboto-LightItalic
    /Roboto-Medium
    /Roboto-MediumItalic
    /Roboto-Regular
    /Roboto-Thin
    /Roboto-ThinItalic
    /Rockwell
    /Rockwell-Bold
    /Rockwell-BoldItalic
    /Rockwell-Condensed
    /Rockwell-CondensedBold
    /Rockwell-ExtraBold
    /Rockwell-Italic
    /RosewoodStd-Regular
    /RoughDraft
    /Rupee
    /RupeeForadian
    /SamarkanNormal
    /SamarkanOblique
    /Sansation
    /Sansation-Bold
    /Sansation-Light
    /SchadowBT-Bold
    /SchadowBT-Roman
    /ScriptMTBold
    /SD1-TTSurekhBold
    /SD1-TTSurekhNormal
    /SeagullBT-Bold
    /SeagullBT-Heavy
    /SeagullBT-Light
    /SeagullBT-Medium
    /SegoeMDL2Assets
    /SegoePrint
    /SegoePrint-Bold
    /SegoeScript
    /SegoeScript-Bold
    /SegoeUI
    /SegoeUIBlack
    /SegoeUIBlack-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Bold
    /SegoeUI-BoldItalic
    /SegoeUIEmoji
    /SegoeUIHistoric
    /SegoeUI-Italic
    /SegoeUI-Light
    /SegoeUI-LightItalic
    /SegoeUI-SemiBold
    /SegoeUI-Semibold
    /SegoeUI-SemiboldItalic
    /SegoeUI-Semilight
    /SegoeUI-SemilightItalic
    /SegoeUISymbol
    /SerpentineD-Bold
    /SFSpeakeasy
    /ShelleyAllegroBT-Regular
    /ShorelinesScriptBold
    /ShowcardGothic-Reg
    /Shuriken-Boy
    /SimSun
    /SimSun-ExtB
    /SitkaBanner
    /SitkaBanner-Bold
    /SitkaBanner-BoldItalic
    /SitkaBanner-Italic
    /SitkaDisplay
    /SitkaDisplay-Bold
    /SitkaDisplay-BoldItalic
    /SitkaDisplay-Italic
    /SitkaHeading
    /SitkaHeading-Bold
    /SitkaHeading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaHeading-Italic
    /SitkaSmall
    /SitkaSmall-Bold
    /SitkaSmall-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSmall-Italic
    /SitkaSubheading
    /SitkaSubheading-Bold
    /SitkaSubheading-BoldItalic
    /SitkaSubheading-Italic
    /SitkaText
    /SitkaText-Bold
    /SitkaText-BoldItalic
    /SitkaText-Italic
    /SLABSTHIN
    /SlipstreamLetPlain
    /SnapITC-Regular
    /SourceSansPro-Black
    /SourceSansPro-BlackIt
    /SourceSansPro-Bold
    /SourceSansPro-BoldIt
    /SourceSansPro-ExtraLightIt
    /SourceSansPro-It
    /SourceSansPro-LightIt
    /SourceSansPro-Regular
    /SourceSansPro-Semibold
    /SourceSansPro-SemiboldIt
    /Souvenir-BoldItalic
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-Demi
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-DemiItalic
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-Light
    /SouvenirITCbyBT-LightItalic
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldHollow
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldItalic
    /SouvenirLightBoldLefites
    /Souvenir-Light-BoldWd
    /Souvenir-Light-ItalicWd
    /SpumoniLP
    /Square721BT-Bold
    /Square721BT-BoldCondensed
    /Square721BTItalic
    /Square721BT-Roman
    /Square721BT-RomanCondensed
    /Square721DmItalic
    /Square721DmNormal
    /Staccato222BT-Regular
    /Stencil
    /StencilStd
    /Stucco555
    /Swiss721BT-Black
    /Swiss721BT-BlackCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-BlackCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BlackExtended
    /Swiss721BT-BlackItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BlackOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BlackRounded
    /Swiss721BT-Bold
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BoldCondensedOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BoldExtended
    /Swiss721BT-BoldItalic
    /Swiss721BT-BoldOutline
    /Swiss721BT-BoldRounded
    /Swiss721BT-Heavy
    /Swiss721BT-HeavyItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Italic
    /Swiss721BT-ItalicCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-Light
    /Swiss721BT-LightCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-LightCondensedItalic
    /Swiss721BT-LightExtended
    /Swiss721BT-LightItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Medium
    /Swiss721BT-MediumItalic
    /Swiss721BT-Roman
    /Swiss721BT-RomanCondensed
    /Swiss721BT-RomanExtended
    /Swiss721BT-Thin
    /Swiss721BT-ThinItalic
    /Swiss911BT-ExtraCompressed
    /Swiss911BT-UltraCompressed
    /Swiss921BT-RegularA
    /Swiss924BT-RegularB
    /SY2-TTDance-Normal
    /SY3-TTGanesh-Normal
    /SY4-TTGanesh-Normal
    /SY5-TTGods-Normal
    /SY7-TTLamps-Normal
    /SY8-TTSports-Normal
    /Sylfaen
    /SymbolMT
    /SymbolTiger
    /SymbolTigerExpert
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TektonPro-Bold
    /TektonPro-BoldCond
    /TektonPro-BoldExt
    /TektonPro-BoldObl
    /TempusSansITC
    /TheHit
    /Tiger
    /TigerExpert
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Times-Roman
    /TrajanPro-Bold
    /TrajanPro-Regular
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Bold
    /TwCenMT-BoldItalic
    /TwCenMT-Condensed
    /TwCenMT-CondensedBold
    /TwCenMT-CondensedExtraBold
    /TwCenMT-Italic
    /TwCenMT-Regular
    /TypoUprightBT-Regular
    /UnicaOne-Regular
    /UniversCondensed
    /UniversityRoman
    /UniversityRomanBT-Bold
    /UniversityRomanBT-Regular
    /USIS1949
    /VAGRoundedBT-Regular
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
    /Vibrocentric-Bold
    /VinerHandITC
    /Vinque
    /Vivaldii
    /VladimirScript
    /VTKSEMBROIDERY
    /WalkwayUpperCondensed
    /WalkwayUpperSemiBold
    /WalkwayUpperUItraCondensed
    /Webdings
    /Wingdings2
    /Wingdings3
    /Wingdings-Regular
    /WP-ArabicScriptSihafa
    /WP-ArabicSihafa
    /WP-BoxDrawing
    /WP-CyrillicA
    /WP-CyrillicB
    /WP-GreekCentury
    /WP-GreekCourier
    /WP-GreekHelve
    /WP-HebrewDavid
    /WP-IconicSymbolsA
    /WP-IconicSymbolsB
    /WP-Japanese
    /WP-MathA
    /WP-MathB
    /WP-MathExtendedA
    /WP-MathExtendedB
    /WP-MultinationalAHelve
    /WP-MultinationalARoman
    /WP-MultinationalBCourier
    /WP-MultinationalBHelve
    /WP-MultinationalBRoman
    /WP-MultinationalCourier
    /WP-Phonetic
    /WPTypographicSymbols
    /Yesteryear-Regular
    /YuGothic-Bold
    /YuGothic-Light
    /YuGothic-Medium
    /YuGothic-Regular
    /YuGothicUI-Bold
    /YuGothicUI-Light
    /YuGothicUI-Regular
    /YuGothicUI-Semibold
    /YuGothicUI-Semilight
    /ZapfDingbats
    /ZurichBT-Black
    /ZurichBT-BlackExtended
    /ZurichBT-BlackItalic
    /ZurichBT-Bold
    /ZurichBT-BoldCondensed
    /ZurichBT-BoldCondensedItalic
    /ZurichBT-BoldExtended
    /ZurichBT-BoldExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-BoldItalic
    /ZurichBT-ExtraBlack
    /ZurichBT-ExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-Italic
    /ZurichBT-ItalicCondensed
    /ZurichBT-Light
    /ZurichBT-LightCondensed
    /ZurichBT-LightCondensedItalic
    /ZurichBT-LightExtraCondensed
    /ZurichBT-LightItalic
    /ZurichBT-Roman
    /ZurichBT-RomanCondensed
    /ZurichBT-RomanExtended
    /ZurichBT-UltraBlackExtended
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




